
CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

 APRIL 18, 2024 

Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 7:00 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 4/12/2024 5:48 PM Page 1 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL - CLERK OF COUNCIL

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS

6. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS

7. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS

A. Appointment to Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals

8. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - March 21, 2024

9. COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS

11. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Resolution Supporting City Post  Office

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Ernest Investments, LLC 
as Agent for Warren Sweatt, requesting to rezone 4.21 acres from R-1 to C-1, to allow for 
retail development. PIN # 7-1017-01-013, located in the 1st Council District, at 1005 GA 
Highway 30

➢Action

B. Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Philip R. McCorkle as 
Agent for Ronald A. Royal, requesting to rezone 41.5 of (+/-)48.48 acres from R-1 to I-1, 
to allow for warehouse development.  PIN # 7-0975-01-024, located in the 1st Council 
District, on Georgia Highway 21.

➢Action



Agenda City Council April 18, 2024 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 4/12/2024 5:48 PM Page 2 

C. Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Steven Campisi as Agent 
for HP-221120 Port Wentworth, LLC, requesting to rezone (+/-)38.8 of 77.7 acres from
R-1 to R-5, to allow for zoning unification for an approved multifamily development.  PIN 
# 7-0975-01-024, located in the 2nd Council District, on Georgia Highway 21.

➢Action

CI. Consideration to approve the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by A Zoning Map 
Amendment  City of Port Wentworth, requesting to rezone 18.65 of 20.85 acres from R-3 
to PUD, to allow for residential development.  PIN # 7-0014-06-001, located in the 4th 
Council District, between Coleraine Drive and Barnsley Road.

➢Action

13. NEW BUSINESS

A. A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted by Philip R. McCorkle as Agent 
for SPH-21, LLC, requesting to rezone 24.952 of 45.2 acres from R-1 to R-5, to allow for 
multifamily residential development.  PIN # 7-0976-02-035, located in the 1st Council 
District, on Saussy Road and Georgia Highway 21.

➢Public Hearing

B. A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted by Yash Development, LLC as 
Agent for William Grainger and Yash Desai Development, LLC, requesting to rezone 11.87 
acres from R-1 to C-1, to allow for multifamily development with retail.  PINs # 7-0976-

1-004, 7-0976-01-005, located in the 1st Council District at 920 and 924 Highway 30.

➢Public Hearing

14. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. Litigation

B. Personnel

C. Real Estate

16. ADJOURNMENT



City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Appointment 
Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2978) DOC ID: 2978 

Updated: 4/12/2024 5:38 PM by Zahnay Smoak Page 1 

Appointment to Planning Commission and Zoning Board of 
Appeals 

Issue/Item: The Planning and Zoning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals has had several 

vacant positions arise in the past several months.   The Planning Commission needs a 

citizen member as does the Zoning Board of Appeals which has previously been filled with 

Planning Commission members.   

Background:  The Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals meet as needed on 

the Second Monday each month.  The Planning Commission is made up of 5 citizen 

members and 5 citizen members.  The Board of Zoning Appeals has typically been filled by 

citizen members from the Planning Commission.  

Facts and Findings:  

Name being considered: 

Douglas Highsmith-resident 

Mr. Highsmith has been a city resident for approximately 18 years and is employed as an 

equipment operator at the Port of Savannah.  

Funding:  NA 

Recommendation:  Consider approval of the name submitted for both Planning 

Commission and the Zoning Appeals Board.  

7.A

Packet Pg. 3



City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

DRAFT Department Head: Steve Davis 

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2977) DOC ID: 2977 

Updated: 4/12/2024 4:18 PM by Zahnay Smoak Page 1 

Resolution Supporting City Post  Office 

Issue/Item:  Request and Support for a City Post Office.

Background: Having a physical Post Office location in the City would be a benefit to 

residents and businesses. But acquiring a physical Post Office location within the 

City is not something the City can do alone, and must come from our partners in 

Washington D.C.

This Resolution shows Mayor and Council’s support for a Post Office, and directs 

City staff to work to get a Post Office location within the City. 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution.

ATTACHMENTS: 

• 24.04.18 - Res - PW Post Office (DOCX) 

11.A

Packet Pg. 4



Resolution No. R24-02  City of Port Wentworth 1 

RESOLTUION NO. R24-02 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT WENTWORTH MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

SUPPORTING AND REQUESTING A POST OFFICE WITHIN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council is granted the power to care for the general health, safety, 

and welfare of the City and its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council recognize the importance of having a physical Post Office 

location within the City for its residents and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council recognize that having a physical Post Office location 

within the City will greatly benefit the City, residents, and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council desire for City staff to diligently work and coordinate with 

local and national partners to bring about a Post Office location within the City; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Port Wentworth, 

Georgia, while in regular session, as follows: 

1. The Mayor and City Council desire to have a physical Post Office location within

the City.

2. The Mayor and City Council make a formal request for a physical Post Office

location within the City.

3. The Mayor and City Council direct City staff to diligently work and coordinate

with local and national partners to bring about a physical Post Office location

within the City.

SO RESOLVED this the 18th day of April, 2024. 

[ SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE ] 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4.
04

.1
8 

- 
R

es
 -

 P
W

 P
o

st
 O

ff
ic

e 
 (

29
77

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
it

y 
P

o
st

  O
ff

ic
e)



Resolution No. R24-02  City of Port Wentworth 2 

Approved: 

Gary Norton, Mayor 

Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem 

Artlise Alston-Cone, Council Member, At-Large 

Gabrielle Nelson, Council Member, District 1 

Mark Stephens, Council Member, District 2 

Rufus Bright, Council Member, District 3 

Shawn Randerwala, Council Member, District 4 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4.
04

.1
8 

- 
R

es
 -

 P
W

 P
o

st
 O

ff
ic

e 
 (

29
77

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
it

y 
P

o
st

  O
ff

ic
e)



City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 

Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2972) DOC ID: 2972 

Updated: 4/10/2024 12:25 PM by Katie Dunnigan Page 1 

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application 
submitted by Ernest Investments, LLC as Agent for Warren 
Sweatt, requesting to rezone 4.21 acres from R-1 to C-1, to 

allow for retail development. PIN # 7-1017-01-013, located in 
the 1st Council District, at 1005 GA Highway 30 

Issue/Item:  

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Ernest Investments, LLC as 

Agent for Warren Sweatt, requesting to rezone 4.21 acres from R-1 to C-1, to allow for 

retail development. PIN # 7-1017-01-013, located in the 1st Council District, at 1005 GA 

Highway 30. 

Background: 

• The applicant proposes to develop a 14,ooo square foot retail center.

• City water and sewer are not currently available to this parcel. The applicant intends

to connect to future utilities once they are expanded to Marion Village (Highway 30,

PIN# 7-1017-01-014).

• Preliminary discussion has been had with GDOT regarding access on Highway 30.

• A neighborhood meeting was held by the applicant on 2/1/2024. Neighbors from one

surrounding property attended, they expressed concern for potential disturbance of a

cemetery. The cemetery was proven to be on a separate parcel.

• The businesses to occupy the future retail space are unknown.

Facts and Findings: 

• The intent of the C-1 zoning district is outlined in Section 4.20 of the Zoning

Ordinance in the City of Port Wentworth Code of Ordinances and states “This district is

intended to encourage and accommodate a walkable downtown area with storefronts on the
ground story and upper story residential, local market retail, personal services, restaurants,
entertainment, offices, and professional services. Sites are located near the established
commercial core of the Old Town area of the City of Port Wentworth. Characteristics of uses
and land in C-1 include daytime and early evening operations, smaller-scale and mixed-use
buildings, sidewalk sales, and on-street parking”

• While surrounding land use is single-family resident and a church, the zoning district intent
favors low-intensity commercial use which can be incorporated into neighborhood settings.

• The 2021-2041 Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Suburban. An implementation
strategy listed for this character area is “allow for appropriate neighborhood scale mixed uses

within planned developments…” there are no planned developments featuring retail in the
immediate area.

• Highway 30 is a collector road heavily used by commuters and thereby lends itself to
commercial properties.

Funding: 

N/A 

Recommendation: 

12.A

Packet Pg. 7



Agenda Item (ID # 2972) Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/10/2024 12:25 PM by Katie Dunnigan Page 2 

This project is not directly supported by the Comprehensive Plan but may be considered to 

achieve the spirit of the character area. Uses allowed in the C-1 zoning district may be 

desirable in this location. 

At the March 11, 2024 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval, 4-3. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APPLICATION (PDF) 

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Warranty Deed-Warren A Sweatt (PDF) 

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APO (PDF)

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PROJ. NARRATIVE (PDF) 

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Neighborhood Mtg Attendance (PDF)

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PLAT (PDF) 

• ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-CONCEPT PLAN (PDF) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 8



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

W
ar

ra
n

ty
 D

ee
d

-W
ar

re
n

 A
 S

w
ea

tt
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.A.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

W
ar

ra
n

ty
 D

ee
d

-W
ar

re
n

 A
 S

w
ea

tt
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



 
 

St Simons Island | Savannah | Jacksonville | Charleston | Baxley 
 

www.robertscivilengineering.com 

 
List of Properties within 300’ 

 

Name              Address          Pin #    

Thomas Boyd  510 Strachan Ave 
Savannah, GA 31406 

71017 01012 & 71017 01010 

Virginia and Chad Wegmann 1031 HWY 30 
Port Wentworth, GA 31407  
 

71017 01009Y 

North Salem Baptist Church Inc 955 State Highway 30 
Savannah, GA 31407 

71017 01011 

Come-A-Long Group LLC 120 Tall Pines TRL 
GREENWOOD, SC, 29646 

70976 01015 

Georgia Southern University 
Foundation Guyton Real Estate LLC  

PO Box 8053 
STATESBORO, GA, 30460 

71017 01018 

 

12.A.c

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

A
P

O
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

http://www.robertscivilengineering.com/
KennonStrowd
Text Box
HWY 30

KennonStrowd
Text Box
1031 HWY 30

KennonStrowd
Text Box
955 HWY 30

KennonStrowd
Text Box
9 Montieth Road

KennonStrowd
Text Box
HWY 30

KennonStrowd
HWY 30

KennonStrowd
955 HWY 30

KennonStrowd
HWY 30

KennonStrowd
1031 HWY 30

KennonStrowd
9 Montieth Road



 
 

St Simons Island | Savannah | Jacksonville | Charleston | Baxley 
 

www.robertscivilengineering.com 

 
February 12, 2024 

 

Port Wentworth Development Services 

7306 GA-21 Suite 301 

Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

 

1005 Hwy 30 Rezoning Submittal  

 

To Whomever it May Concern, 

 

Please find our submittal for a rezoning request for the property located at 1005 Hwy 30 in Port 

Wentworth.  The intended use of the property is a commercial development with mixed retail. A 

conceptual plan has been provided.  

 A neighborhood meeting was held on February 1st at 7pm at the property. 6 notices were sent 

out to local property owners. One neighbor attended. You can see a summary of her comments attached 

to the submittal.  

This submittal also includes a plat and warranty deed. They reference a smaller tract that our 

proposed property has been subdivided from. However, our property is noticeably shown and platted on 

the attached documents.  

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Kennon Strowd 

 

Project Manager  

12.A.d

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

P
R

O
J.

 N
A

R
R

A
T

IV
E

  (
29

72
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 E

ve
re

st
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)

http://www.robertscivilengineering.com/


 
 

St Simons Island | Savannah | Jacksonville | Charleston | Baxley 
 

www.robertscivilengineering.com 

 
February 01, 2024 

 

Attendance Record for 1005 HWY 30 Retail Rezoning Neighborhood Meeting Parcel: 71017 01013 

 

Sign In: 

Name              Address          Email    

Kennon Strowd  6001 Chatham Center Dr, STE 150 
Savannah, GA 31405 

kstrowd@robertscivilengineering.com 

Virginia and Chad Wegmann 1031 HWY 30 
Port Wentworth, GA 31407  
 

Cweg318@aol.com 

The Wegmanns were not in favor of the plan. There were concerns of a graveyard by this property. However, 
through discussions, we were able to determine this graveyard is on an adjacent property. No comments were 
provided as far as design, just use and location.  

   

   

 

12.A.e

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

 M
tg

 A
tt

en
d

an
ce

  (
29

72
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 E

ve
re

st
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)

http://www.robertscivilengineering.com/


12.A.f

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

P
L

A
T

  (
29

72
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 E

ve
re

st
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS © 2023 TomTom 

NORTH SALEM BAPTIST CHURCH
71017 01011

9.35 AC
ZONING: R-A

NORTH SALEM BAPTIST CHURCH
71017 01011

9.35 AC
ZONING: R-A

BOYD MARION THOMAS
71017 01010

2.24 AC
ZONING: R-A

BOYD MARION THOMAS
71017 01012

3.52 AC
ZONING: R-A

20' REAR YARD SETBACK

10
' S

ID
E 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

10
' S

ID
E 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
BA

C
K

S71° 44' 31.54"E
420.941'

S1
9°

 2
4'

 2
6.

28
"W

43
6.

50
1'

N71° 30' 23.83"W
420.669'

N
19

° 2
2'

 3
1.

95
"E

43
4.

76
7'

EXISTING WETLANDS
0.92 AC

S71° 44' 31.54"E
420.941'

S1
9°

 2
4'

 2
6.

28
"W

43
6.

50
1'

N71° 30' 23.83"W
420.669'

N
19

° 2
2'

 3
1.

95
"E

43
4.

76
7'

X

X

R
ET

AI
L 

SH
O

P
14

,0
00

 S
F

SEWATT WARREN A
71017 01013

4.21 AC
ZONING: R-A

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT POND

0.73 AC

GA HIGHWAY 30 (100' R/W)

SDSD

SD
SD

DSD SD SD

SD
SD

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

EXISTING UPLANDS
3.29 AC

S70° 37' 27.75"E

105.009'

N
20

° 0
8'

 2
7.

98
"E

10
0.

00
9'

S70° 37' 27.75"E

31.053'

N
20

° 0
8'

 2
7.

98
"E

65
.8

56
'

S70° 37' 27.75"E

60.005'

N
17

° 3
0'

 3
6.

96
"E

53
6.

70
5'

SHEET:

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

DA
TE

:  
 0

1-
31

-2
02

4

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
 2

45
00

SC
AL

E:
 1

":
40

'

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:  

JL
V

H
w

y 
30

 R
et

ai
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Po
rt 

W
en

tw
or

th
, G

A
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

:
Ev

er
es

t I
nv

es
tm

en
t L

LC

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
AN

CP

111111

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:
  M

DP

c:
\u

se
rs

\m
ar

ia
h\

ro
be

rts
 c

iv
il 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g\

rc
e 

- d
at

a\
rc

e 
ci

vi
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

sa
v\

20
24

\2
45

00
-1

00
5 

hw
y 

30
 re

zo
ni

ng
\c

iv
il 

de
si

gn
\0

3-
ac

ad
\c

iv
il 

pl
an

s\
ba

se
.d

w
g,

 p
lo

tte
d 

2/
1/

20
24

 9
:1

4 
AM

 b
y 

m
ar

ia
h 

pe
ar

t

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

ST
. S

IM
O

N
S 

IS
LA

N
D 

| 
SA

VA
N

N
AH

 |
 JA

CK
SO

N
VI

LL
E 

| 
CH

AR
LE

ST
O

N
W

W
W

.R
O

BE
RT

SC
IV

IL
EN

GI
N

EE
RI

N
G.

CO
M

GRAPHIC SCALE
1" = 40'

80'0' 40'

N

SITE DESCRIPTION:

INTENDED USE: THE PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT LIES WITHIN PARCEL
71017 01013. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL CONSIST OF (1) STORY RETAIL
BUILDING, A PARKING LOT LAYOUT AND ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE TO
BE CONSTRUCTED ON 4.21 +/- AC.

OWNER/DEVELOPER
EVEREST INVESTMENTS, LLC | 41 TEAL LAKE DR
SAVANNAH, GA 31419 | 912-604-9556

CURRENT ZONING AND USE: R-A | RESIDENTIAL HOME
INTENDED ZONING AND USE: C-1 | COMMERCIAL RETAIL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  PORTION OF ANDREW DOTSON PLACE PRB 29P 23

NAME.: SWEATT WARREN A
PIN#: 71017 01013
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1005 HIGHWAY 30, PORT WENTWORTH, GA 31407-9611

MAILING ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNERS 300 FEET OF THIS PROPERTY:

PIN#: 71017 01009Y
WEGMANN VIRGINIA R
1031 HWY 30 | PORT WENTWORTH, GA 31407-9611

PIN#: 71017 01010
BOYD MARION THOMAS
510 STRACHAN AVE | SAVANNAH, GA 31406

PIN#: 71017 01012
BOYD MARION THOMAS
510 STRACHAN AVE | SAVANNAH, GA 31406

PIN#: 71017 01018
GEORGIA SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION GUYTON REAL ESTATE LLC
P.O. BOX 8053 | STATESBORO, GA 30460

PIN#: 71017 01011
NORTH SALEM BAPTIST CHURCH INC
955 STATE HWY 30 | SAVANNAH, GA 31407

PIN#: 70976 01015
COME-A-LONG GROUP LLC
120 TALL PINES TRL | GREENWOOD, SC 29646

9'

50'

20
0'

15
0'

80'

50
'

130'

22
'

22
'

22'

22'

9'

22
'

9'

9' 22'

22'

9'

22
'

9'

22
'

22'

8.5'

5'

22'

R5'

R5'

R5'R5'

R15'

R10'

R5'

R5'

R15'

R5'

R5'R15'

R5'

R15'

R15'

R89'

22'

22
'

R15
'

TYPE "B" HANDICAP RAMP

TYPE "B" HANDICAP RAMP

183.59' OF DISTANCE TO ADJACENT DRIVEWAY

DECELERATION LANE TO BE
DETERMINED BASED ON AVERAGE
DAILY TRAFFIC FLOW REQUIREMENTS
ACCORDING TO GEORGIA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD CENTERLINE

5' CONCRETE
SIDEWALK (TYP.)

PROPOSED
DUMPSTER AREA
WITH FENCE

NOTE: PROPOSED WATER AND
SEWER TO BE EXTENDED FROM

SITE AND CONNECT TO EXISTING
CITY WATER AND SEWER

INFRASTRUCTURES.

APPROXIMATE
BOUNDARY LINES
FOR EXISTING
ADJACENT
PROPERTIES

APPROXIMATE
BOUNDARY LINES FOR
EXISTING ADJACENT
PROPERTIES

APPROXIMATE
BOUNDARY LINES FOR

EXISTING ADJACENT
PROPERTIES

20'

20'

18" CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.)

10'

PROPOSED 10' X 22'
LOADING ZONE

LEGEND

EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED CONCRETE

EXISTING CONCRETE

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED BUILDING

PROPOSED POND

EXISTING WETLANDS

PROPOSED STORM

PROPOSED WATER LINE

SD SD

W W

PROPOSED WATER LINE

D

PROPOSED STORM INLET

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE
PROPOSED FLARED-END SECTION

PROPERTY LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

ROAD CENTERLINE

_________________

NOT RELEASED
FOR

CONSTRUCTION

_________________

12.A.g

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 1
00

5 
H

W
Y

 3
0 

7-
10

17
-0

1-
01

3 
R

-A
 T

O
 C

-1
 2

02
4-

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 P

L
A

N
  (

29
72

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 E
ve

re
st

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



 City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2971) DOC ID: 2971  

Updated: 4/10/2024 10:48 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 1 

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application 
submitted by Philip R. McCorkle as Agent for Ronald A. 

Royal, requesting to rezone 41.5 of (+/-)48.48 acres from R-1 
to I-1, to allow for warehouse development.  PIN # 7-0975-01-
024, located in the 1st Council District, on Georgia Highway 

21. 

Issue/Item:  

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Philip R. McCorkle as Agent 

for Ronald A. Royal, requesting to rezone 41.5 of (+/-)48.48 acres from R-1 to I-1, to allow 

for warehouse development.  PIN # 7-0975-01-024, located in the 1st Council District, on 

Georgia Highway 21. 

 

Background:  

• The applicant requests I-1 zoning for the future development of a warehouse. The 

submitted concept plan shows a single proposed warehouse, 601,600 square feet in 

size.  

• The southern (+/-)10 acres of the existing property are to be subdivided and are not 

part of the rezoning request. 

• Access will be via a single point at the north boundary of the property to a future 

right of way which connects to Georgia Highway 21 via a planned traffic signal. The 

concept plan shows adjacent, similar use proposed to access the new road. 

 

 

Facts and Findings:  

• Adjacent properties to the north, east, and west are within the I-1 zoning district. 

The 10 +/- acres to be subdivided will be an adjacent R-1 parcel to the south.  

• The property is enveloped by I-1 zoning, with proposed access to a State Highway.  

• Development of a warehouse is consistent with the proposed future use of adjacent 

parcels. 
• The 2021-2041 Comprehensive Plan is contradictive for this particular parcel. It shows the 

property in a suburban character area surrounded on three sides by the industrial park 
character area. Given that the industrial park area is currently zoned I-1, developing this 
parcel as described by character area would potentially burden development of the industrial 
properties.   

• A report was issued for DRI #4121 by The Coastal Regional Commission. 

 

 

Funding: 

N/A 

 

Recommendation: 

The proposed rezoning meets applicable zoning criteria and is consistent with surrounding 

use.  

 

Staff recommends that approval include the following condition: 

12.B

Packet Pg. 21



Agenda Item (ID # 2971)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/10/2024 10:48 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 2 

1. Access related to industrial activity shall be limited to the proposed right of way to 

the north of this parcel. Access to/from Jeffers Road shall be prohibited after the 

construction phase or once the future right of way is constructed, whichever comes 

first. 

 

At the  March 11, 2024 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APPLICATION (PDF) 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APO (PDF) 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-AUTH OF PROPERTY OWNER (PDF) 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-LEGAL DESCRIPTION (PDF) 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-PLAT (PDF) 

• ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-SITE PLAN (PDF) 

• DRI #4121 Final Report (PDF) 

12.B

Packet Pg. 22



,t
ECEIVE

RTH, GEORGIAAPPLICATION TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF PORT WEN

Applica nt: Phillip R. lrrlcCorkle

Mailing Address: 319 Tattnall Street, Savannah, Georqia 31401

Phone # 912-232-7 416

Property Owner: Ronald A. Royal Pho ne #
Use back if more lhan one owner

Owner Address:6510 Hiohway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

PIN #('s): 7-0975-01 -024 B of Acres 41.558

Zoning Classification Present R-1

Present Vacant

Req uested l-1

Req uested warehouse

X lf the requested change is to extend an existing adjacent zoning district to include this property, explain below

why the proposed change should be made.

_ lf the requested cha nge is not to extend an adjacent zoning district, explain below why this property should be

placed in a different zoning district than all adjoining properties. (How does it differ from adjoining properties and why
should it be subject to different restrictions than those applying to adjoining properties?)

The property is surrounded on three sides by property zoned indqqtrieLlt r 4ll utilize a private access road to
qain access to Highway 21 at a traffic liq ht that will be installed by the owner of the adioininq industrial tracts

Attdch the followinq documents:

1. Written le8al description of the propeny (e.g. copy of deed) - full metes and bounds description rather than plat reference.

2. Name, PIN #, properly address and mailing address of property owners withing 300 feet of this property.

3. Plat showing property lines with lengths and bearings, adjoining streets, locations of existing buildings, north arrow and scale.

Submit three (3) copies of in 11" x 17", one 1 copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive.

4. Site Plan of proposed use of property. Submit three {3) copies in 11" x 17", one l copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive

5. Disclosure of Campaign Contributions and Gifts form.
6. Disclosure of Financial lnterests form
7. lf property owner and applicant are not the same, Authorization by Property Owner form or Authorizations of Attorney form.

8. Filing fee of S500.00 + 550.00 per acre + S75.00 Administrative Fee, payable to the City of Port wentworth.

APPLICATION MUST BE FILED 20 BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY

ARE TO BE CONSIDERED

I hereby authorize the staff of the City of Port Wentworth to inspect the premises of the above described property and

to post this property with the duly required notices. I hereby depose and say that I statements herein and attached

statements submitted are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and

xfi#il'l
subscribed before me this
or tr0nun-u-ri- oa -.

....':-{
-. t-'..

91AL O

otary Pu bt

or,\ R i_' ,

EXf'IRES

05/lli 2015

.PL

ure of A

CEORGI.{

/s1

9852.03

updated 8/2sl2023

o
2

z. n'.
T*o

1".,, Afi?"

pplicant

Use of Property:

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS

(Required by Title 36, Chapter 674, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

Reference

as follows:
Application filed on 

- 

20- to rezone real property described

41.558 portion of PIN 7-0975-0'1-024

Within the two years preceding the above filing date, the applicant has made campaign contributions aggregating

S250.00 or more to each mem ber of the City Council of the City of Port Wentworth who will consider the application

and is Iisted below. List (1) the name and official position of the local government official and (2) the dollar amount,

descrlption and date of each campaign contribution.

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and to the best of my knowledge and

be lief

and su scribed before me thisSUaorn todfa 20tl nature of Applicantday of

Notary Pu

d\AL DF::',,..

<6'i;ii':ry'1

1
GEOnGIA i !

05/l -i/1015 ,' s'

,. -PrruL\Y.,:S\ s.

'^,AM"ao\."

updated 8/25l2023

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



Reference: Application filed on .20
described as follows:

to rezone real property

The undersigned official of the City of Port Wentworth has a property interest (Note 1) in said property as follows

The undersigned official of the City of Pon Wentworth has financial interest (Note 2) in a business entity (Note 3) which

has property interest in said property, which financial interests as follows:

The undersigned official of the City of Port wentworth has a member ofthe family (Note 4) having a property interest in

said property or a financial interest in a business entity whlch has a property interest in said property, which family

member and property interest or financial interest are as follows:

Note 1: Property lnterest - Direct ownership of real property, including any percentage of ownership less than total ownership

Note 2: Financial lnterest - Ali direct ownership interest of the total assets or capital stock of a business entity where such

ownership interest is 10 percent or more

Note 3: business entity - Corporation, partnership, limited partnership, firm, enterprise, franchise, association or trust
Note 4: Member of family - Spouse, mother, father, brother, sister, son, or daughter

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and

belief.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this

_ day of___ _.--..-.-- 20

Notary Public

Updakda/25/2023

Signature of Officlal

DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS

(Required by Title 36, Chapter 674, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



R:^Tflx,rD
JMUSKAAN LLC
PIN: 70975 02005
Property Address: 387 Augusta Road, Poft Wenlworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 829 Granite Lane, Savannah, Georgia 31419

Alfred L. Boyett
PIN: 70975 02004
Property Address: 7532 Highway 21, Pofi Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 7 532 Highway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

Reyno Zamorano-Pineda
PIN: 70975 02003
Property Address: 7538 Highway 21, Port Wentworlh, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 122 Chevis Road, Savannah, Georgia 31419

Evelyn Jones

PIN: 70975 02002
Propefiy Address : 7 542 Highway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 7542 Highway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

RICE HOPE _ CJ, L.L.C.
PIN: 70906 04037
Property Address: I00 Magnolia Boulevard, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 450233, Atlanta, Georgia 31145

FAITH GOSPEL TEMPLE DELIVERENCE CENTER, INC.
PIN: 70975 02001
Property Address: 7548 Highway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: PO. Box 18277, Savannah, Georgia31418

RICE HOPE _ CJ, L.L.C,
PIN: 70906 04067
Property Address: 80 Magnolia Boulevard, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: PO. Box 450233, Atlanta, Geolgia 31145

C)dessa Adams
PIN: 70975 020024
Property Address: 7550 Highway 21, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
MailingAddress: 105 E 9tl'Street, funcon, Georyia31326

SPH 21, LLC
PIN: 70976 010018
Propefiy Address: 0 Augusta Road, Po$ Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 5 Concourse Parkway, Suite 200, Atlanta, Georyia 30328

Surrounding l'ronertv Orvners Within 300 I'eet

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

P
O

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



SPI] 21, LLC
PIN:70975 0102B
Property Address: 0 Jeffels Road, Port Wentworlh, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 5 Concourse Parkway, Suite 200, Atlanta, Georgia 30328

LMS-PORT WENTWORTH, LLC
PIN: 70975 01025
Property Address: 0 Jeffels Road, Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407
Mailing Address: 3975 Asbury Road, Birmingham, Alabama 35248

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

P
O

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



AUTHORIZATION OF PROPERTY OWNER

I swear that I am the owner of the property which is the subject matter of the attached application, as ls

shown in the records of Port Wentworth, Georgia.

I authorize the person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of a variance or for the rezoning of

this property.

Name of Applicant: Ronald A. Royal

Address: 6510 Hwy 21, Port Wentworlh, Georgia 31407

Telephone Number: ?z- zz-r-ctl/

Signatu re of Owner

Personally appea red before me

N Pu blic

iD 7/ -Jlas
Date

tI

6)
rD 7s

IIt,

who swears that the lnformation contained in this authorization i5 true and correct to the best of his or

her knowledge and belief.

lt

12.B.c

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-A

U
T

H
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 O

W
N

E
R

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



R

EGE
JAN 0 2 202rt

BEGINNING AT A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET BEARING THE HORIZONTAL COORDINATES OF

NORTH ING:805,966.99', EASTING:95 4,744.06' (P.O,8,1); THENCE N 11'49'54" W A DISTANCE OF

2,255.65'TO A 4"x4" CoNCRETE MONUMENT FoUND; THENCE S 80"02's3" E A DISTANCE OF 968.92'To
A CORNER THAT FALLS lN A 18" LAUREL OAK; THENCE S 1,3"54'27" E A DISTANCE OF 1,643,94'TO A 5/8"
IRON REBAR SET; THENCE S 63"22's1" W A DISTANCE oF 992.14'To A 5/8' IRON REBAR SET; WHICH lS

THE POINT OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF I,81O,251SQUARE FEET,41.558 ACRES.

TRACT 1

12.B.d

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-L

E
G

A
L

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.B.e

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-P

L
A

T
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



G

E

O

R

G

I

A

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

1

TRACT 1

TOTAL - 41.558 AC

N/F

LMS PORT WENTWORTH, LLC

J

E

F

F

E

R

S

 

R

O

A

D

 

(

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

)

N/F

 SPH 21, LLC

N/F

SPH 21, LLC

TRACT 2

TOTAL - 10.125 AC

601,600 SF WAREHOUSE
1,280' x 470'

FUTURE ROADWAY

SIGNALIZED
INTERSECTION

G

E

O

R

G

I

A

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

1

486,000 SF
1,350' x 360'

100' BUFFER - 15' HIGH BERM W
ITH PLANTINGS

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

 K
er

n
 &

 C
o

., 
L

L
C

. 
 

©
 2

0
1
3
 T

h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
an

d
 i
ts

 r
ep

ro
d
u
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 f
ir

m
 a

n
d
 m

ay
 n

o
t 

b
e 

re
p

ro
d
u
ce

d
, 
p

u
b

lis
h

ed
, 
o

r 
u
se

d
 i
n

 a
n

y 
w

ay
 w

it
h

 o
u
t 

th
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
K

er
n

 &
 C

o
., 

L
L

C
.

STAMP:

STAMP:

ORIGINAL RELEASED FOR
CONSTRUCTION DATE:

NO      DATE       REVISION

        NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

        RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE: ______________   BY: ___________

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

F
ri

, 
2
2
 D

e
c
 2

0
2
3
 -

 8
:5

6
a
m

  
c
z
it

tr
o

u
e
r

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
2
3
0
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

R
o

y
a
L

 W
e
tl

a
n

d
 E

x
h

ib
it

 8
.3

0
.2

3
.d

w
g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

7
 M

al
l 
C

o
u
rt

 (
3
1
4
0
6
) 

P
.O

. 
B

o
x 

1
5
1
7
9
 (

3
1
4
1
6
) 

S
av

an
n

ah
, 
G

eo
rg

ia
 (

9
1
2
) 

3
5
4
-8

4
0
0

K
e
rn

 &
 C

o., 
L

L
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e
e
rs

  
  

  
 L

a
n

d
 S

u
rv

e
y
o

rs
  

  
  

 L
a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
e
rs

A
rc

h
it

e
c
ts

  
  

L
a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 A

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

  
  

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

S
c
ie

n
ti

st

3
1
9
  

W
al

n
u
t 

 S
tr

ee
t 

 S
u
it

e 
 A

  
S
ta

te
sb

o
ro

, 
G

eo
rg

ia
 3

0
4
5
8
  

P
h

o
n

e:
  

(9
1
2
) 

2
2
5
-3

3
7
3

1" = 300'

C-1

CRZ

CRZ

12/21/23

200230.000

SITE
-

PLAN

G
A

 H
W

Y
 2

1 
- 

P
O

R
T

 W
E

N
T

W
O

R
T

H
, 

G
A

A
T

R
O

Y
A

L
 T

R
A

C
T

P
L

A
N

S
 O

F

12.B.f

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 6
51

0 
H

W
Y

 2
1 

7-
09

75
-0

1-
02

4 
20

24
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

  (
29

71
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 R

o
ya

l T
ra

ct
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 70975 01025 70975 01025 DB:124 PG:2651

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' R/W CAB: B48 PG: B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°39'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S43°42'3"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S62°28'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°07'53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°09'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,290.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S19°14'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2°13'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70975 01028 DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70906 01001B DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
WE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY CONCRETE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S43°42'3"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°07'53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S62°28'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°39'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 70975 01025 70975 01025 DB:124 PG:2651

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' R/W CAB: B48 PG: B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°09'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,290.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
WE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S19°14'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY CONCRETE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2°13'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70975 01028 DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70906 01001B DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED



DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT 
REPORT 

Prepared for Port Wentworth 
DRI #4121 

Royal Tract - SPH 21 
February 22, 2024 

 

Prepared by: 
Coastal Regional Commission 

1181 Coastal Dr. SW 
Darien, GA

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  i 

Table of Contents 

1. APPLICATION INFORMATION ........................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Jurisdiction and Local Government Information ............................................................................. 1 

1.2 Applicant ................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION...................................................................................................................................................... 1 

2.1 Summary ................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

3. PARCEL DATA ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

3.1 Size of Property..................................................................................................................................................... 1 

3.2 General Location ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

4. LAND USE INFORMATION ................................................................................................................................................. 2 

4.1 Site Map .....................................................................................................................................................................2 

4.2 Built Features ........................................................................................................................................................ 2 

4.3 Future Development Map Designation (Character Area) ...................................................... 2 

4.4 Zoning District ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 

5. CONSISTENCY AND COMPATIBILITY ANALYSIS ................................................................................................ 2 

5.1 Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan........................................................................................ 2 

6. CONSISTENCY WITH REGIONAL PLAN OF COASTAL GEORGIA ............................................................. 3 

6.1 Summary ................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

6.2 Regional Land Use Map .................................................................................................................................. 3 

6.3 Area Requiring Special Attention (ARSA) .......................................................................................... 4 

6.4 Green Infrastructure ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

6.5 Wetlands ................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

6.6 Coastal Stormwater Supplement............................................................................................................ 5 

7. COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (CEDS) ...................................................... 6 

7.1 Summary………………………………………………………. ...................................................................................................... 6 

7.2 Population and Employment Trends .................................................................................................... 6 

7.3 Economic Impact…….….……………………………...................................................................................................... 6 

8. CRC RESOURCES ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

8.1 Georgia Coastal Regional Design Character Guidelines ........................................................... 7 

8.2 Regional Commission Recommendations ........................................................................................ 8 

8.3 Public Comment.................................................................................................................................................. 8 

 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  1 

1.0   Applicant Information 

1.1 Jurisdiction and Local Government Information 

City of Port Wentworth, Georgia   

Jason Stewart 

jstewart@portwentworthga.gov 

912-999-2084 

1.2 Applicant 

SPH 21, LLC 

chris@crossgateconsulting.com 

404-358-1178 

2.0   Project Description 

2.1 Summary 

DRI #4121 is a proposed 601,600 SF warehouse with associated infrastructure improvements. 
Parcel involved in this request for rezoning is 70975 01024. The action being taken by the 
local government at this time is rezoning. 

3.0   Parcel Data 

3.1 Size of Property 

The existing property is approximately 48.67 gross acres.  

3.2 General Location 

The property is located within the City of Port Wentworth, Georgia, west of SR 21 (Augusta 
Road) and North of Jeffers Road.  

4.0   Land Use Information 

4.1 Site Map 

The proposed site plan for the property is attached. 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=1094&LayerID=27085&PageTypeID=4&PageID=10981&KeyValue=70975%2001024


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  2 

4.2 Built Features 

Applicant states that no existing uses will be displaced if the proposed development is 
approved.  

4.3 Future Development Map Designation (Character Area) 

According to the City of Porth Wentworth Comprehensive Plan, the Character Area Map 
indicates that the project site is determined to be within the Suburban Character Area.  

4.4 Zoning District 

The existing zoning of the property in Port Wentworth is R-1. 

5.0   Consistency and Compatibility Analysis 

5.1 Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The Port Wentworth Comprehensive Plan was adopted in March of 2022. The Character 
Area map designates the project area as Suburban. According to the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan “[Suburban] areas include where typical types of suburban residential 
subdivision development have occurred or will occur in the future. Development within 
these areas is encouraged to include neo-traditional, conservation subdivision, or cluster 
development patterns”. The proposed warehouse and associated industrial zoning 
designation is therefore inconsistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan and Character 
Area map.  

6.0   Consistency with the Regional Plan of Coastal Georgia 

6.1 Summary 

Since 1964, the Coastal Regional Commission of Georgia (CRC) has been dedicated to 
serving the ten counties and thirty-five cities of Coastal Georgia. The CRC region 
encompasses Georgia’s eastern shore, stretching almost 100 miles from the northern tip of 
Savannah to the southern city of St. Marys. The region is home to historic towns, industries, 
military installations, major ports including the fourth busiest and fastest-growing container 
terminal in the U.S., and a thriving tourism trade, each driving some part of the region’s 
economic engine. Equally important, one finds abundant wildlife, beautiful beaches and 
over 2300 miles of tributaries and salt marsh.   

In 2022, the CRC Council adopted the updated Coastal Georgia Regional Plan to satisfy 
planning requirements for regional commissions established under the Georgia Planning 
Act and the Department of Community Affairs’ Regional Planning Requirements.  The plan 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

https://www.dca.ga.gov/sites/default/files/ci.portwentworth.plnupdt.04052022.pdf
https://crc4.sharepoint.com/sites/CRCPlanning/Planning%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FCRCPlanning%2FPlanning%20Documents%2FRegional%20Planning%2FRegional%20Plan%2F2022%20Update%2F2022%20CRC%20Regional%20Plan%20Final%20Adopted%20Draft%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FCRCPlanning%2FPlanning%20Documents%2FRegional%20Planning%2FRegional%20Plan%2F2022%20Update&p=true&ga=1


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  3 

aims to secure a successful future for the region’s communities and achieve a common 
vision through comprehensive planning and collaborative implementation.   

The CRC recommends that the applicant and local government review the Coastal Georgia 
Regional Plan to ensure that the proposed development is consistent with the 
Implementation Program in relation to: 

• Water and Wastewater 

• Stormwater 

• Transportation 

• Cultural and Historic Resources 

• Natural Resources 

• Regional Growth Management 

• Economic Development 

• Tourism 

• Quality of Life 

• Coastal Vulnerability and 

• Governance 

6.2 Regional Land Use Map 

The Regional Land Use Map analyzes current development patterns in terms of 
urbanization. Three categories are used to represent these patterns: conservation, rural, 
developing, and developed.  

Conservation areas are to be preserved in order to protect important regional resources or 
environmentally sensitive areas of the region. 

Rural areas are not expected to urbanize or require urban services in the next 20 years. 
These areas are characterized by sparsely developed non-urban areas where the land is 
primarily used for farming, forestry, very low density residential or open space uses. 

Developing areas are expected to urbanize and require provision of new urban services in 
the next 20 years. These services will include water and sewer service at a minimum. 

Developed areas currently exhibit urban type development patterns, and currently have 
access to urban services. These areas typically include higher density residential areas, 
along with industrial and commercial developments. 

According to the Regional Land Use Map, portions of the site within DRI #4121 are in a rural 
area, and portions are considered to be in a developing area. The rural area is 
geographically consistent with the existing flood zone along the Black Creek Tributary #2.  

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  4 

6.3 Area Requiring Special Attention (ARSA) 

The Areas Requiring Special Attention Map was developed by considering the Regional 
Land Use Map and incorporating local comprehensive plans and the regionally important 
resources map to evaluate land use trends within the region and identify areas requiring 
special attention. These areas include: 

• Threatened Regionally Important Resources: Areas where crucial natural or cultural 
resources are likely to be impacted by development.  

• Areas of Significant Natural Resources: where Regionally Important Resources 
(green infrastructure, groundwater recharge areas, wetlands, priority forests, 
floodplains, and conservation areas) are likely to be threatened by development. 

• Rapid Development: Areas where rapid development or change of land uses are 
likely to occur, especially where the rate of development has and/or may outpace 
the availability of community facilities and services, including transportation. 

• Redevelopment: Areas in need of redevelopment and/or significant improvements 
to aesthetics or attractiveness. 

The Areas Requiring Special Attention Defining Narrative includes lists of  

• Recommended Development Patterns  
• Types of Land Uses, and 
• Implementation Measures 

According to the ARSA Map, the location of DRI #4121 does contain areas of significant 
natural resources, which is an area where Regionally Important Resources (green 
infrastructure, groundwater recharge areas, wetlands, priority forests, floodplains, and 
conservation areas) are likely to be threatened by development, however areas to the 
south of the site fall into this category. The area of significant natural resources is 
geographically consistent with the existing flood zone along the Black Creek Tributary #2.  

 

6.4 Green Infrastructure  

As part of the Conservation area in the Coastal Land Use Map, areas of Green Infrastructure 
include, but are not limited to, wetlands, flood plains, streams, endangered species and 
critical habitat and prime agricultural lands, federal or state listed species. These areas 
include essential buffers along streams and wetlands, and water bodies that require 
riparian buffers. Identifying and preserving coastal Georgia’s Green Infrastructure network 
will support biodiversity and functional ecosystems, protect native plant and animal 
species, lessen the disruption to natural landscapes, limit invasive species, which in turn will 
enhance and support water quality, provide for quality growth land use planning, support 
the implementation of stormwater management plans and regulations, encourage the 
creation of transportation corridors and connections, foster ecotourism, tourism and 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  5 

outdoor recreation, enhance the business climate, and ensure a high quality of life for 
coastal residents. According to the Green Infrastructure Map, the location of DRI #4121 
does show wetlands and major floodplains, which would be impacted by the proposed 
development.  

6.5 Wetlands 

Wetlands and floodplain are indicated to be located within the development site.  
According to the National Wetlands Inventory there is a 4.34 acre Freshwater Forested 
/Shrub Wetland habitat is classified as a PFO1A, generally adjacent to the Black Creek 
Tributary #2. Development (as shown on preliminary, conceptual drawings) appears to 
intrude upon both wetlands and flood plain. Mitigation of impact will be fully addressed 
once the precise scope and location of development is known. 

6.6 Coastal Stormwater Supplement 

The CRC would recommend that the City of Port Wentworth adopt the CSS Ordinance 
and/or ensure the Coastal Stormwater Supplement (CSS) is implemented for stormwater 
management. 

The project will utilize ponds and buffering pursuant to local, state, and federal regulations. 

7.0   Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) 

7.1 Summary 

The Coastal Regional Commission serves as the Economic Development District (EDD) for 
the region’s six coastal counties and four inland counties as designated by the U.S. 
Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA).  

In accordance with EDA, a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) is 
updated and submitted every five years. This important document sets the regional 
economic development planning process for 2017-2022. The CEDS brings together public 
and private sectors to create an economic road map to strengthen Coastal Georgia’s 
regional economy.  

The CEDS documents provides an analysis of the region’s economy which was used as the 
guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, developing, and implementing a plan of 
action; and identifying investment priorities and funding sources. By implementing this 
strategy, the region remains eligible for economic development assistance investment from 
EDA. This investment can help fund local infrastructure projects, technology-led economic 
development projects, and strategies to respond to sudden and severe economic 
situations. 

 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

https://hazards-fema.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8b0adb51996444d4879338b5529aa9cd
https://fwsprimary.wim.usgs.gov/wetlands/apps/wetlands-mapper/
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/604a5742bda3355b81a9d706/t/60a2bfa98b42b505d0bc650d/1621278644321/CEDS_2017_2022.pdf


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  6 

7.2 Population and Employment Trends 

County 2000 2010 2020 2030 

Chatham 232,048 265,896 304,482 339,092 

Source: U.S. Census; Georgia Coast 2030: Population Projections for the 10-County Region 

The county’s population is expected to grow from its 2000 level of 232,048 to 339,092 by 
2030, according to the US Census Bureau. The Coastal Region’s population in 2030 is 
projected to be 962,956, which is an increase from the 2000 level of 558,350. Savannah 
and Chatham County represent over a third of all the residents of coastal Georgia.  
 
The Coastal Georgia region supported 312,400 jobs in 2000 and is expected to support 
435,050 jobs in 2030. The Chatham County unemployment rate in December of 2023 was 
2.6 percent1. 
 

7.3 Economic Impact 

The estimated value of the project at build-out is $ 72,000,000. The estimated annual local 
tax revenues likely to be generated by the proposed development is $ 1,036,800. The 
applicant indicates that the regional work force is sufficient to fill the demand created by 
the proposed project and that it will not displace any existing land uses. 

8.0   CRC Resources 

8.1 Georgia Coastal Regional Character Design Guidelines 

The Georgia Coastal Regional Character Design Guidelines applies primarily to design 
elements and improvements that influence the public realm. Generally, focus on those 
influences that impact viewshed, identity, microclimate, sustainability and in limited cases 
public safety. It should be understood that these guidelines are recommendations only, not 
development standards, legal ordinances, or conditions that constitute approval or 
disapproval. They are a suggested framework to meet the State of Georgia’s regional 
planning goals and implied procedures to implement portions of the Coastal Georgia 
Regional Plan.  

The articulation of mass, form, materials, theme, and design methodologies are the primary 
constituents of the guidelines. The public realm is best represented as those areas 
associated with public rights-of-way and public space. Highways, streets, roads, corridors, 
trails, thoroughfares, greenways, blueways and parks are the viewpoint. All areas adjacent 
to these elements are the viewshed: development parcels, road shoulders and the edges of 

 
1 Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis. (2023) FRED, federal reserve economic data. St. Louis, MO. Unemployment 
Rate in Chatham County, GA (GACHAT9URN) | FRED | St. Louis Fed (stlouisfed.org) 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

https://crc-planning-hub-segrass.hub.arcgis.com/documents/1d48b873fdbc4ede815d17c2e83c2651/explore
https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/GACHAT9URN
https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/GACHAT9URN


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA 7 

private and public lands. In its simplest form, the guideline elements addressed from the 
viewpoint to the viewshed are as follows: 

• Utilizing Vegetation and Landscape

• Signage

• Pavement Surfaces

• Lighting

• Enclosures, Walls, and Fences

• Accessory Structures

According to The Coastal Character Design Guidelines, the proposed development is 
located in the Tidewater Hearth Character Region and may utilize the Character Key for 
Suburban Residential.  

8.2 Regional Commission Recommendations 

After reviewing the materials provided, the proposed development is inconsistent with Port 
Wentworth’s adopted Comprehensive Plan. The parcel in question currently has a 
Suburban Character Area designation, and the plan states that “it will be important to 
ensure new development adheres to the desired character and vision for this area”. The 
proposed development does not adhere to the desired character and vision for the 
Suburban Character Area. 

The proposed development is also inconsistent with the adopted Regional Comprehensive 
Plan, as most of the parcel is in a rural area, and an area of significant natural resources. 
Additionally, as shown the proposed development will impact an existing wetland and flood 
zone along the Black Creek Tributary #2, and may impact historical drainage patterns and 
flows, especially during a major flood event.  

8.3 Public Comment 

Public Comment is attached. 

For technical assistance contact Simon Hardt, Senior Regional Planner at 
shardt@crc.ga.gov 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

https://www.dca.ga.gov/sites/default/files/ci.portwentworth.plnupdt.04052022.pdf
https://www.dca.ga.gov/sites/default/files/ci.portwentworth.plnupdt.04052022.pdf
mailto:shardt@crc.ga.gov


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  1 

CONCPET PLAN – APPLICANT PROVIDED  

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



G

E

O

R

G

I

A

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

1

TRACT 1

TOTAL - 41.558 AC

N/F

LMS PORT WENTWORTH, LLC

J

E

F

F

E

R

S

 

R

O

A

D

 

(

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

)

N/F

 SPH 21, LLC

N/F

SPH 21, LLC

TRACT 2

TOTAL - 10.125 AC

601,600 SF WAREHOUSE
1,280' x 470'

FUTURE ROADWAY

SIGNALIZED
INTERSECTION

G

E

O

R

G

I

A

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

1

486,000 SF
1,350' x 360'

100' BUFFER - 15' HIGH BERM W
ITH PLANTINGS

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

 K
er

n
 &

 C
o

., 
L

L
C

. 
 

©
 2

0
1
3
 T

h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
an

d
 i
ts

 r
ep

ro
d
u
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 f
ir

m
 a

n
d
 m

ay
 n

o
t 

b
e 

re
p

ro
d
u
ce

d
, 
p

u
b

lis
h

ed
, 
o

r 
u
se

d
 i
n

 a
n

y 
w

ay
 w

it
h

 o
u
t 

th
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
K

er
n

 &
 C

o
., 

L
L

C
.

STAMP:

STAMP:

ORIGINAL RELEASED FOR
CONSTRUCTION DATE:

NO      DATE       REVISION

        NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

        RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DATE: ______________   BY: ___________

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

F
ri

, 
2
2
 D

e
c
 2

0
2
3
 -

 8
:5

6
a
m

  
c
z
it

tr
o

u
e
r

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
2
3
0
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

R
o

y
a
L

 W
e
tl

a
n

d
 E

x
h

ib
it

 8
.3

0
.2

3
.d

w
g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

DRAWING TITLE:

STAMP:

STAMP:

7
 M

al
l 
C

o
u
rt

 (
3
1
4
0
6
) 

P
.O

. 
B

o
x 

1
5
1
7
9
 (

3
1
4
1
6
) 

S
av

an
n

ah
, 
G

eo
rg

ia
 (

9
1
2
) 

3
5
4
-8

4
0
0

K
e
rn

 &
 C

o., 
L

L
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e
e
rs

  
  

  
 L

a
n

d
 S

u
rv

e
y
o

rs
  

  
  

 L
a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
e
rs

A
rc

h
it

e
c
ts

  
  

L
a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 A

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

  
  

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

S
c
ie

n
ti

st

3
1
9
  

W
al

n
u
t 

 S
tr

ee
t 

 S
u
it

e 
 A

  
S
ta

te
sb

o
ro

, 
G

eo
rg

ia
 3

0
4
5
8
  

P
h

o
n

e:
  

(9
1
2
) 

2
2
5
-3

3
7
3

1" = 300'

C-1

CRZ

CRZ

12/21/23

200230.000

SITE
-

PLAN

G
A

 H
W

Y
 2

1 
- 

P
O

R
T

 W
E

N
T

W
O

R
T

H
, 

G
A

A
T

R
O

Y
A

L
 T

R
A

C
T

P
L

A
N

S
 O

F

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 70975 01025 70975 01025 DB:124 PG:2651

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' R/W CAB: B48 PG: B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°39'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S43°42'3"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S62°28'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°07'53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°09'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,290.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S19°14'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2°13'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70975 01028 DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70906 01001B DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
WE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY CONCRETE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 70975 01025 70975 01025 DB:124 PG:2651

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69°39'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' R/W CAB: B48 PG: B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70975 01028 DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,290.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2°13'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN:70906 01001B DB:2986 PG:185

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S43°42'3"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S62°28'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°07'53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°09'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S19°14'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY CONCRETE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
F



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  2 

 

CHARACTER AREA MAP  

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.B.g

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

czittrouer
PolyLine

czittrouer
Callout
PIN 7-0975-01-024

czittrouer

czittrouer
PIN 7-0975-01-024



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  3 

 

ZONING DISTRICTS MAP  

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User

Community

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN,

GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH
PROPOSED ZONING MAP

Zoning Classification
Single-Family Residential (R-1)

Suburban Single-Family Residential (R-2)

Old Town Residential (R-3)

Mixed Residential (R-4)

Multi-Family Residential (R-5)

Neighborhood Commerical (C-1)

General Commercial (C-2)

Interchange Commercial (C-3)

Industrial (I-1)

Planned United Development (PUD)

Parcels

µ
12.B.g

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

czittrouer
PolyLine

czittrouer
Callout
PIN 7-0975-01-024

czittrouer
PIN 7-0975-01-024

czittrouer



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  4 

 

REGIONAL IMPACT MAPS  

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Black Creek

Jeffers Rd

21

Saussy
Rd

Jeffers Rd

Bla
ck
Cr
ee
k

21

Lakeside Blvd

M
ag

no
l ia

Bl
vd

Rice Creek 3-8

Black
Creek

21

CRC DRI #4121 Future Development Map

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Esri Community Maps Contributors,
Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

Future Development

Developing

Rural

1/30/2024, 12:33:29 PM

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

CRC, DCA
Esri Community Maps Contributors, Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Black Creek

Jeffers Rd

21

Saussy
Rd

Jeffers Rd

Bla
ck
Cr
ee
k

21

Lakeside Blvd

M
ag

no
l ia

Bl
vd

Rice Creek 3-8

Black
Creek

21

CRC DRI #4121 ARSA Map

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Esri Community Maps Contributors,
Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

ARSA - Areas Requiring Special Attention

Areas of Rapid Development

Areas of Significant Natural Resources

1/30/2024, 12:37:24 PM

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

CRC, DCA
Esri Community Maps Contributors, Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Black Creek

Jeffers Rd

21

Saussy
Rd

Jeffers Rd

Bla
ck
Cr
ee
k

21

Lakeside Blvd

M
ag

no
l ia

Bl
vd

Rice Creek 3-8

Black
Creek

21

CRC DRI #4121 Green Infrastructure Map

CRC,Georgia Forestry, Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Esri Community
Maps Contributors, Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri,
TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,
EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

Green Infrastructure Class

Core

Corridor

Multi-Use Buffer Areas

Sites

FEMA Flood Zones

1% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

1/30/2024, 12:38:35 PM

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

CRC, DCA
Esri Community Maps Contributors, Savannah Area GIS, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA 5 

PROPERTY RECORD CARDS 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.B.g

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



12.B.g

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA  6 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



The City of Savannah has the following two (2) responses regarding the impact of this 
development project.  I have also included the POC for each department.  Thank you. 
 
Water Resources, would like to make the following statements regarding the regional 
impact of the development described in DRI#4121: 

• As the primary source of potable water for Port Wentworth, Savannah would be 
supplying the additional demand to this site.  

• The listed demand .00310MGD (2.15gpm) is generally consistent with similar 
developed properties nearby that are direct customers of Savannah.  

• The portion of the Savannah potable water system that provides water to Port 
Wentworth is near its full capacity while maintaining ability to always provide 
sufficient flows and pressures to all customers. A schedule for future demand has 
been developed with Port Wentworth as a part of the 4th amendment to the water & 
sewer agreement (1/18/24). As this development is likely not part of the demand 
accounted for in the current demand schedule, the City of Savannah cannot commit 
to providing the estimated additional supply to Port Wentworth for this or other 
similar developments without an update to Port Wenworth’s water demand 
schedule. Such an update would be based on reasonable estimates of the timing of 
development, timing of upgrades to Savannah’s system to provide additional supply, 
and potential cost sharing arrangements for any necessary upgrades. While this 
individual demand is small, it is the position of Savannah that demand growth 
projections must be packaged together and built into demand schedules 
accompanied by supply assessment in this way to prevent demand growth from 
overtaking supply over time. 

 
James Laplander, PE 
Director of Water and Sewer Planning and Engineering 
Office:  (912) 651-6573 
Cell: (912) 658-6973 
jlaplander@Savannahga.gov 
 
 
Traffic Engineering Department 

• It is my recommendation a traffic study/traffic impact analysis be prepared for 
review by the local government and state agency.  

• SR 21 in this section has over 37,900 vehicles on a daily average. Signalization 
without analysis is not recommended.  

 
Kenneth B Cullens Jr 
Civil Engineer 
Traffic Engineering 
Phone: (912) 525-3100 Ext. 6461 
Fax: (912) 525-1535 
kenneth.cullens@savannahga.gov 
 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)

mailto:jlaplander@Savannahga.gov
mailto:kenneth.cullens@savannahga.gov


DRI #4121: Royal Tract – SPH 21– Port Wentworth, GA 7 

AFFECTED PARTIES THAT RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF THIS DRI AND 
FINAL REPORT 

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



Email address First name Last name
robertplz@yahoo.com Robert Parker
rmilie@thunderboltga.org Robert Milie
ksaunds@crc.ga.gov Karen Saunds
kelly.o'rourke@gadnr.org Kelly O'Rourke
halll@thempc.org Laura Hall
recept@planters.net Lori Boulineau
achood@dot.ga.gov Alan Hood
jmcoughlin@co.camden.ga.us James Coughlin
pmonahan@savannahga.gov Pat Monahan
mmassey@savannahga.gov Mark Massey
director@libertycounty.org Leah Poole
bar3134654@gmail.com Ben Rozer
president@camdenchamber.com Allison Shores
lameisha.kelly@effinghamhospital.org LaMeisha Kelly
cakridge@bloomingdale-ga.gov Charles Akridge
jehaigler@co.camden.ga.us Julie Haigler
mhardin@glynncounty-ga.gov
sboatright@co.camden.ga.us
kerriebieber.wcccw@yahoo.com Kerrie Bieber
jpope@bullochcounty.net James Pope
sleif@glynncounty-ga.gov Stefanie Leif
ikellett@crc.ga.gov Ian Kellett
susan@onehundredmiles.org Susan Inman
creich@georgiaconservancy.org Courtney Reich
fneal@thunderboltga.org Frank Neal
pwilson@georgia.org Pat Wilson
kquillet@bryan-county.org Kandi Quillet
sherrell.davis@mcintoshcounty-ga.gov Sherrell Davis
michalakl@thempc.org Leah Michalak
wcorbitt@effinghamcounty.org Wesley Corbitt
shardt@crc.ga.gov Simon Hardt
dbethune@gardencity-ga.gov Don Bethune
clint.stanley@libertycountyga.com Clint Stanley
tcallanan@effinghamcounty.org Tim Callanan
rstaffins@bgicoc.com Ralph Staffins
hhill@gefa.ga.gov
hannah@onehundredmiles.org Hannah Mendillo
wpoon@crc.ga.gov Wincy Poon
director@screvencounty.com Grace Waits
cityhall@cityofflemington.org City Hall
gnorton@cityofportwentworth.com Gary Norton
tharris@glynncounty-ga.gov Toby Harris
bill_frechette@dnr.state.ga.us Bill Frechette
cakridge@bloomingdale-ga.com Charles Akridge
chap.bennett@amerisbank.com Chap Bennett
clovell@richmondhill-ga.gov Chris Lovell

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



cotydan@hotmail.com Dan Coty
dwaters@bryan-county.org Donna Waters
info@ogeecheeriverkeeper.org Simona Perry
ezraprice@bellsouth.net Ezra Price
gshaw@cityoftybee.org George Shaw
district5@co.camden.ga.us
hparadice@eda.gov Phil Paradice
jill.andrews@dnr.state.ga.us Jill Andrews
jleviner@cityoftybee.org Jan Leviner
jrhunger@hungerpiller.com Jimmy Hungerpiller
kberry@co.camden.ga.us Katie Bishop
kclark@gefa.ga.gov Kevin Clark
kcroasmun@bryan-county.org Kirk Croasmun
klee@cityofrincon.com Ken Lee
manning@hogarc.org Brett Manning
maryann_odum@yahoo.com Maryann Odum
mayor@pembrokega.net Tiffany Zeigler
patrick.zoucks@mcintoshcounty-ga.gov Patrick Zoucks
sjohnson@effinghamcounty.org Stephanie Johnson
rhonda@gardencity-ga.gov Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles
riverkeeper@savannahriverkeeper.org Tonya Bonitatibus
ron.tolley@lcda.com Ron Tolley
susdev@gate.net Dave Kyler
tratcliffe@hinesvillelaw.com Tom Ratcliffe
ttollison@seda.org Trip Tollison
aburns@crc.ga.gov Allen Burns
joey.brown@libertycountyga.com Joey Brown
alscott@chathamcounty.org Al Scott
alice.vick@dnr.state.ga.us Alice Vick
btaylor@bryan-county.org Ben Taylor
jfcoley@southernco.com Jason Coley
anna.chafin@bryan-county.org Anna Chafin
jennifer.fordham@dca.ga.gov Jennifer Fordham
dorothyhglisson@yahoo.com Dorothy Glisson
jacksonj@thempc.org Jackie Jackson
lotsonm@thempc.org Marcus Lotson
creed@savannahga.gov Cornelia Reed
cmobley@gaconservancy.org Clay Mobley
jbocook@chathamcounty.org Janice Bocook
apoppell@darientel.net Adam Poppell
director@rhbcchamber.org Kathryn Johnson
jricketson@thelcpc.org Jeff Ricketson
rfeldner@gardencity-ga.gov Ron Feldner
aclement@bryan-county.org Amanda Clement
qmoore@bryan-county.org Quint Moore
pconner@bullochcounty.net Paul Conner
bill.sawyer@cityofguyton.com Bill Sawyer

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



kdunnigan@effinghamcounty.org Kate Dunnigan
slucki@gefa.ga.gov
bnyers@glynncounty-ga.gov Robert Nyers
lizlynn@bryan-county.org Liz Lynn
longcoappr@windstream.net Robert Parker
sctaxassess@planters.net Stephanie Lee
mabush2@gmail.com Mark Bush
ssessions@cityoftybee.org Shirley Sessions
dgreene@richmondhill-ga.gov Dawnne Greene
tmcouch@bullochcounty.net Thomas Couch
dwills@accg.org Dave Wills
tmcqueen@dot.ga.gov T McQueen
clerk@pembrokega.net Sharroll Fanslau
kelly.hill@gadnr.org Kelly Hill
kmertz@dot.ga.gov K Mertz
mmcclellan@gfc.state.ga.us Mark McClellan
tkilmartin@cityofportwentworth.com Thomas Kilmartin
mmorris@springfieldga.org Matt Morris
cfernald@effinghamcounty.org Chelsie Fernald
zach.crumpler@gmail.com Zach Crumpler
benjy.thompson@advantagebulloch.com
cdaniels@co.camden.ga.us
tgjennings@chathamcounty.org
joseph.mosley@libertycountyga.com
carmen.cole@comegrow.global
amiller@bryan-county.org Audra Miller
jyacobacci@co.camden.ga.us Joey Yacobacci
mkaigler@chathamcounty.org
wfallon@glynncounty-ga.gov
rsimmons@longcountyga.gov
andycripps@effinghamcounty.com Andy Cripps
georgiayall@gmail.com Ronda Durney
gracia.szczech@dhs.gov Gracia Szczech
blidy@savannahga.gov Bridget Lidy
lorne.george3@sccpss.com Lorne George
bgoette@thunderboltga.org Beth Goette
ronald.felder@savannahga.gov
ddenion@thunderboltga.org Deathe Denion
rmcmurry@dot.ga.gov Russell McMurry
mpostal@glynncounty-ga.gov Maurice Postal
rmarane@crc.ga.gov Russ Marane
ronald.feldner@savannahga.gov Ronald Feldner
skirby@pooler-ga.gov Shannon Kirby
sscarboro@cityofportwentworth.com Shanta Scarboro
kcox@richmondhill-ga.gov Kristi Cox
bherndon@effinghamindustry.com Brandt Herndon
dariencitymanager@darientel.net Richard Braun

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



khoyt@mcintoshchamber.com Katarina Hoyt
christopher.j.fletcher3.civ@mail.mil Chris Fletcher
jmclean@savannahairport.com Jerry McClean
socsconnection@gmail.com Connie Shreve
superintendent@sccpss.com Ann Levett, ED.d
sfalls@bryan-county.org
ltyson@bryan-county.org
ppatton@bullochcounty.net
clerk@bullochcounty.net
vwhite@bullochcounty.net
rnewton@bullochcounty.net
csteinmann@bullochcounty.net
landon@statesborochamber.com
cyfeazel@camdencountyga.gov
gbbishop@camdencountyga.gov
dhharris@co.camden.ga.us
boa@chathamcounty.org
bbrantley@savannahchamber.com
sjohnson@effinghamcouonty.org
taxassessor@effinghamcounty.org
ttollison@wtcsavannah.org
wneal@glynncounty-ga.gov
rvakulich@glynncounty-ga.gov
ryanmoore@goldenislesdev.com
mpadgett@goldenislesdev.com
islandplanninglist@glynncounty-ga.gov
mainlandplanninglist@glynncounty-ga.gov
donald.lovette@libertycountyga.com
taxassessors@libertycountyga.com
jered.pritchett@libertycountyga.com
southernprosperityconsulting@gmail.com
longco.chamber@yahoo.com
planningandzoning@longcountyga.gov
director@mcintoshga.com
info@mcintoshchamber.com
assessors@mcintoshcounty-ga.gov
rachel@screvenworks.com
zoning@planters.net
comm.rsloper.dist4@gmail.com Reginald Loper
david.feliciano@sccpss.com David
jsmith@springfieldga.org Jennifer Smith
katarinaobermeyer@gmail.com Katarina Obermeyer
lparks@thelcpc.org Lori Parks
dbucher@bloomingdale-ga.gov Danielle Budget
scandler@effinghamcounty.org Steve Candler
leesmith@chathamcounty.org Lee Smith
sallison@richmondhill-ga.gov Scott Allison

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



nongame.review@dnr.ga.gov
rthompson@bullochcounty.net Roy Thompson
jenna.tidwell@cityofguyton.com Jenna Tidwell
rdunn@dnr.state.ga.us Richard Dunn
rseamans@gfc.state.ga.us Robert Seamans
jtouchton@cityofportwentworth.com James Touchton
planningzoning@glynncounty-ga.gov
hannahamendillo@gmail.com
vanessa.miller-kaigler@sccpss.com Vanessa Miller-Kaigler
chairman@chathamcounty.org Chester Ellis
gary.hankins@usda.gov Gary Hankins
carterinfinger@bryan-county.org Carter Infinger
merry@springfieldlegacyfoundation.org Meredith Belford
hmendillo@crc.ga.gov Hannah Mendillo
kris@ogeecheeriverkeeper.org
jlaplander@savannahga.gov Jim Laplander
rbenton@pooler-ga.gov Rebecca Benton
wilsonm@thempc.org Melanie Wilson
rglisson@glynncounty-ga.gov Ron Glisson
srobider@gardencity-ga.gov Scott Robider
acarpenter@crc.ga.gov Aaron Carpenter
dking@cityofrincon.com Dulcia King
dorremae27@gmail.com Dorre Miles
keith.payne@mcintoshcounty-ga.gov Keith Payne
michael.johnson2@sccpss.com Michael Johnson
mayorjohnson@savannahga.gov Van Johnson
meaganjones@crc.ga.gov Meagan Jones
ben@ogeecheeriverkeeper.org Ben Kirsch
talia.levine@dnr.ga.gov Talia Levine
tom@mcintoshga.com Tom Draffin
rbyrd@pooler-ga.gov Robert Byrd
sgillen@cityoftybee.org Shawn Gillen
rcarpenter@richmondhill-ga.gov Russ Carpenter

12.B.g

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
I #

41
21

 F
in

al
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

29
71

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 R
o

ya
l T

ra
ct

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



 City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2970) DOC ID: 2970  

Updated: 4/10/2024 10:25 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 1 

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application 
submitted by Steven Campisi as Agent for HP-221120 Port 

Wentworth, LLC, requesting to rezone (+/-)38.8 of 77.7 acres 
from R-1 to R-5, to allow for zoning unification for an 

approved multifamily development.  PIN # 7-0975-01-024, 
located in the 2nd Council District, on Georgia Highway 21. 

Issue/Item:  

Consideration of the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by Steven Campisi as Agent 

for HP-221120 Port Wentworth, LLC, requesting to rezone (+/-)38.8 of 77.7 acres from R-1 

to R-5, to allow for zoning unification for an approved multifamily development.  PIN # 7-

0975-01-024, located in the 2nd Council District, on Georgia Highway 21. 

 

Background:  

• A (+/-) 38-acre portion of this property was rezoned from R-A to P-C-1 in 2008 to 

allow for a Planned Neighborhood Business District.  

• The commercial development did not take place and the same portion of the 

property was then rezoned to P-R-M for multifamily residential development. 

• As a subdivision plat was not a condition of either rezoning, the parcel has been 

“split-zoned” since 2008, leaving (+/-) 39 acres in the R-A (now R-1) zoning district. 

• A site plan for Marion Village Apartments was approved at the September 22, 2022 

City Council meeting. 

 

 

Facts and Findings:  

• The approved site plan shows multifamily development throughout the 77.7-acre 

parcel, multifamily development is not permitted in the R-1 zoning district. 

• While there is concurrence as to the location of the R-5 portion of the tract, since no 

recorded plat of the (+/-) 38 acres has been recorded, there is no legal boundary 

between zoning districts. 

• To continue development of Marion Village Apartments, zoning of the entire 77.7-

acre parcel must be R-5. 

 

 

Funding: 

N/A 

 

Recommendation: 

This rezoning request is a necessary step to continue a previously approved development. 

 

At the March 11, 2024 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Application (PDF) 

12.C

Packet Pg. 62



Agenda Item (ID # 2970)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/10/2024 10:25 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 2 

• ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Deed (PDF) 

• ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - APO (CSV) 

• #2 (PDF) 

• ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Site Plan (PDF) 

12.C

Packet Pg. 63



12.C.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



12.C.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
D

ee
d

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



Owner Mailing AddressCity State Zip

RANDY HADDEN SIMMONS9987 HWY 23 NMETTER GA 30439

GEORGIA SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY FOUNDATIONPO BOX 8053STATESBOROGA 30460

CHARLES H & GWENDOLYN COOVERT 1238 STATE ROAD 30PORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

ROSALYN R GRINER BUTLER 1222 HIGHWAY 30PORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

WILLIAM S. THOMAS 1220 GA. HIGHWAY 30PORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

ANDREW JERALD DOTSON 133 HODGEVILLE RDPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

NAVKAR LLC101 HODGEVILLE ROADPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

ANDREW JERALD DOTSON 133 HODGEVILLE RDPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

SHREE PRABHU 2, LLC1116 HWY 30PORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

AMERIDEVELOPMENT POOLER, LLC227 WESTBROOK LNPOOLER GA 31322

ATLANTIC SELF STORAGE LLC207 KENSINGTON XINGGUYTON GA 31312

ROBERT & HARLEY STRICKLAND405 S SKINNER AVEPOOLER GA 31322

HP-221120 PORT WENTWORTH, LLC  ATTN: STEVEN CAMPISI101 S NEW YORK AVE, UNIT 211WINTER PARK FL 32789

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
A

P
O

  (
29

70
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 M

ar
io

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
)



Properties within 300 ft. 

 

Key:  

Property within 300 ft. of R-1  

 

- Hadden Simmons Randy 
71017 02004 
1246 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
9987 Highway 23 N Metter, GA 30439 

- Georgia Southern University Foundation Guyton 
71017 01007 
Highway 30 Savannah, GA 31407 
PO Box 8053 Statesboro, GA 30460 
 

Property within 300 ft. of entire parcel 

 

- Coovert, Charles H. & Gwen Dolyn 
71017 02003 
1283 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
1238 State Road 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- Butler Rosalyn R Griner 
71017 02005 
Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
1222 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- Thomas, William S. 
71017 02008 

12.C.d

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 #

2 
 (

29
70

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 M
ar

io
n

 V
ill

ag
e 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



1220 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
1220 GA Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- Dotson Andrew Jerald 
71017 02009 
Hodgeville Rd. Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
133 Hodgeville Rd. Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- NAVKAR LLC 
71017 02010 
101 Hodgeville Rd. Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
101 Hodgeville Rd. Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- Dotson, Andrew Jerald 
71017 01004 
1061 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
133 Hodgeville Rd. Port Wentworth, GA 31407 

- Shree Prabhu 2, LLC 
71017 03001 
1116 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
1116 Highway 30 Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
 
 

Effingham Co. 

- Georgia Southern University Foundation Guyton Real Estate LLC 
04190001 
Paradise Trl 
PO Box 8053 Statesboro, GA 30460 

- Atlantic Self Storage LLC 
04360022 
3775 Noel C Conway Rd 
207 Kensington Xing Guyton, GA 31312 

- Strickland, Robert and Harley 
04360020 
3801 Noel C Conway Rd 
405 S Skinner Ave Pooler, GA 31322 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.C.d

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 #

2 
 (

29
70

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 M
ar

io
n

 V
ill

ag
e 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



PID:
71017 02008

THOMAS,
WILLIAM S

ZONING:P-C-1

ZO
NE "X"

ZO
NE "AE"

ZONE "X"

ZONE "AE"

ZONE "X"

ZONE "AE"

ZONE "X
"

ZONE "A
E"

ZONE "AE"ZONE "X"

ZONE "AE"

ZONE "X"

ZO
NE "X"

PID:71017 01004
DOTSON ANDREW JERALD

ZONING:R-A
(DB 166B, PAGE 41)

PID:04190001
GEORGIA SOUTHERN

UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
ZONING:AR-1

(DB 2404, PAGE 482)

4'
 F

IE
LD

 W
IR

E 
FE

N
C

E

NO PARKING

PORT WENTWORTH CITY LIMITS
CHATHAM COUNTY

PID:71017 01014
AMERIDEVELOPEMENT POOLER, LLC

ZONING:P-C-1
(DB 1673, PAGE 109)

3,386,043 SQ FT
77.733 ACRES±

PID:71017 01007
GEORGIA SOUTHERN

UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
ZONING:P-RIP

(DB 1082, PAGE 660)

S1
2°

 4
2'

 3
8.

27
"W

  9
50

.2
90

'

S3
4°

 4
2' 

38
.2

7"
W

  5
80

.0
10

'

N87° 17' 21.73"W  2160.000'

N
14

° 1
7'

 2
1.

73
"W

  6
98

.5
30

'

N49° 1
7' 02.27"E  1

050.530'

L=319.035, R=4979.560

D=3.6709

S1° 03' 17.27"W  10.000'
S88° 56' 42.73"E  1755.132'

80
'

R
/W

R/W

HODGEVILLE ROAD

EFFINGHAM COUNTY

CHATHAM COUNTY

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

PID:71017 02004
HADDEN, SIMMONS RANDY

ZONING:P-C-1

PID:71017 02003
COOVERT, CHARLES H

& GWENDOLYN
ZONING:R-A

PID:
71017 02005

BUTLER,
ROSALYN R

GRINER
ZONING:P-C-1

PID:71017 02010
NAVKAR LLC
ZONING:P-C-1

GEORGIA HIGHWAY 30/
MONTEITH ROAD

SPEED LIMIT 55 MPH

ZO
N

E
 "X

"

ZO
N

E
 "A

E
"

FP

FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP FP FP FP FP FP FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FPFP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FPFP

FP FP

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP FP FP

FP

FP

FP FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FPFP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FPFPFP

FPFPFP
FP

FP

FPFP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

LIMITS OF WETLAND

LIMITS OF WETLAND

LIMITS OF WETLAND

LIMITS OF WETLAND

LIMITS OF WETLAND

LIMITS OF WETLAND

28
.1

' 24
.8

'

36"W
ATER M

AIN

(EFFINGTON CO.)

EFFINGHAM COUNTY

CHATHAM COUNTY

LIMITS OF WETLAND

M
ATC

H
 LIN

E: SEE SH
EET A

M
ATC

H
 LIN

E: SEE SH
EET B

MATCH LINE: SEE SHEET B

MATCH LINE: SEE SHEET C

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

GEORGIA HIGHWAY 30/ MONTEITH ROAD
SPEED LIMIT 55 MPH

10
0'

R
/W

BENCHMARK
TOP OF CMF R/W MONUMENT
ELEV: 14.78'

BENCHMARK
INVERT 18" RCP
ELEV: 16.30'

BENCHMARK
INVERT OF CULVERT
ELEV: 16.23'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 5

00
36

 U
N

IT

BUILDING 400
36 UNIT

BUILDING 600
24 UNIT

BUILDING 300

24 UNIT

BUILDING 700
12 UNIT

BUILDING 100
36 UNIT

BUILDING 200
36 UNIT

G
AR

AG
E 

D

GARAGE B

GARAGE C

GARAGE A

BU
ILD

IN
G

 800
36 U

N
IT

BUILDING 900

24 UNIT

CLUBHOUSE

FITNESS
CENTER

BUILDING 120036 UNIT
G

AR
AG

E E

POOL

FRONT YARD SETBACK: 20 FT OFF PROPERTY LINE

SI
D

E 
YA

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K:
 1

0 
FT

FRONT YARD SETBACK: 20 FT OFF PROPERTY LINE

SIDE YARD SETBACK: 1
0FT

SIDE YARD SETBACK: 1
0FT

SID
E YAR

D
 SETBAC

K: 10FT

REAR YARD SETBACK: 25 FT

BUILDING 110036 UNIT

BUILDING 100024 UNIT

GARAGE F

BASALT DRIVE BASALT DRIVE

HILLPOINTE DRIVE

G
R

AN
IT

E 
D

R
IV

E

GRANITE DRIVE

APPLETO
N

 C
O

U
R

T

HILLPOINTE DRIVE

HILLPOINTE DRIVE

YUKON CIRCLE

REVOLUTION DRIVE

REVOLUTION DRIVE

REVOLUTION DRIVE

YUKON CIRCLE

G
AR

AG
E 

G

M
AIL

KIO
SK

SITE PLAN NOTES:

PROJECT AREA: 77.73-ACRES (3,386,043 SF)
PID: 71017 01014
ZONING: PRM (REZONED FEB. 2020)
PROPOSED USE: MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

PROPOSED USE: MULTI-FAMILY
PROPOSED UNITS: 360 UNITS (ALL 2-BEDROOM, 3-STORIES)
PROPOSED DENSITY: 4.63-UPA  (18 UPA ALLOWED)

BUILDING HEIGHT PROPOSED: 42'-9"

PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE:
APARTMENTS:......143,333 SF
GARAGES:................14,700 SF
CLUBHOUSE:............3,775 SF
FITNESS CENTER:....1,824 SF
MAIL KIOSK:..................898 SF
TOTAL: ...................164,530 SF (4.86% OF SITE (MAX 45% ALLOWED)

APARTMENT PARKING SUMMARY:
PARKING REQUIRED....................630 SPACES (1.75* SPACES/UNIT)

PARKING PROPOSED...................660 SPACES (1.83 SPACES/UNIT)
STANDARD SPACES (9'X20')......562 SPACES
ACCESSIBLE SPACES....................26 SPACES
GARAGES (10'X20')..........................72 SPACES (3 ADA GARAGE SPACES)

OPEN SPACE SUMMARY
MULTI-FAMILY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED: 20% X 77.73 AC....15.55 ACRES (20.0%)
OPEN SPACE PROPOSED:...............................66.64 ACRES (85.7%)

UNDISTURBED FORESTED AREAS: 50.84 ACRES (65.4%)
GRASSED AREAS: 15.80 ACRES (20.3%)

SETBACKS:
FRONT: FROM CENTERLINE OF STREET:

MAJOR ARTERY: 70 FT
CONNECTING ROUTE: 60 FT

REAR: 25 FT
SIDE: 10 FT

WETLAND: THERE ARE NO STATE REQUIRED BUFFERS OR SETBACKS

NO. DESCRIPTION

SHEET REVISIONS
DATE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

SHEET

24- HOUR CONTACT:

PROJECT:

SHEET TITLE:

DRAWING SCALES:

Corporate Office:

Information: www.hillpointe.com

Operations Office:

101 South New York AvE, Unit 211
Winter Park, FL 32789
PH:  (407) 752-9004

8830 Macon Highway
Building 300
Athens, GA 30606
PH:  (407) 752-9004

DRAWING DATE:

Marcus Wiedower
P: (706) 254-3251
Email: mwiedower@hillpointe.com

E

N
G
I N E E R I N

G

DEVELOPER:

Office:
8830 Macon Highway
Building 300
Athens, GA 30606

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

N

N

SITE PLAN
OVERALL

C-200

MARION
VILLAGE

APARTMENTS

12/05/2023

PARCEL #: 71017 01014
HIGHWAY 30

PORT WENTWORTH, GA

.
12/05/23
10/10/23
06/09/23

.

.
PER CITY REVIEW COMMENTS
PER CITY REVIEW COMMENTS
PER CITY REVIEW COMMENTS

.

C
:\U

se
rs

\A
m

an
da

G
ru

ne
r-P

hi
llli

\H
illp

oi
nt

e 
D

ro
pb

ox
\F

in
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
or

t W
en

tw
or

th
 - 

M
ar

io
n 

Vi
lla

ge
 - 

22
11

20
\5

.0
 D

es
ig

n\
5.

1 
C

AD
\O

n-
Si

te
.H

P\
Si

te
KS

H
-M

V.
dw

g

FOR REVIEW ONLY

DERIG

PROFESSIONAL
No. PE036701

ETS
E

R

HORIZONTAL: 1" = 100'

0 100 200

FP FP

FPFP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FPFP

FP

FP FP

FP
FP FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

2

1

3

SHEET KEY MAP PROJECT SPECIFIC PLAN NOTES:

1. CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS, ADA PARKING, AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTE ARE IN
CONFORMANCE WITH FEDERAL ADA STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION.

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 M
A

R
IO

N
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 2

02
4 

- 
S

it
e 

P
la

n
  (

29
70

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 M
ar

io
n

 V
ill

ag
e 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

)



 City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2973) DOC ID: 2973  

Updated: 4/10/2024 1:10 PM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 1 

Consideration to approve the 2nd Reading of an application 
submitted by A Zoning Map Amendment  City of Port 

Wentworth, requesting to rezone 18.65 of 20.85 acres from R-
3 to PUD, to allow for residential development.  PIN # 7-0014-
06-001, located in the 4th Council District, between Coleraine 

Drive and Barnsley Road. 

Issue/Item:  

Consideration to approve the 2nd Reading of an application submitted by A Zoning Map 

Amendment  City of Port Wentworth, requesting to rezone 18.65 of 20.85 acres from R-3 to 

PUD, to allow for residential development.  PIN # 7-0014-06-001, located in the 4th Council 

District, between Coleraine Drive and Barnsley Road. 

 

Background:  

• The applicant proposes to create a residential PUD. The submitted concept plan 

shows up to 92 units with a mix of single-family dwellings and townhomes. 

Community features are shown to include open space, walking trails, a pond, and 

connectivity to Port Wentworth soccer fields. 

• A portion of approximately 2 acres is to be separated to continue as undeveloped 

land for use by the adjacent police department. 

• An Administrative Adjustment was approved on 2/22/2024, allowing deviation from 

the 20-acre minimum required for a residential PUD. 

• The surrounding properties to the North, East, and South are within the R-3 (Old 

Town Residential) zoning district; their uses are single-family residential, and a City-

owned parcel with recreation fields and a police station. The western side of the 

property borders a 30’ strip of industrial land owned by Georgia Ports Authority, 

which could reasonably serve to expand the adjacent railway.  

• Water and sewer are to be provided by City of Port Wentworth. 

• Access to the PUD is proposed at two points (Barnsley Road and Coleraine Road) by 

means of extending Falkirk Street through the entirety of the development. 

• The PUD will be developed by Habitat for Humanity.   

• At a townhall meeting on January 24, 2024, neighboring residents expressed 

concerns about the proposed rezoning. The concerns specific to the rezoning request 

included: 

o Increased traffic 

o Potential drainage issues to surrounding properties 

o Loss of existing buffering from railway noise 

o Lack of existing commercial resources and local schools to support the 

residential development 

 

Facts and Findings:  

• Adjacent, non-industrial, properties are within the R-3 zoning district. The Port 

Wentworth Zoning Ordinance, Section 3.20c describes the R-3 district as “…intended 

for a range of detached single-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, and attached single-
family townhomes within the Old Town area of Port Wentworth. This district recognizes the Old 

12.D

Packet Pg. 78



Agenda Item (ID # 2973)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/10/2024 1:10 PM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 2 

Towns as a traditional urban village where infill or redevelopment projects may occur. 
Characteristics of lands zoned R-3 include established neighborhoods on traditional grid 
pattern street systems with sidewalks, or the feasibility of sidewalks, as it is a walkable 
traditional neighborhood.” 

o The proposed PUD is complimentary to surrounding zoning and is consistent with 

intended area use. 
• The qualifying conditions for a PUD are stated in Section 5.20 of the Port Wentworth 

Zoning Ordinance. These conditions include the demonstration of at least 3 purposes 

as outlined in Section 5.10, including the following: 
o “preserve existing natural assets, such as stands of trees, floodplains, open fields, 

marshes, rivers, streams, and the like” 
▪ The submitted concept plan demonstrates preservation of wetlands, as well as 

the inclusion of widespread green space.  
o “encourage the use of lands in ways that are most in accord with their character and 

adaptability” 
▪ The proposed PUD is consistent with and complementary to surrounding 

zoning and use.  
o “result in recognizable public benefits to the community-at-large” 

▪ The submitted concept plan shows “a complementary mix of land uses of 

housing types that address a demonstrated community need”. 
▪ The Habitat for Humanity program may aid with the continual reduction of 

mortgaged cost burdened housing (as identified in Section 5.4 of the 2021-
2021 Comprehensive Plan) 

• The 2021-2041 Comprehensive Plan specifically identifies the addition of mixed-use housing in 
the vicinity of police and fire station, including under the Implementation Strategies 
component of the Traditional Village Character Area (in which this property is located) section. 

 

 

Funding: 

 

Recommendation: 

The proposed rezoning meets applicable zoning criteria and is consistent with the City 

Comprehensive Plan. The PUD must continue to adhere, in all ways, to the City Ordinance 

during all stages of review and development. Council may wish to consider specific 

conditions for approval, to address appropriate buffering and/or screening of the nearby 

railway.   

 

At the February 12, 2024 meeting, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Application (PDF) 

• Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-APO (PDF) 

• Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Deed (PDF) 

• Berm Easement Agreement 10.03.2019 (PDF) 

• Administrative Adjustment (PDF) 

• Habitat Narrative (DOCX) 

• Draft Declaration of Covenants (DOCX) 

• Traffic Memo 2-1-2024 (PDF) 

• Cost Estimate Hab4Hum - PWT  SS Estimate (PDF) 

• - Preliminary Schedule (PDF) 

12.D

Packet Pg. 79



Agenda Item (ID # 2973)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/10/2024 1:10 PM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 3 

• Article 5 Section 5.20 (PDF) 

• thumbnail_ABC9A86C8EF24B0F8288DFAB60D37FDC (JPG) 

• 4_Plex_Townhomes (PDF) 

• 2023-161 plat signed (PDF) 

• berm land plan with trees (PDF) 

• berm land plan-Model (PDF) 

• DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT (PDF) 

• Draft Utility Layout (PDF) 

• Existing-Utilities (PDF) 

• Final Client Ver Letter - Habitat for Humanity.PPDF (1) (PDF) 

• General-Location-Map (PDF) 

• open space (2) (PDF) 

• Topographic-Map (PDF) 

• TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS (PDF) 

• zoning (1) (PDF) 

12.D

Packet Pg. 80



12.D.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 2
02

4-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



PIN Owner Mailing Address City State Zip
10729 01002 GEORGIA PORTS AUTHORITY PO BOX 2406 SAVANNAH GA 31402
70013 01001 DAVID W & KAREN M AYRES 901 BARNSLEY RD PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 01002 PORT WENTWORTH METHODIST CHURC C/O REV VEAL 827 CROSSGATE RD SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 01003 PORT WENTWORTH UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 201 TURNBERRY ST PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 02001 GARNASIA L & JERRY A BOGUS 908 BARNSLEY RD SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 02002 PORT WENTWORTH ALLIANCE CHURCH 906 BARNSLEY RD SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 02003 ANTHONY T & PATRICIA L DAVIS TRUSTEES 904 BARNSLEY RD PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 02004 MAX DUNIGAN 902 BARNSELY RD SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 19006 JAMIE L COOMBE 314 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 19007 SARA ANN HARRELL BROWNING 316 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 19008 OLIVIA CONSTANCE BROWN 318 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 19009 JOHN BERRY 215 SHEAROUSE RD GUYTON GA 31312
70013 19010 DONNA LATHAM JACKSON PO BOX 7244 GARDEN CITY GA 31408
70013 19013 GARY G BRAZELL PO BOX 4073 SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 21021 LIZABETH A GOODSON 832 BARNSLEY RD PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 21022 FREDDIE PAUL SALTER 43 FARNSLEIGH AVE BLUFFTON SC 29910
70013 21023 EDDIE H & LINDA M SMITH 828 BARNSLEY RD PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70013 21024 SHIRLEY HARRELL WOODS 827 BARNSLEY RD SAVANNAH GA 31407
70013 21025 DERRICK R & STACI L POOLE 10 SHELBY RD SAVANNAH GA 31405
70013 21026 LAUREE M SANJUAN 831 BARNSLEY RD PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 02010 LAURIE LEE NORMAN 400 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 02011 LESLIE R HARLEY P O BOX 8755 SAVANNAH GA 31412
70014 03015 BOARD OF EDUCATION 208 BULL ST SAVANNAH GA 31401
70014 03016 LULA MANN 201 COLERAINE DR PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 03017 BRANDON LEE MILLER & CHRISTINA HAMPTON 203 COLERAINE DR PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 03018 BRENDA V HUBBARD 2 HORNE PLACE PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 04002 ANGEL C BROWN-HUTCHINSON 3 HORNE PL PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 04003 BRENDA BOULWARE 1 HORNE PL SAVANNAH GA 31407
70014 04004 STEVEN H YOUNG 5 HORNE PL SAVANNAH GA 31407
70014 05001 TJ A BARNWELL 114 COLERAINE DR SAVANNAH GA 31407
70014 05002 BETTY SUE DAVIS 112 COLERAINE DR SAVANNAH GA 31407
70014 05012 DORIS WALLACE 409 PHILLIPS AVE PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 05013 GENE A BURN 406 CANTYRE ST PT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06002 BRANDON WATERS LLC PO BOX 23 GLENNVILLE GA 30427
70014 06003 FAYE W LOVE 206 COLERAINE DR SAVANNAH GA 31407
70014 06004 MICHAEL W. MCDOUGALD 202 COLERAINE DRIVE PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06005 MICHAEL E QUINNEY 415 CANTYRE ST PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06006 KENYATTA BRUEN 413 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06007 GREGORY A WILLINGHAM 411 CANTYRE ST PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06008 JAMES FREDERICK DUNIGAN JR 317 BIRKENHEAD RD PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06009 ALICE C HOWARD 407 CANTYRE ST PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06010 TPR INVESTMENTS LLC 28 CLARENDON ROAD SAVANNAH GA 31410
70014 06011 STEPHEN LEE PHILLIPS 403 CANTYRE ST PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06012 VIRGINIA K JACKSON 401 CANTYRE STREET PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70014 06013 JOHN W & JACKIE R MCMILLAN 401 CANTYRE ST SAVANNAH GA 31407
70033 01004 LRE CROSSGATE SOUTH, LLC TRIAD 1828 CENTRE 10TH FLR 2 COOPER STREET CAMDEN NJ 08102

12.D.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 2
02

4-
A

P
O

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.c

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 2
02

4-
D

ee
d

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 2
02

4-
D

ee
d

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 2
02

4-
D

ee
d

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.d

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

er
m

 E
as

em
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
10

.0
3.

20
19

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.e

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



12.D.e

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



12.D.e

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAYOR 

Gary Norton 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

Gabrielle Nelson   

District 1 

 

Mark Stephens 

District 2 

 

Rufus Bright 

District 3 

 

Nishant Randerwala 

District 4 

 

Thomas Barbee 

At-Large  

 

Artlise Alston-Cone 

At-Large 

 

 

City Manager 

Steve Davis 

 

 

 

 

ELECTED OFFICIALS 

 

PUD Project Narrative: PIN# 7-0014-06-001 

 

General:  

The proposed PUD identifies 2 acres as undeveloped land, for use by the City of Port 

Wentworth Police Department. The majority of acreage (18.65 acres) is planned as 

mixed residential development, to include both single-family and townhome units, up 

to 92 units in total. The residential component will offer amenities such as walking 

trails which connect to adjacent public recreation assets.  

Property Owner Association: 

A Property Owners Association shall be established to ensure proper use and 

maintenance of the PUD property. 

Covenants shall include that future development within the property be required to 

first present the proposal to City of Port Wentworth Development Services in 

anticipation that an amendment of the PUD will be required prior to development. 

Installation of amenities (such as pools, playground equipment, dog parks) shall be at 

the discretion of the POA but must be properly evaluated and permitted prior to 

construction. 

The POA shall accept responsibility for maintenance, appearance, repair, and 

improvement to all common areas, multi-unit building facades, drainage, landscaping, 

and all other community components. The right of way connecting points of access 

between Barnsley Road and Coleraine Drive is to be dedicated to the City of Port 

Wentworth at the time of final plat approval. 

Deviations from Zoning Requirements: 

There are no requested deviations. Residential development is to comply with the R-5 

zoning district as described in Appendix B, Article III of the City of Port Wentworth 

Code of Ordinances. 

Density of Residential Development: 

Overall proposed density for residential development of this PUD is: 

 Gross Density: 4.9 dwelling units per acre 

 Net Density: Approximated at 10 dwelling units per acre. 

Common Open Space: 

 Total: +/-11 acres, accounting for approximately 59% of residential 

development area. 

Architectural and Design: 

7224 GA Highway 21 | Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 

Phone (912) 964-4379 | Fax (912) 966-7429 

www.cityofportwentworth.com 

 

 

C I T Y   O F   P O R T   W E N T W O R T H  

  

12.D.f

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

ab
it

at
 N

ar
ra

ti
ve

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



Draft Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for Habitat for Humanity PUD  

 

 This draft represents a requirement for the PUD zoning district as outlined in Section 15.20 
of the Zoning Ordinance contained in the City of Port Wentworth Code of Ordinances. Upon the 
establishment of a Property Owners Association the expectations below shall be expanded to 
govern the full scope of responsibilities and requirements necessary to keep the community to a 
standard which promotes excellence in property maintenance and neighborhood satisfaction. 

Requirements 

“Covenants and restrictions for the property within any PUD district are required and must be 
recorded with the office of the county clerk prior to the approval of a plat or issuance of a building 
permit. These restrictions shall run with the land to ensure that, if subdivided or developed in 
phases, the covenants and restrictions shall still be enforced” (Section 15.20.6) 

The full covenants shall adhere in all ways to Section 15.20. 

Development and Maintenance 

The POA shall accept responsibility for maintenance, appearance, repair, and improvement to all 
common areas, multi-unit building facades, drainage, landscaping, and all other community 
components. The right of way connecting points of access between Barnsley Road and Coleraine 
Drive is to be dedicated to the City of Port Wentworth at the time of final plat approval. 

General and Future Use 

Covenants shall include that future development within the property be required to first present the 
proposal to City of Port Wentworth Development Services in anticipation that an amendment of the 
PUD will be required prior to development. Installation of amenities (such as pools, playground 
equipment, dog parks) shall be at the discretion of the POA but must be properly evaluated and 
permitted prior to construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

12.D.g

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 D
ec

la
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
ve

n
an

ts
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



Memorandum to 

Nathan Long 

February 18, 2021 

Page 1  

M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO:  City of Port Wentworth 

 

FROM:  Michael S. Hughes, P.E.   

 

DATE:  February 1, 2024 

 

RE:  Traffic Estimate Memorandum 

   

   

 

 

This memorandum shows the traffic generated for the approximately 20-acre tract PIN # 7-0014- 

06-001 located east of Georgia Ports Authority property, south of Barnsley Road and north of Coleraine 

Drive within the City of Port Wentworth, Chatham County, Georgia.  

The newly proposed development includes as many as 97 single family residential homes with a mix of 

single family attached and single family detached homes. The highest density potential proposed is five 

(5) single family detached homes and 92 single family attached homes. 

 

Two points of connection are proposed.  One at the end of Coleraine Drive and the other at the 

intersection of Falkirk and Barnsley Road.   

 

The below trip calculations are based on the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 11th edition. 

 

 

Single Family Attached Land Use 215 : 92 dwelling units 

Daily = 92 units x 7.2 trips/unit = 663 trips 

AM peak = 92 units x 0.48 trips/unit = 44 trips (11 entering, 33 exiting) 

PM peak = 92 units x 0.57 trips/unit = 53 trips (31 entering, 22 exiting) 

 

Single Family Detached Housing Land Use 210 - 5 dwelling units 

Daily = 5 units x 9.43 trips/unit = 48 trips 

AM peak = 5 units x 0.7 trips/unit = 4 trips (1 entering, 3 exiting) 

PM peak = 5 units x 0.94 trips/unit = 5 trips (3 entering, 2 exiting) 

 

Total 97 Housing Units 

Daily = 411 trips 

AM peak = 48 trips (12 entering, 36 exiting) 

PM peak = 58 units (34 entering, 24 exiting) 

 

12.D.h

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 M

em
o

 2
-1

-2
02

4 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total

Mobilization Lump ____ 100,000.00$      100,000.00$                  

E&S BMPs Lump ____ 100,000.00$      100,000.00$                  

Lift Station & Force Main Lump ____ 450,000.00$      450,000.00$                  

PW Utility service fee ea. 80 100.00$             8,000.00$                       

PW ERUs ea. 80 3,042.00$          243,360.00$                  

8" Water Main lf. 2,300 36.00$                82,800.00$                    

8" SDR 26 Sanitary Sewer Pipe (6'-8') ea. 1,600 40.00$                64,000.00$                    

8" SDR 26 Sanitary Sewer Pipe (8'-10') ea. 800 45.00$                36,000.00$                    

4' Standard Sanitary Sewer Manhole (6-8') ea. 4 6,000.00$          24,000.00$                    

4' Standard Sanitary Sewer Manhole (8'-10') ea. 2 6,500.00$          13,000.00$                    

Connect to existing PW Sanitary Sewer System Lump _____ 10,000.00$        10,000.00$                    

Fire Hydrant Assembly ea. 5 5,000.00$          25,000.00$                    

Water Main Vavles in Manholes/Vaults ea. 3 6,000.00$          18,000.00$                    

Connections to existing PW Water System ea. 2 10,000.00$        20,000.00$                    

Traffic Control LUMP 1 25000 25,000.00$                    

Grading Complete Lump 1 500000 500,000.00$                  

Conc curb and gutter, 6in x 30in, TP 2 LF 3400 32.3 109,820.00$                  

ROW Markers EA 15 199 2,985.00$                       

GAB, 8 in SY 4600 25.75 118,450.00$                  

Aggr Surf Crs TN 725 45.93 33,299.25$                    

9.5 mm Superpave TN 350 135.67 47,484.50$                    

19 mm Superpave TN 475 140.87 66,913.25$                    

Tack Coat GAL 1000 2.78 2,780.00$                       

Mill Asph Conc Pvmt, Variable Depth SY 1475 8.08 11,918.00$                    

Conc Sidewalk, 4 in SY 950 71.36 67,792.00$                    

Flared End Section, 24 in, Storm Drain EA 1 1379.24 1,379.24$                       

Storm Drain Pipe 24 in, Class III LF 1500 279.52 419,280.00$                  

Catch Basin, GP 1 EA 4 5037.38 20,149.52$                    

Temporary Grassing AC 18 733.15 13,196.70$                    

Construct and Remove Silt Fence, TP A LF 5000 1.31 6,550.00$                       

Permanent Grassing AC 18 2094.8 37,706.40$                    

Fertilizer Mixed Grade TN 20 1558.95 31,179.00$                    

Highway Signs, TP 1, Refl Sheeting Tp 11 SF 25 24.01 600.25$                          

Thermo plasting striping, 24 in, white LF 24 10.88 261.12$                          

Lighting Std, 11-15 Ft EA 8 4003.99 32,031.92$                    

Luminaire, TP 3, LED EA 8 1492.72 11,941.76$                    

SUBTOTAL 2,754,877.91$               

CONTINGENCY 10% of Subtotal 275,487.79$                  

Engineering and Inspections 10% of subtotal 275,487.79$                  

TOTAL 3,305,853.49$      

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

Port Wentworth (Barnsley Road & Colerain Drive)

12.D.i

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
at

e 
H

ab
4H

u
m

 -
 P

W
T

  S
S

 E
st

im
at

e 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 Due Diligence 254 days Fri 8/18/23 Wed 8/7/24

2 Wetland Jurisdiction Determination 94 days Fri 8/18/23 Wed 12/27/23

3 Phase 1 ESA 36 days Wed 9/13/23 Wed 11/1/23

4 Conceptual Master Plan 0 days Mon 9/18/23 Mon 9/18/23

5 Land Plan Revisions 145 days Mon 9/18/23 Fri 4/5/24 4

6 Tree and Topographic Survey 18 days Tue 3/5/24 Thu 3/28/24

7 Assemble all updated PUD Documents 5 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 4/12/24 5

8 Geotechnical Assessment 40 days Thu 4/18/24 Wed 6/12/24 14

9 Nationwide Wetland Permit 80 days Thu 4/18/24 Wed 8/7/24 14

10 Rezoning 104 days Wed 1/24/24 Tue 6/18/24

11 Public Meeting 0 days Wed 1/24/24 Wed 1/24/24

12 Planning Commission 0 days Mon 2/12/24 Mon 2/12/24

13 City Council First Reading 0 days Thu 2/15/24 Thu 2/15/24

14 City Council Second Reading 0 days Thu 4/18/24 Thu 4/18/24

15 Inter governmental Agreement 30 days Thu 4/18/24 Wed 5/29/24 14

16 RFQ for Engineering Design Services 30 days Thu 4/18/24 Wed 5/29/24 14

17 Close on Property 0 days Wed 6/5/24 Wed 6/5/24 14FS+35 days

18 Symbolic Groundbreaking 0 days Tue 6/18/24 Tue 6/18/24

19 Site Design and Permit 130 days Thu 6/6/24 Wed 12/4/24

20 Engineering Design 30 days Thu 6/6/24 Wed 7/17/24 16,17

21 Port Wentwenth/GSWCC/EPD Permitting 100 days Thu 7/18/24 Wed 12/4/24 20

22 Construction Period 245 days Thu 12/5/24 Wed 11/12/25

23 Bid Process 30 days Thu 12/5/24 Wed 1/15/25 21

24 Bid Award 10 days Thu 1/16/25 Wed 1/29/25 23

25 City Pre-Construction Conference 0 days Wed 1/29/25 Wed 1/29/25 24

26 Site Construction 180 days Thu 1/30/25 Wed 10/8/25 25,24

27 Record Drawings 15 days Thu 9/11/25 Wed 10/1/25 26FS-20 days

28 Final Acceptance Process 30 days Thu 10/2/25 Wed 11/12/25 27

29 Home Construction 0 days Wed 11/12/25 Wed 11/12/25 28

9/18

1/24

2/12

2/15

4/18

6/5

6/18

1/29

11/12

A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J
Half 2, 2023 Half 1, 2024 Half 2, 2024 Half 1, 2025 Half 2, 2025

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Progress

Deadline

Falkirk Street - CEHFH
City of Port Wentworth, Georgia

Coastal Empire Habitat for Humanity Page 1

12.D.j

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

S
ch

ed
u

le
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



 

Port Wentworth Zoning Ordinance Page 5-1 

Article 5. Planned Unit Development District 
 

Section 5.10 Intent and Purpose    
It is recognized that traditional zoning, with its segregation of uses and rigid dimensional requirements, may 
not be suitable in all situations to best achieve the objectives of the City relative to desired land use and 
preservation of its resources and character. In order to permit and encourage more creative and innovative 
land development for the benefit of the community as a whole and in furtherance of the vision and goals of 
the City of Port Wentworth Comprehensive Plan, planned unit development (PUD) may be permitted as a 
zoning district to achieve the following purposes:     

A. provide for flexibility in development that will result in a better project for the developer, residents, 
and users, as well as for the City in general;   

B. preserve existing natural assets, such as stands of trees, floodplains, open fields, marshes, rivers, 
streams, and the like; 

C. accomplish a more desirable and sustainable residential environment than would be possible through 
the strict application of minimum requirements of this ordinance; 

D. encourage the utilization of open space and development of recreational amenities generally located 
within walking distance of all living units; 

E. encourage the use of lands in ways that are most in accord with their character and adaptability;  

F. result in recognizable public benefits to the community-at-large; and 

G. allow efficient land use by facilitating economical and suitable arrangements for buildings, streets, 
utilities, and other land use features.  

Section 5.20 Qualifying Conditions   
At a minimum, all proposed PUDs shall meet the following qualifying conditions, as applicable, to be 
considered for approval: 

A. Location. PUDs may be located in any part of the City, subject to meeting all other applicable 
requirements. 

B. PUD Purpose. The applicant shall demonstrate that the PUD will achieve three (3) or more of the 
purposes listed in Section 5.10. 

C. Size. The minimum site size for a PUD shall be based on the type of development, as shown in the 
following table. Churches, public or private schools, public buildings, and residential subdivision 
amenities such as golf courses and health clubs, and their ancillary commercial uses, such as clubhouses 
and pro shops, shall not be considered non-residential uses for purposes of this condition.   

  

12.D.k

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rt
ic

le
 5

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

.2
0 

 (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Text Box
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Text Box
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Text Box
Development proposes trails to connect to nearby/adjacent City open space

hughes.m
Text Box
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Text Box
Connection of existing streets proposed to improve traffic circulation

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Text Box
Connection of existing streets proposed to improve traffic circulation, sewer, looped water and drainage

hughes.m
Text Box
Product home/lot types allow for more preserved open space

hughes.m
Fixtures, Doors, Windows
3

hughes.m
Development proposes trails to connect to nearby/adjacent City open space

hughes.m
Product home/lot types allow for more preserved open space

hughes.m
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Connection of existing streets proposed to improve traffic circulation

hughes.m
Product home/lot types allow for more density while preserving open space

hughes.m
Connection of existing streets proposed to improve traffic circulation, sewer, looped water and drainage



Article 5.  Planned Unit Development District 

 Port Wentworth Zoning Ordinance  Page 5-2 

 
Table 5.20: Minimum Site Size 
PUD Type Minimum Required Site Size 
All residential 20 acres 
Mixed residential/non-
residential 30 acres 

All non-residential* 10 acres 
* Where more than 10 percent of the PUD site area is to be 
devoted to industrial, warehousing, and/or distribution, the 
minimum required site size shall be 80 acres 

 

D. Housing Variety. Any PUD containing residential uses shall include a variety of housing types and/or lot 
sizes to provide for varying lifestyles, diversity, and affordability. 

E. Utilities. The PUD shall be served by public water and sanitary sewer facilities. 

F. Ownership and Control. The tract(s) of land for which a PUD application is submitted must be either in 
single ownership or the subject of an application filed collectively by all owners of the property. Each 
property owner, or their agent, must sign the PUD application. 

G. Recognizable Public Benefit. The PUD shall achieve recognizable and substantial benefits that may not 
be possible under the existing zoning classification(s). At least two (2) of the following benefits shall be 
accrued to the community as a result of the proposed PUD: 

1. preservation of significant natural features not otherwise required by this ordinance; 

2. a complementary mix of land uses or housing types that address a demonstrated community need; 

3. incorporation of infrastructure improvements or other means to mitigate existing and future traffic 
congestion in the vicinity of the PUD site; 

4. preservation of common open space beyond the minimum required; 

5. connectivity of preserved open space with adjacent open space, greenways, or public trails; 

6. coordinated redevelopment of multiple lots or parcels; or 

7. removal or renovation of deteriorating buildings, sites, or contamination clean-up. 

Section 5.30 Permitted Uses 
Any land use or combination of land uses may be considered for inclusion within a PUD. 

Section 5.40 PUD Development Requirements 
A. Minimum Lot Size and Zoning Requirements. Lot area, width, setbacks, height, building coverage, 

minimum floor area, parking, landscaping, lighting, and other requirements for the district specified in 
the following table for the proposed use shall apply to all such uses within a PUD unless modified in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 5.40 B. Within a PUD, the minimum buffer requirements 
specified in Section 10.40 between uses shall not apply, provided the Planning Commission or City 
Council may require separation or buffering of uses as a condition of concept plan approval.  

 
  

12.D.k

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rt
ic

le
 5

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

.2
0 

 (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows5

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows5

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows5

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows5

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows5

hughes.m
Fixtures, Doors, Windows
5

hughes.m



 Article 5. Planned Unit Development District 

Port Wentworth Zoning Ordinance Page 5-3 

Table 5.40: Zoning Requirements by Use Type 
Land Use Type Applicable Zoning District 
Single-family residential R-2 
Two-family residential 

R-5 Townhouses 
Multiple-family residential 
Commercial C-2 
Industrial I-1 
Public/Quasi-public R-1 

B. Modification of Minimum Requirements. Regulations applicable to a land use in the PUD district may 
be altered from the requirements specified in Table 5.40, including the following: modification from the 
lot area and width, building setbacks, height, building coverage, signs, and parking. However, a 
reduction in lot size shall not result in an increase in the number of parcels or dwellings otherwise 
permitted by the applicable zoning district unless a density bonus is also granted in accordance with 
Section 5.40 C. In the absence of a density bonus, land gained by the reduction in lot sizes shall be 
added to the open space required within the PUD. The applicant for a PUD shall identify, in writing, all 
proposed deviations from the zoning district requirements. Modifications may be approved by the City 
Council during the concept plan review stage after Planning Commission recommendation. 
Adjustments to the minimum requirements may be permitted only if they will result in higher quality 
and more sustainable development, consistent with the purpose of the PUD district, as expressed in 
Section 5.10. 

C. Residential Density Bonus. In addition to the modification of minimum requirements permitted in 
Section 5.40 B, the City Council, after Planning Commission recommendation, may permit an increase, 
not to exceed 20 percent, in the total number of residential units otherwise allowed within a PUD, 
according to the requirements in Table 5.40, where it is demonstrated that: 

1. The appearance and construction will result in a development of high quality, as evidenced by the 
innovative design and predominant use of building materials such as stone, masonry, wood, and 
hardie-plank; 

2. Amenities beyond the minimum required open space will be provided to create a more sustainable 
community and desirable living environment; and 

3. At least four (4) of the following will be included within the development: 

a. Dedicated common open space is provided in excess of the minimum required, per Section 5.40 
D. 

b. One (1) or more parking structures are proposed within a mixed-use or non-residential PUD to 
meet the minimum parking requirements of this code.  

c. One (1) or more LEED-certified buildings will be constructed. 

d. Significant natural features, in addition to those required, will be preserved and/or substantial 
landscaping beyond the minimum requirements will be incorporated into the development. 

e. Decorative pavers and/or aesthetic enhancements (e.g., plazas, boulevards, round-a-bouts, 
ornamental lighting, fountains, and street furniture) will be incorporated into the vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation system throughout the PUD. 

f. A commercial and/or office component, comprising not less than 15 percent of the PUD site is 

12.D.k

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rt
ic

le
 5

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

.2
0 

 (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows3

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows2

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows2

hughes.m
Fixtures, Doors, Windows
3

hughes.m
Fixtures, Doors, Windows
2



Article 5.  Planned Unit Development District 

 Port Wentworth Zoning Ordinance  Page 5-4 

proposed within the development. 

g. Property is to be conveyed to and accepted by the City or school district for a future public use.  

h. Three (3) or more public benefits, as identified in Section 5.20 G., will be achieved. 

D. Common Open Space. For purposes of the PUD requirements, "common open space" is defined as an 
area of land or water, or a combination of land and water, designed and intended for the perpetual use 
and enjoyment of the users of the development and/or the general public. Common open space may 
contain accessory structures and improvements necessary or desirable for educational, noncommercial, 
recreational, or cultural uses. A variety of open space and recreational areas is encouraged, such as: 
children's informal play areas in close proximity to neighborhoods or dwelling unit clusters; formal 
parks, picnic areas, and playgrounds; pathways and trails; scenic open areas and communal, 
noncommercial recreation facilities; and natural conservation areas. At a minimum, the following 
regulations shall apply to all common open space within a PUD:  

 The area of common open space shall not be less than 25 percent of the total land area of a PUD 
containing any residential units and not less than 10 percent of the total land area in non-
residential developments. Land dedicated for recreation, in accordance with Section 5.40 D.2., shall 
count toward the common open space requirement.  

2. All common open space shown on the final development plan must be reserved or dedicated by 
conveyance of title to a corporation, association, or other legal entity by means of a restrictive 
covenant, easement, or through other legal instrument. The terms of such legal instrument must 
include provisions guaranteeing the continued use in perpetuity of such open space for the 
purposes intended and for continuity of proper maintenance of those portions of the open space 
requiring maintenance. 

3. The open space shall meet the following minimum dimensions, contiguity, and connectivity 
requirements: 

a. The required open space shall be centrally located along the street frontage of the 
development to protect or enhance views, located to preserve significant natural features, 
adjacent to dwellings, and/or located to interconnect other open spaces throughout the 
development or on contiguous properties. 

a. Required open space areas shall be of sufficient size and dimension and located, configured, or 
designed in such a way as to achieve the applicable purposes of these regulations and enhance 
the quality of the development. The open space shall neither be perceived nor function simply 
as an extension of the rear yard of those lots abutting it. 

b. If the site contains a river, stream, or other body of water, the City may require that a portion 
of the required open space shall abut the body of water.   

c. All required open space areas shall be configured so the open space is reasonably accessible to 
and usable by residents, visitors, and other intended users of the development. The minimum 
size of a required open space area shall be 15,000 square feet; provided, however, that the 
required open space abutting a public street may be less than 15,000 square feet; and, further 
provided, that the City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, may 
approve other open space areas of less than 15,000 square feet if these areas are designed and 
established as pedestrian or bicycle paths or are otherwise determined to be open space 
reasonably usable by residents, visitors and other intended users of the development. The 
minimum average dimension of a required open space area shall be 100 feet. 

12.D.k

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rt
ic

le
 5

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

.2
0 

 (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows2

hughes.m
Count Measurement
Fixtures, Doors, Windows2

hughes.m
Fixtures, Doors, Windows
2



12.D.l

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:



12.D.m

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



www.meckpermit.com

TOWNHOUSE RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS

2018 BUILDING CODE SUMMARY

(Except for common areas)

Name of Project:

Address:

Proposed Use:

Owner:

Contact Person:

Owned By:

Code Enforement Jurisdiction:

Phone #:

Phone #:

City/County Private State

Charlotte/ETJ Cornelius/ETJ Davidson/ETJ

Huntersville/ETJ Matthews/ETJ Mecklenburg/ETJ

Mint/ETJ Pineville/ETJ

LEAD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL:

Architectural

Civil

Electrical

Fire Alarm

Plumbing

Mechanical

Sprinkler-Standpipe

Structural

Retaining Walls >5' High

Other

DESIGNER FIRM NAME TELEPHONE #

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

(      )

LICENSE #

YEAR EDITION OF CODE:

Renovation (Existing Bldg) Upfit AlterationNew Construction

FIRE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS

BUILDING ELEMENT

Party/Fire Wall Separation

4-hr. Division Wall

DETAIL # AND

SHEET #

DESIGN # FOR

RATED ASSEMBLY

DESIGN # FOR

RATED PENETRATION

BUILDING DATA:

Construction Type: I-A I-B II-A II-B III-A III-B

IV V-A V-B

Mixed construction: No Yes Types

Sprinklers: No Yes NFPA 13 NFPA 13R NFPA 13D

Standpipes: No Yes I II III Wet

Fire District: No Yes

Building Height: Feet

Class Dry

Number of Stories

STRUCTURAL DESIGN

DESIGN LOADS:

Importance Factors: Wind (Iw)

Snow (Is)

Seismic  (Ie)

Live Loads: Roof psf

Mezzanine psf

Floor psf

Snow Load: psf

Wind Load: Basic Wind Speed mph (ASCE-7-10)

Exposure Category

Wind Base Shears (for MWFRS) Vx= Vy=

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY A

Compliance with Section 1616.4 only? Yes No

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY B, C, & D

Provide the following Seismic Design Parameters:

Seismic Use Group

Spectral Response Acceleration Sms       %g Smi      %g

Site Classification

Basic structural system (check one)

Bearing Wall

Building Frame

Moment Frame

Dual w/ Special Moment Frame

Dual w/ Intermediate R/C or Special Steel

Inverted Pendulum

Seismic Base Shear Vx= Vy=

Analysis Procedure Simplified Equivalent Lateral Force      Modal

Architectural, Mechanical, Components anchored?

LATERAL DESIGN CONTROL: Earthquake Wind

SOIL BEARING CAPACITIES:

Field Test (provide copy of test report) psf

Presumptive Bearing capacity psf

Pile size, type, and capacity

SIDE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

FRONT/REAR EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

S.12

VICTORIA RIGHT FLOOR PLAN/NOTES

S.11

ROBINSON RIGHT FLOOR PLAN/NOTES

S.10

SUTTON LEFT FLOOR PLAN/NOTES

S.09

VICTORIA LEFT FLOOR PLAN/NOTES

S.08

ROOF PLAN

S.07

ROOF FRAMING DETAILS

S.06WALL SECTIONS

S.05

BUILDING SECTIONS S.04

ROOF FRAMING DETAILS

S.03

ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S.02

FRAMING/BRACING DETAILS 2ND FLOOR

S.01

FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

FRAMING/BRACING DETAILS 1ST FLOOR

A.11

WALL DETAILS

A.10

BUILDING SECOND FLOOR PLAN

A.09

BUILDING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

A.08

A.07

FOUNDATION DETAILS

A.06

FOUNDATION PLAN

A.05

SITE UTLITY PLAN

A.04

A.03

A.02

A.01

APPENDIX B/TITLE T.01

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE PLAZAE
.

S
U

G
A

R

CREEK

RD.

E
A

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R
.

P
LA

Z
A

W
A

LK

D
R

.

MARJEED

DR.

EAVES LN.

SHAMROCK

DR.

P
H

IL

O
'N

E
IL

D
R

.

VICINITY MAP

N

TENANT PARTITION DETAILS

Habitat Townhomes at CITISIDE
925, 929, 933, 937 Plaza Walk Drive - Charlotte, NC 28215

Residential

Habitat for Humanity of Charlotte, Inc.

Carrie Masto 980-253-1352

704-376-2054

x

x

Habitat for Humanity of Charlotte, Inc.

Gavel & Dorn Engineering, PLLC Kirk T. Gavel 704 919-1900

2018 NC Residential Code

x

S.04 N/A

N/A N/A

U336

N/A

x
x

x

x

x
25 2

B

1.0
1.0
1.0

20
N/A
40

14

115
B

28.1 kips 12.7 kips

x

I

23 10

x

x

x

x

9.5 kips 9.5 kips

2000

Habitat for Humanity of Charlotte, Inc.
Townhomes at CITISIDE

GROSS BUILDING AREA
UNIT DESIGN

NAME
ADDRESS

VICTORIA LEFT 1131 SF

1147 SF

1131 SF

SUTTON LEFT

ROBINSON RIGHT

VICTORIA RIGHT

AREA
HEATED (SF)

1131 SF

45 SF

AREA
UNHEATED (SF)

45 SF

45 SF

45 SF

FOUNDATION
FOOTPRINT (SF)

609.45 SF

626.6 SF

609.45 SF

609.45 SF

NO

GARAGE?

NO

NO

NO

BLDG. HEIGHT
IN STORIES

2

2

2

2

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION
COST OF UNIT

$69,900

$69,900

$69,900

$71,750

925 Plaza Walk Drive

929 Plaza Walk Drive

933 Plaza Walk Drive

937 Plaza Walk Drive

STAIR DETAILS

929, 929, 933, 929 Plaza Walk Drive
Charlotte, NC 28215

APPROVED AS NOTED
20-Nov-2019

UNDER A LIMITED REVIEW FOR
COMPLIANCE WITH THE 2018
NC RESIDENTIAL CODE. THIS

APPROVAL SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED TO PERMIT ANY

VIOLATIONS OF LOCAL, STATE,
OR FEDERAL LAWS.

PLANS REVIEWED BY:

Fiona Yang

Project #: 402787   Addr: 925 Plaza Walk Dr, Charlotte
Approved as Noted

Sheet 1:
-U336 two-hour fire-rated area-separation wall utilized between units and at roof offsets with frame wall on each side of roof offsets. FRT roof sheathing used 4 ft. each way
off demising wall in lieu of a parapet. 
-Electrical, mechanical, fuel gas and plumbing are not part of review. -R310 Egress requirements met through recorded plat
-Field inspector verify #1 SP header lumber  -Field inspector verify the opening of attic access 20" x 30" minimum net clear opening per R807.1 (TYP.) -Field inspector verify
access hatches and door insulation per N1102.2.4 (TYP.) -Field inspector verify riser height, tread depth, nosing and headroom height details per R311 -Field inspector verify
under-stair protection per R302.7
-Field inspector verify concrete and masonry foundation slab shall extend above the finished grade adjacent to the foundation at all points a minimum 6" per R404.1.6
-Field inspector verify Handrail Height shall be 34”-38”  -Field inspector verify saw cut for roof sheathing on U336

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
520' SETBACK

PROPOSED
2 STORY
FRAME

QUADRAPLEX

CONC.
PATIO
(TYP)

EXISTING CITY WATER
AND SEWER

3
4" WATER LINE TO
BUILDING (TYP)

NEW 34" WATER TAP
AND METER BY CMUD
(TYP)

FIRE HYDRANT LOCATED AT
INTERSECTION OF PLAZA

WALK DRIVE AND CITISIDE
DRIVE

WATER LINE

SEWER LINE

1. Contractor to locate lateral tie-ins.
2. Maintain minimum 10' horizontal separation

between water line and other utility lines.
3. Place cleanouts on sanitary lines per plumbing

code requirements.
4. Contractor to provide as-built record drawings

to owner.
5. All sanitary sewer connections per city of

Charlotte standards.
6. Contractor responsible for obtaining

encroachment agreement permit as required to
construct utility lines.

SCHEMATIC SITE PLAN
1 NOT TO SCALE

A.01

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

1 1

11

1 1

11

1 1

11

1 1

11

2 2 2 2

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

RIDGE VENT AS REQUIRED

25 YR. FIBERGLASS SHINGLE CLASS A

CERTAINTEED  INSTALLED OVER 7
16" OSB, 15#

FELT (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS), MEETS FIRE

RESISTANCE CODE REQUIREMENTS

6X6 EXTERIOR TURN POST,
WITH POST BASE, PAINTED

VINYL LAP SIDING W/ TRIM (TYP)
INSTALLED OVER WALL

SHEATHING (INSTALL PER
MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN

INSTRUCTIONS)

VINYL SHAKES INSTALLED OVER 7
16" OSB,

AND HOUSE WRAP

VINYL PERFORATED SOFFIT @
EAVES

PORCH BEAM, WRAPPED AND
PAINTED

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

12

5

12

5

12

5
12

5

8'-1 12"

0'-0"

9'-41
4"

17'-5"

*PROVIDE HANDRAILS/GUARDRAILS PER NCRC 2018 SECTION(S) R311 & R312, MUST MEET CODE

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3 3 3 3

8'-1 12"

0'-0"

9'-41
4"

17'-5"

RIDGE VENT AS REQUIRED

25 YR. FIBERGLASS SHINGLE CLASS A

CERTAINTEED  INSTALLED OVER 7
16" OSB, 15#

FELT (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS), MEETS FIRE

RESISTANCE CODE REQUIREMENTS

POURED CONCRETE PATIO

VINYL LAP SIDING W/ TRIM (TYP)
INSTALLED OVER WALL SHEATHING

(INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS)

VINYL SHAKES INSTALLED OVER 7
16" OSB,

AND HOUSE WRAP

VINYL PERFORATED SOFFIT @
EAVES

EXTERIOR OUT SWING DOOR
TO STORAGE

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

TENANT SEPARATION

FIRE RETARDANT
TREATED PLYWOOD

ROOFING @ 4'-0" E.S. OF
TENANT SEPARATION

FRONT ELEVATION
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
2

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

A.02

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

11

8'-1 12"

0'-0"

9'-41
4"

17'-5"

4X4 EXTERIOR
TURN POST, WITH

POST BASE,
PAINTED

RIDGE VENTS AS REQUIRED

VINYL SHAKES INSTALLED

OVER 7
16" OSB, HOUSE

WRAP

25 YR. FIBERGLASS SHINGLE CLASS A

CERTAINTEED  INSTALLED OVER 7
16" OSB, 15#

FELT (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S
WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS), MEETS FIRE
RESISTANCE CODE REQUIREMENTS

6X6 EXTERIOR TURN POST,
WITH POST BASE, PAINTED

VINYL LAP SIDING W/ TRIM (TYP)
INSTALLED OVER WALL
SHEATHING (INSTALL PER
MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN
INSTRUCTIONS)

VINYL PERFORATED SOFFIT @
EAVES

PORCH BEAM, WRAPPED AND
PAINTED

12

5
12

5

1

11

8'-1 12"

0'-0"

9'-41
4"

17'-5"

12

5

12

5

4X4 EXTERIOR
TURN POST, WITH
POST BASE,
PAINTED

1

TYPCIAL ROOF CONSTRUCTION:
ASPHALT/FIBER GLASS SHINGLES, #15 ROOFING

FELT, 7
16" APA RATED ROOF SHEATHING WITH

METAL H-CLIPS.  TIE EACH TRUSS/RAFTER END
TO STUD WALL TOP PLATES WITH SIMPSOM H25

TIE (OR EQUIVALENT)

EXTERIOR

ROOF TRUSS

FASCIA

NON-COMBUSTIBLE
SOFFIT PORCH

(2) 2X10 PORCH BEAM W/ 3
4"  MDF,

CAULKED & PAINTED

6X6 POST BASE
OR SIMILAR

1
2" ANCHOR BOLT

EMBEDDED IN
FOOTING BELOW

UNIT

TREATED 2X6 GUARDRAIL W/ 2X4
CAP 2X TREATED

HANDRAIL

4X4 TREATED
POST ANCH. TO

BRICK STEP W/ 1
2"

Ø EMBED.
ANCHOR BOLT

TREATED
PICKETS 5"
O.C., TYP

SIDE ELEVATION
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

SIDE ELEVATION
2

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

TYP. SECTION @ FRONT PORCH
3

SCALE: 12"=1'-0"

HANDRAIL/GUARDRAIL
4 IF APPLICABLE

A.03

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Dig continuous footing under all foundation
walls; 8" minimum thickness, with (2) #4 rebar,
continuous, on supports, @ 4'-0" O.C.
maximum.

2. All walls, including porhces, must be inside set
back lines.

3. See plan for thickened slab/load bearing
interior wall locations:

3.1. 10" deep X 18" wide minimum footing with
(2) #4 continuous rebar.

4. 4" of 3000 PSI concrete, 10 mil. vapor barrier
with minimum 4" washed stone or equivalent
recycled concrete over compacted fill, rigid-5
insulation.

5. Strap Anchors: Per NCRC 2018 R403.1.6,
Foundation Anchorage

5.1. Locate Simpson MAB15 strap anchors or
equiv. within 12" of each corner, both
sides of exterior doors, and a minimum of
46" O.C.

5.2. 6.5" minimum embedment; see details
Sheet S.01

6. Termite Treatment: Structure to be treated for
termites when framing is complete.

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

87'-3
7
8
"

6'-0" 6'-0" 6'-0"6'-0"

10'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0"10'-0"

7
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

7
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

7
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

7
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

80'-0"

3
0
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

3
5
'-
0
"

2'-4"

12'-5"

22'-41
2"

32'-51
2"

2'-4"

12'-5"

22'-41
2"

32'-51
2"

2
'-1

0
1 2
"

2
'-1

0
1 2
"

2
'-1

0
1 2
"

2
'-1

0
1 2
"

19'-11"

40'-0"

19'-11"

40'-0"

9'-103
4"

29'-111
4"

9'-103
4"

29'-111
4"

3'-103
4" 4'-01

4" 3'-103
4"4'-01

4"

3
0
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

3
5
'-
0
"

10'-0" 11'-4" 11'-4" 10'-0"

40" THRESHOLD
PROJECTION

FOR 36" DOOR,
TYP

1
6
'-8

3 4
"

1
2
'-1

1
1 4
"

1
2
'-1

1
1 4
"

1
6
'-8

3 4
"

1
2
'-1

1
1 4
"

1
6
'-8

3 4
"

1
6
'-8

3 4
"

1
2
'-1

1
1 4
"

23'-111
4"

56'-03
4"

76'-11
4"

9'-11
4"

20'-5"

8'-83
4" 8'-83

4" 9'-11
4"

3'-6" 4'-87
8
" 3'-01

8
"

20'-5"45'-27
8"

23'-11" 16'-7"

3
'-
6
" 5
'-
0
"

1
'-
6
"

1
'-
6
"4'-53

8"

1
'-
6
" 4'-53

8"

2
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

1
'-
6
" 3

'-
6
" 5
'-
0
"

3
'-
6
"

2' WIDE THICKENED
SLAB W/ (2) #4 CONT

(TYP)

2' WIDE THICKENED
SLAB W/ (2) #4 CONT

(TYP)

2' WIDE THICKENED
SLAB W/ (2) #4 CONT
(TYP)

1'-4" WIDE
THICKENED SLAB W/
(2) #4 CONT (TYP)

1'-4" WIDE
THICKENED SLAB W/
(2) #4 CONT (TYP)

1'-4" WIDE
THICKENED SLAB W/

(2) #4 CONT (TYP)

1'-4" WIDE
THICKENED SLAB W/

(2) #4 CONT (TYP)

S.01 S.01

3 3

4
S.01

44 4

3

S.01

S.01

S.01

4

S.01

2
S.01S.01

2
S.01

S.01

1

S.01

2

S.01

4
S.01

4
S.01

S.01

4

44
S.01S.01

4 4
S.01

19'-11"

S.01

1 1
S.01

1
S.01

2
S.01

2
S.01

2
S.01

FOUNDATION FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

A.04

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Exterior Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Interior Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*
*unless otherwise noted

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1) of the 2018 NC RES BLDG Code

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Victoria Left

Sutton Left

Robinson Right

Victoria Right

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

5
'-
0

"
H

2'-9"

G

A

3'-4"

A

15'-4"

3'-4"

WASHDRYER

K

5'-31
4"

UP

3'-43
4" 6'-8"

F3
'-
4

"

8'-53
4"

5
'-1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.

A

2
'-
0

"

A

FRONT

A

A

3'-4"

WASHDRYER

K

5'-31
4"

UP

3'-51
4"

F3
'-
4

"

8'-53
4"

5
'-1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W. H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

6'-8"

A

FRONT

3'-4"

A

WASH DRYER

K

UP

F 3
'-
4

"

FUT
D.W.

A

5
'-1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

6'-8" 5'-31
4"3'-51

4"

15'-41
2" 15'-41

2"

3'-4"

A
DRYER

K

UP

F 3
'-
4

"

FUT
D.W.

A

3
'-
4

"
5

'-1
0

1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.

5'-31
4"

15'-4"

WASH

FRONT 5
'-
0

"

A

H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

3'-43
4"6'-8"

3
'-
6

"

FUT
D.W.

FUT
D.W.

FUT
D.W.

FUT
D.W.

11'-4"10'-0" 11'-4" 10'-0"

11

1

11

10'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0"

1
0

'-
0

"

4'-0" 5'-8"

2
'-1

1
1 2
"

9
'-2

1 2
"

8
'-
7

"

4'-83
8
"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

5"

1
0

'-
5

"

3
'-
2

"

7
'-
0

"
3

'-
0

"

3
0

'-
0

"

3
5

'-
0

"

4'-13
8"

1
'-
6

"

2
'-
1

"

1
0

'-
5

"

3
'-
2

"

2
'-
1

"

1
0

'-
5

"

3
'-
2

"

2
'-
1

"

1
0

'-
5

"

3
'-
2

"

2
'-
1

"

31
2" 31

2" 31
2"31

2"

2
'-1

1
1 2
"

9
'-2

1 2
"

3
0

'-
0

"

2'-4" 4'-13
8"

3'-0"

3333

1
0

'-
0

"

1
0

'-
0

"

1
0

'-
0

"4'-9"
CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

4'-9"
CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

4'-9"
CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

4'-9"
CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

(2) 2X10 #1 OR
BETTER GRADE
SOUTHERN PINE
PORCH BEAMS, E.S.
TYP

4x4 TURN
POST W/
POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH
BEAM, TYP

4'-0" 5'-8" 4'-0"5'-8"4'-0"5'-8"

2
'-1

1
1 2
"

2
'-1

1
1 2
"

6X6 TREATED POST
W/ POST BASE, TYP

5'-41
4"

C/L OF
BEAM

5'-23
8

"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

4'-83
8

"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

5
'-
0

"

3
'-
0

"

1
'-
6

"

1
'-
6

"
3

'-
6

"

S.05

1

S.05

2

1 1

1

3'-6" 4'-87
8
" 3'-01

8
"

80'-0"

3

2
'-
0

"

3

2
'-
0

"

TILE
TIL

ETILE
TILE

TILE TILE TILE TILE

4x4 TURN
POST W/
POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH
BEAM, TYP

4x4 TURN POST W/ POST
BASE, TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH

BEAM, TYP

4x4 TURN
POST W/

POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH

BEAM, TYP

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

A.05

See notes on cover sheet

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Exterior Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Interior Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*
*unless otherwise noted

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1) of the 2018 NC RES BLDG Code

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Victoria Left

Sutton Left

Robinson Right

Victoria Right

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN

111 1

11

2

DOWN

111 1

11

2

PORCH ROOF

D D

D

GG

G

GG

G
G

G

D D

DG

E E

PORCH ROOF PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN

1 1 11

1 1

2

DOWN

1 1 11

1 1

2

PORCH ROOF

DD

D

G G

G

G G

G
G

G

DD

D G

EE

PORCH ROOF

1

3

1

3

9'-43
4" 9'-51

4" 9'-51
4" 9'-51

4" 9'-51
4" 9'-51

4" 9'-51
4" 9'-43

4"

1
0
'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

5
'-0

1 4
"

4'-4"

8'-93
4" 10'-01

4"

4'-83
8

"

5
'-0

1 4
"

7
'-7

3 4
"

5'-01
4"

4'-01
2" 1'-51

4" 3'-6"2'-01
4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

5'-93
4"

3
'-
4
"

19'-9"19'-9"19'-9"19'-9"

1
0
'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

5
'-0

1 4
"

4'-4"

8'-93
4"10'-01

4"

4'-83
8
"

5
'-0

1 4
"

7
'-7

3 4
"

5'-01
4"

4'-01
2"1'-51

4"3'-6" 2'-01
4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

5'-93
4"

3
'-
4
"

3'-6"2'-01
4"4'-1" 1'-51

4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

3
'-
4
"

5'-93
4"

5
'-0

1 4
"

7
'-7

3 4
"

5'-01
4"

4'-41
2"

8'-93
4"

10'-03
4"

1
0
'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

3'-6" 2'-01
4" 4'-1"1'-51

4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

3
'-
4
"

5'-93
4"

5
'-0

1 4
"

7
'-7

3 4
"

5'-01
4"

4'-41
2"

8'-93
4"10'-03

4"

1
0
'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

WINDOWS IN LINE WITH
WINDOWS BELOW, TYP

80'-0"

2'-87
8

"

6'-81
8

"

3'-23
4"

7'-2"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

A.06

See notes on cover sheet

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019
500 SQ. FT. OF CEILING/300 =   2.0 SQ. FT. REQ.

RIDGE VENTS  =  2.0 X 0.5 =   1.0 SQ. FT. REQ.
0.083 SQ. FT. VENT/LN. FT
(1.0 / .083 = 12.1) =   12.1 LN. FT. REQ.

SOFFIT VENTS  =  2.0 X 0.5 =   1.0 SQ. FT. REQ.
0.062 SQ. FT. VENT/LN. FT.
(1.0 / .062 = 16.13) =   16.3 LN. FT. REQ.

*NOTE: CALCULATIONS ARE PER UNIT (19'-9" X 30'-0")

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

80'-0"

3
0
'-
0
"

FIRE RETARDANT TREATED PLYWOOD
SHEATHING WHEN PARALELL TO AND
WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY LINE

PORCH ROOF
BELOW

PORCH ROOF
BELOW

PORCH ROOF
BELOW

PORCH ROOF
BELOW

PORCH ROOF BELOW PORCH ROOF BELOW PORCH ROOF BELOW PORCH ROOF BELOW

FIRE RETARDANT TREATED PLYWOOD
SHEATHING WHEN PARALELL TO AND
WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY LINE

FIRE RETARDANT TREATED PLYWOOD
SHEATHING WHEN PARALELL TO AND
WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY LINE

UNIT PROPERY LINE

3
4" AIR SPACE

1
2" GYP. BD.
2X4 @ 16" O.C.
5-15 INSULATION

ROOF PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

A.07

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Ext. Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Int. Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1)

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

5
'-
0
"

H

2'-9"

G

A

3'-4"

A

15'-4"

3'-4"

WASH
DRYER

K

5'-31
4"

UP

3'-43
4" 6'-8"

F3
'-
4
"

8'-53
4"

5
'-
1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.

A

FUT
D.W.

10'-0"

11

10'-0"

1
0

'-
0
"

4'-0" 5'-8"

2
'-
1

1
1 2
"

9
'-
2

1 2
"

8
'-
7
"

4'-83
8

"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

5"

1
0

'-
5
"

3
'-
2
"

7
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

3
0

'-
0
"

3
5

'-
0
"

4'-13
8

"
1

'-
6
"

2
'-
1
"

31
2"

3

4'-9"
CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

(2) 2X10 #1 OR
BETTER GRADE
SOUTHERN PINE
PORCH BEAMS, E.S.
TYP

6X6 TREATED POST
W/ POST BASE, TYP

S.05

1

S.05

2

3

2
'-
0
"

TILE

TILE

4x4 TURN POST W/ POST
BASE, TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH

BEAM, TYP

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN

111 1

11

2

D D

D

GG

G
G

G

E

1

3

9'-43
4" 9'-51

4"

1
0

'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

5
'-
0

1 4
"

4'-4"

8'-93
4" 10'-01

4"

4'-83
8

"

5
'-
0

1 4
"

7
'-
7
3 4

"

5'-01
4"

4'-01
2" 1'-51

4" 3'-6"2'-01
4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

5'-93
4"

3
'-
4
"

19'-9"

VICTORIA LEFT FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

VICTORIA LEFT SECOND FLOOR PLAN
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

A.08

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Ext. Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Int. Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1)

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

2
'-
0
"

A

FRONT

A

A

3'-4"

WASH
DRYER

K

5'-31
4"

UP

3'-51
4"

F3
'-
4
"

8'-53
4"

5
'-
1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W. H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

6'-8"

15'-41
2"

FUT
D.W.

11'-4"

1

10'-0"

1
0

'-
5
"

3
'-
2
"

2
'-
1
"

31
2"

2'-4"

3

1
0

'-
0
"4'-9"

CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR4'-0" 5'-8"

2
'-
1

1
1 2
"

5'-41
4"

C/L OF
BEAM

5
'-
0
"

3
'-
0
"

1

3'-6"

TILE

TILE

4x4 TURN
POST W/

POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH

BEAM, TYP

DOWN

111 1

11

2

PORCH ROOF

GG

G

D D

DG

E

PORCH ROOF

9'-51
4" 9'-51

4"

19'-9"

3'-6"2'-01
4"4'-1" 1'-51

4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

3
'-
4
"

5'-93
4"

5
'-
0

1 4
"

7
'-
7
3 4

"

5'-01
4"

4'-41
2"

8'-93
4"

10'-03
4"

1
0

'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

WINDOWS IN LINE WITH
WINDOWS BELOW, TYP

2'-87
8

"

6'-81
8

"

SUTTON LEFT FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

SUTTON LEFT SECOND FLOOR PLAN
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

A.09

606 sf

548 sf

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Ext. Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Int. Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1)

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

A

FRONT

3'-4"

A

WASH
DRYER

K

UP

F 3
'-
4
"

FUT
D.W.

A

5
'-
1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

6'-8" 5'-31
4"3'-51

4"

15'-41
2"

3
'-
6
"

FUT
D.W.

11'-4"

10'-0"

1
0

'-
5
"

3
'-
2
"

2
'-
1
"

31
2"

3'-0"

3

1
0

'-
0
" 4'-9"

CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR 4'-0"5'-8"

2
'-
1

1
1 2
"

5'-23
8"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

1
'-
6
"

1 1

4'-87
8

" 3'-01
8

"

TILE

TILE

4x4 TURN
POST W/
POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH
BEAM, TYP

DOWN

1 1 11

1 1

2

PORCH ROOF

G G

G

DD

D G

E

PORCH ROOF

9'-51
4" 9'-51

4"

19'-9"

3'-6" 2'-01
4" 4'-1"1'-51

4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

3
'-
4
"

5'-93
4"

5
'-
0

1 4
"

7
'-
7
3 4

"

5'-01
4"

4'-41
2"

8'-93
4"10'-03

4"

1
0

'-
1
"

2
'-
1
"

3'-23
4"

7'-2"

ROBINSON RIGHT FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

ROBINSON RIGHT SECOND FLOOR PLAN
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

A.10

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Plans to be built per the 2018 North Carolina
Residential Code.

2. All dimensions from face face of framing.
3. All wall studs are 2X4 unless otherwise noted.
4. Bracing Method: CS-WSP (Continuous

Sheathing-Wood Structural Panel) per table
602.10.1.

4.1. 1
2" X 4' X 8' OSB shall be fastened,
continuous, with 8d common nails spaced
6" O.C. at edges and 12" O.C. in the field.

5. 1
2" rigid insulation shall be used as
water-resistive barrier.  All seams and joints to

be taped with 27
8" construction tape.

6. Face of sheathing @ exterior walls to align with
face of masonry below.

7. All window locations to be determined on site
unless otherwise dimensioned.

8. All windows and doors to be covered by
porches and flashed.

9. All windows and doors shall have an overall
U-Factor of .35 or less, and a SHGC of .30 or
less.

10. Water resistant flooring shall be used in
kitchen, bathroom(s), and laundry areas AND

w/in 3 feet of all exterior doors.
11. Clothes dryer shall be exhausted directly to

outdoors.
12. Drain and drain pan -OR- single throw supply

valve shall be installed for clothes washer.
13. Water heater to be located in designated

closet as shown; drain and drain pan shall be
installed; drain shall lead directly to outdoors.

14. HVAC attic return to be located in hall ceiling.
15. Engineered roof trusses (by others) shall be

installed 2'-0" O.C., in-line with framing below,
shall bear on exterior walls ONLY (unless
otherwise noted), have a raised heel, and 12"
overhangs.

16. Any building face within 10' of property line
requires protection behind aluminum & vinyl
soffits per NCRC 2018 Section R302.1.1.

17. TERMITE TREATMENT: Treatment of all
framing within 3' of foundation.

18. Insulation shall be installed per manufacturer's
specs with no substantial gaps, voids,
compressions, or wind intrusion.  Insulation
and air barrier shall be in physical contact with
each other.

19. Seal external cracks, joints, etc. around
windows and doors with caulking and install
pest proof screens.

20. Provide minimum of 20' X 10' concrete
driveway AND 4' sidewalk to front door.

1. 2'-8"X4'-4"
2. 2'-8" X 3'0"
3. 2'-8"X4'-4" Tempered

Meets all egress and glazing
requirements per 2018 NC
RES BLDG Code

36" Exterior Metal Entry Door Windows 1st
Ext Doors 1st

(2) 2X10
(2) 2X10

Ext. Walls - 2X4s @ 16" O.C.
Int. Walls - 2X4s @ 24" O.C.*

A

32" Exterior Metal Entry DoorB

24" Interior DoorC

32" Interior DoorD

18" Interior DoorE

30" Interior DoorF

G

H

28" Interior Door

I

36" Interior Door

J

36" Bi-hung Interior Door

K

48" Bi-hung Interior Door

60" Bi-hung Interior Door

Windows 2nd (2) 2X6

First floor (2)

Per Table R602.7(1)

Second floor (1)

#1 or better grade
Southern Pine lumber
per NCRC 2018 Table
R602.7(1)

Heated Unheated

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

3'-4"

A
DRYER

K

UP

F 3
'-
4
"

FUT
D.W.

A

3
'-
4
"

5
'-
1

0
1 2
"

H
A

L
F

 W
A

L
L

H.W.

5'-31
4"

15'-4"

WASH

FRONT

A

H

2'-9"

G

3'-4"

3'-43
4"6'-8"

FUT
D.W.

10'-0"

11

10'-0"

1
0

'-
5
"

3
'-
2
"

2
'-
1
"

31
2"

4'-13
8

"

3

1
0

'-
0
" 4'-9"

CENTER
PORCH

OVER DOOR

4x4 TURN
POST W/
POST BASE,
TYP

(2) 2X6
PORCH
BEAM, TYP

4'-0"5'-8"

4'-83
8

"

C/L OF
WINDOWS

1
'-
6
"

3
'-
6
"

TIL
E

TILE

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN

1 1 11

1 1

2

DD

D

G G

G
G

G

E

1

3

9'-51
4" 9'-43

4"

19'-9"

1

4'-4"

8'-93
4"10'-01

4"

4'-83
8

"

5
'-
0

1 4
"

7
'-
7
3 4

"

5'-01
4"

4'-01
2"1'-51

4"3'-6" 2'-01
4"

2
'-
1
"

4
'-
2
"

5'-93
4"

3
'-
4
"

VICTORIA RIGHT FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

VICTORIA RIGHT SECOND FLOOR PLAN
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

A.11

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

����������	

6X6 TREATED
POST

6X6 PORCH
POST BASE,

WITH 12"
ANCHOR BOLT
EMBED. PORCH SLAB

(2) #4 (MIN) CONT.
W/ #4 SPACER @
4'-0" O.C., TYP.

2X4 EXT.WALL W/ 1
2"

EXT.SHEATHING,
HOUSE WRAP, R-15
BATT INSULATION,

VINYL SIDING

2X4 P.T. SILL IN A
BED OF SEALANT

2X4 PRESSURE TREATED SILL
IN A BED OF SEALANT,
SIMPSON MAB15 STRAP
ANCHOR OR EQUIV. @ 46" O,C,
6.5" MIN, EMBED., 6" @ E.S. OF
DOOR

4" CONCRETE SLAB ON 6 MIL.
POLY V.B. ON SELECT BACKFILL

1'-4"

8" MIN

3"

3"

VARIES

2'-8"

3"

4"

VARIES
1'-4" MIN.

4"

GRADE SLOPE

4"

����������	

GRADE SLOPE
4"

1'-4"

3"

3"

3"

3"

VARIES

(2) #4 (MIN)
CONT. W/ #4

SPACER @ 4'-0"
O.C., TYP.

2X4 EXT.WALL W/ 1
2" EXT.SHEATHING,

HOUSE WRAP, R-15 BATT
INSULATION, VINYL SIDING

4" CONCRETE SLAB ON 6 MIL. POLY
V.B. ON SELECT BACKFILL

4"

2X4 PRESSURE TREATED SILL
IN A BED OF SEALANT,
SIMPSON MAB15 STRAP
ANCHOR OR EQUIV. @ 46" O,C,
6.5" MIN, EMBED., 6" @ E.S. OF
DOOR



�

2X4 WOOD STUDS-TYP
SEE FIRE WALL DETAIL
(S.03)

2'

1' 1'

3"

3"
2X4 PRESSURE TREATED SILL
W/ SIMPSON TITEN HEAD
ANCHOR OR EQUIV. @ 48" O.C.
& 10" FROM CORNERS (TYP)

(2) #4 (MIN) CONT.
W/ #4 SPACER @

4'-0" O.C., TYP.

4" CONCRETE SLAB
ON 6 MIL. POLY V.B.

ON SELECT BACKFILL

4"

4"

2X4 WOOD LOAD BEARING
STUD WALL, TYP- SEE PLAN

2X4 PRESSURE TREATED SILL
W/ SIMPSON TITEN HEAD
ANCHOR OR EQUIV. @ 48" O.C.
& 10" FROM CORNERS (TYP)

(2) #4 (MIN) CONT.
W/ #4 SPACER @

4'-0" O.C., TYP.

4" CONCRETE SLAB
ON 6 MIL. POLY V.B.

ON SELECT BACKFILL

4"

8"

1'-4"

4"

TYPICAL SECTION @ FRONT PORCH
2

SCALE: 34"=1'-0"

FOUNDATION WALL (TYP.)
1

SCALE: 34"=1'-0"

THICKENED SLAB @ TENANT PARTITION WALL
3

SCALE: 34"=1'-0"

THICKENED SLAB @ INTERIOR LOAD BEARING WALL
4

SCALE: 34"=1'-0" S.01

See notes on cover sheet

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

UNIT

UNIT

EXTERIOR

USG H-STUDS
24" O.C.

(2) 1" GYP.
LINER PANELS

1
2" G.W.B.

MIN. R-15 INSULATION FOR
THERMAL ENVELOPE OF EACH
UNIT

2X4 WALL STUD (SEE
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
STUD GRADE AND SPACING)

R-15 BATT INSUL.

WATER BARRIER

1
2" G.W.B.

VAPOR BARRIER

VINYL SIDING

USG C-RUNNER

1
2" OSB OR PLYWOOD
SHEATHING

2X4 STUDS, TYP

UNIT

USG H-STUDS
24" O.C.

(2) 1" GYP.
LINER PANELS

1
2" G.W.B.

UNIT

MIN. R-15 INSULATION FOR
THERMAL ENVELOPE OF EACH
UNIT

R-15 BATT INSUL.

WATER BARRIER

1
2" G.W.B.

VAPOR BARRIER

VINYL SIDING

USG C-RUNNER

1
2" OSB OR PLYWOOD
SHEATHING

2X4 STUDS, TYP

EXTERIOR

1
2" OSB OR PLYWOOD
SHEATHING

UNIT SAME UNIT

1 LAYER G.W.B.

(MIN. 12")

2X4 WOOD STUD

NOTE:
FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION,
REFERENCE UL

ASSEMBLIES
SHEET S.03

UNIT

UNIT

USG H-STUDS,
24" O.C.

MIN. R-15
INSULATION FOR
THERMAL ENVELOPE
OF EA. UNIT

(2) 1" GYPSUM
LINER PANELS

1
2" G.W.B.

2X4 WOOD STUD

UNIT

EXTERIOR

R-15 BATT
INSULATION

WATER BARRIER

1
2" G.W.B.

VINYL SIDING

1
2" OSB OR PLYWOOD
SHEATHING

2X4 WOOD STUD

EXTERIOR WALL INTERSECTION W/O BAY
4 U336 (2 HR. RATING)

EXTERIOR WALL INTERSECTION W/ BAY
5SCALE: 1"=1'-0" SCALE: 1"=1'-0"U336 (2 HR. RATING)

PARTITION WALL
1 NO RATING SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

TENANT PARTITION
2 2 HR. RATING SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL
1 NO RATING SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

S.02

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

.063" USG ALUMINUM
ANGLE CLIPS

3/8" TYPE S PAN HEAD SCREW

1/2" G.W.B. (NOT PART OF RATED ASSEMBLY)

THERMAFIBER SAFB (optional)

(2) 1" SHEETROCK
BRAND GYPSUM LINER PANELS

(2) 2" USG C-RUNNERS

1 1/4" TYPE W OR S SCREW

3/4" AIR SPACE

INTERMEDIATE FLOOR

STEEL "C" RUNNER

CONCRETE FOUNDATION

ROOF TRUSSES

(2) 2" USG
C-RUNNERS

TREATED PLATE

1/2" FIRED RETARDANT PLYWOOD WITHIN 4'-0"
OF TENANT SEPARATION

FOUNDATION

.063" USG ALUMINUM
ANGLE CLIPS
(per installation guidelines)

FLOOR TRUSSES

3/4" T & G OSB

R-38 BLOWN INSULATION

1/2" GYPSUM WALL BOARD @
CEILING

1/2" GYPSUM WALL BOARD @
CEILING

R-15 INSULATION

GYPSUM WALLBOARD, STEEL H STUDS

Two layers 1" x 24" proprietary type X gypsum panels inserted between 2" floor and ceiling
     runners with 2" steel H studs between adjacent pairs of  gypsum panels. (NLB)

A 34" minimum air space must be maintained between steel components and adjancent
     framing (as indicated by dashed lines in sketch).  As an alternate to an air space, the

     steel components are covered with 6" wide battens of 12" gypsum board or 1" mineral
     fiber insulation.  As an alternate to battens, one or both faces of separation wall are

     covered with 1" mineral fiber insulation stapled to the gypsum liner panels or 12" regular
     gypsum board screw attached to the steel components.

Sound tested with 2 x 4 stud wall faced with 12" regular gypsum wallboard each side of
     assembly and 3" mineral fiber in stud space on both sides.

PROPRIETARY GYPSUM BOARD
United States Gypsum Compant                    -                  1" SHEETROCK   Brand Gypsum

                                                                                         Liner Panels

R

AREA SEPARATION WALLS

GA FILE NO. ASW 1000 PROPRIETARY 2 HOUR

FIRE

60 to 64 STC

SOUND

Thickness:             3 1
2"

Approx. Weight:     9 psf
Fire Test:                UL R1319, 89NK28786,
                               5-14-90,
                               UL Design U336
Sound Test:            RAL TL88-350, 9-12-88

AREA SEPARATION WALL
3

(GA File no. ASW1000; 2-HR RATING SCALE: 12"=1'-0"

2-HR CONTINUATION
1 @ TURNED GABLE; NOT TO SCALE

2-HR CONTINUATION
2 @ EAVE; NOT TO SCALE

S.03

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

TREAD AND NOSING 

PER NCRC 2018

SECTION R311.7.5

3
4

" 
M

IN
.-

3
6
" 

M
A

X
.

FIRST FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR

FLOOR JOISTS SEE PLANS

1
0
'-7

7 1
6

"

3'-101
2"

8
'-1

1 2
"

3
2
"

3
'-6

" 
R

A
K

E

W
A

L
L

HANDRAIL

9
'-6

1 4
"

8
'-1

1 2
"

7
'-5

5 8
"

8
'-
1
"

STAIR DETAIL
3

SCALE: 38"=1'-0"

BUILDING SECTION
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

BUILDING SECTION
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

S.04

See notes on cover sheet

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

4'-8"

WINDOW HEIGHT
LOCATION IN

STAIRWELL, NOT AT
LANDING HEIGHT

5'-0"
RAKE WALL

2X8 JOISTS, TYP

(2) 2X8 HEADER

62 34" JACK STUD,
E.S.

2X4 SUPPORT
WALL

FLOOR JOISTS
CANTILEVER

1
'-
4
"

HANDRAIL,
RETURNED TO WALL

TREAD AND NOSING
PER NCRC 2018
SECTION R311.7.5

STAIR LANDING FRAMING
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

S.05

STAIR ELEVATION
1

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

STAIR SECTION
2

SCALE: 3
16"=1'-0"

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

TYPCIAL ROOF CONSTRUCTION:
ASPHALT/FIBER GLASS SHINGLES, #15 ROOFING

FELT, 7
16" APA RATED ROOF SHEATHING WITH

METAL H-CLIPS.  TIE EACH TRUSS/RAFTER END
TO STUD WALL TOP PLATES WITH SIMPSOM H25

TIE (OR EQUIVALENT)

USE FIRE RATED PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING
WHEN PARALLEL TO AND WITHIN 4'-0" OF

PROPERTY LINE ONLY

FASCIA

NON COMBUSTIBLE SOFFITS TO
COMPLY WITH NCRC 2018 R302.2.5

• NO OPENINGS 4' EACH SIDE
OF PROPERTY LINE

• 1 HOUR CONSTRUCTION ON
UNDERSIDE WITHIN THE FIRE

SEPARATION DISTANCE

VINYL SIDING INSTALLED OVER
1
2" FIRE RATED PLYWOOD
WHEN PARALLEL TO AND

WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY
LINE, HOUSE WRAP

FLOOR TRUSS

3
4" OSB FIRE BLOCKING TAPED

BETWEEN FLOOR JOISTS
WHEN PARALLEL TO OR

WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY
LINE

R-38 BLOWN INSULATION

SOLID 2X BLOCK WHEN
PARALLEL TO AND WITHIN
4'-0" OF PROPERTY LINE

R-15 BATT INSULATION

1
2" GYP. WALL BOARD

3
4" T&G OSB INSTALLED
OVER FLOOR TRUSSES

1
2" GYP. WALL BOARD

TYPCIAL ROOF CONSTRUCTION:
ASPHALT/FIBER GLASS SHINGLES, #15 ROOFING

FELT, 7
16" APA RATED ROOF SHEATHING WITH

METAL H-CLIPS.  TIE EACH TRUSS/RAFTER END
TO STUD WALL TOP PLATES WITH SIMPSOM H25

TIE (OR EQUIVALENT)

USE FIRE RATED PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING
WHEN PARALLEL TO AND WITHIN 4'-0" OF

PROPERTY LINE ONLY

FASCIA

NON COMBUSTIBLE SOFFITS TO
COMPLY WITH NCRC 2018 R302.2.5

• NO OPENINGS 4' EACH SIDE
OF PROPERTY LINE

• 1 HOUR CONSTRUCTION ON
UNDERSIDE WITHIN THE FIRE

SEPARATION DISTANCE

VINYL SIDING INSTALLED OVER
1
2" OSB, HOUSE WRAP

FLOOR TRUSS

3
4" OSB FIRE BLOCKING TAPED

BETWEEN FLOOR JOISTS
WHEN PARALLEL TO OR

WITHIN 4'-0" OF PROPERTY
LINE

R-38 BLOWN INSULATION

SOLID 2X BLOCK WHEN
PARALLEL TO AND WITHIN
4'-0" OF PROPERTY LINE

R-15 BATT INSULATION

1
2" GYP. WALL BOARD

3
4" T&G OSB INSTALLED
OVER FLOOR TRUSSES

1
2" GYP. WALL BOARD

FASCIA

NON COMBUSTIBLE SOFFITS TO
COMPLY WITH NCRC 2018 R302.2.5
• NO OPENINGS 4' EACH SIDE OF

PROPERTY LINE
• 1 HOUR CONSTRUCTION ON

UNDERSIDE WITHIN THE FIRE
SEPARATION DISTANCE

4x4 TREATED POST, EXTENDED
AND ANCHORED TO PORCH
PAD & FOOTING BELOW

SIMPSON POST BASE OR
SIMILAR

1
2" ANCHOR BOLT EMBED. IN
FOOTING BELOW

FLOOR TRUSS

(2) 2X6 PORCH BEAM,
WRAPPED AND PAINTED

VINYL SIDING

ALUMINUM FLASHING

1
2" VINYL J-CHANNEL

TYPCIAL ROOF CONSTRUCTION:
ASPHALT/FIBER GLASS SHINGLES,

#15 ROOFING FELT, 7
16" APA RATED

ROOF SHEATHING WITH METAL
H-CLIPS.  TIE EACH TRUSS/RAFTER
END TO STUD WALL TOP PLATES
WITH SIMPSOM H25 TIE (OR
EQUIVALENT)

R-15 BATT INSULATION

1
2" GYP. WALL BOARD

3
4" T&G OSB INSTALLED

OVER FLOOR TRUSSES

TYP. SECTION (PROTECTED)
1

SCALE: 12"=1'-0"

TYPICAL SECTION
2

SCALE: 12"=1'-0"

BACK PORCH DETAIL
3

SCALE: 12"=1'-0" S.06

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

WB & WBC MODELS

LENGTH 14'-3"

SECTION 11
4"

ANGLE & WALL SIZE 8' @ 51°

PLATES 2 - 16d

STUDS 1 - 8d

*NOTE: 2-"X" BRACE
SECTIONS REQ'D. ON 2ND
FLOOR EA. SIDE OF
TENANT PARTITION (FIRE)
WALL.

1. All bearing headers are #1 or better grade
2x10 Southern Pine per NCRC 2018
R602.7(1), unless otherwise noted.

2. Abbreviations:
•• JK - Jack Stud
•• K - King Stud
•• ST - Stud
•• ES - Each Side
•• NB - Non-bearing

3. Bracing Method at exterior walls has been
designed to meet the intent of NCRC 2018
R602.10.3; CS-WSP:

3.1. Cover all exterior wall with continuous
OSB sheathing fastened to studs with 8d
nails @ 6" O.C. at panel edges and 12"
O.C. in the field.

3.2. Block all seams.
4. Apply fire blocking around all girders at fire

separation wall.

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

Headers to be #1 or better grade Southern Pine per
NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2) 2X10 *UNLESS NOTED

(2) 2X6 *UNLESS NOTED

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

*Per NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2)

(1)

PRE-FAB WOOD TRUSS

GIRDER TRUSS

2X WOOD TRUSS

DIMENSIONAL LUMBER
(STICK FRAMING) SIZED
& SPACED AS NOTED

PORCH BEAM

CONTINUOUSLY
SHEATHED EXTERIOR
WALL

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

WASHDRYER

H.W.

WASHDRYER

H.W.

WASH DRYER

H.W.

DRYER

H.W.

WASH

1
4

" 
E

N
D

 W
A

L
L

 L
A

D
D

E
R

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

 W
/ 

2
X

4
 @

 1
6
" 

O
.C

. 
@

 F
L
O

O
R

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 (
T

Y
P

.)

4X4 TURN

POST W/

POST BASE,
TYP

2-JK

1-K

2-JK

1-K

2-2X102-2X12

4X4 TURN

POST W/

POST BASE,
TYP

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

4X4 TURN

POST W/

POST BASE,

TYP

4X4 TURN

POST W/

POST BASE,
TYP

1
4

" 
E

N
D

 W
A

L
L

 L
A

D
D

E
R

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

 W
/ 

2
X

4
 @

 1
6
" 

O
.C

. 
@

 F
L
O

O
R

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 (
T

Y
P

.)

2-JK

1-K

2-JK
1-K

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10 2-2X10

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

2-2X10

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

G
IR

D
E

R
 F

.T
. 

B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

GIRDER F.T.

BY OTHERS

2 ST.

2 ST.

N
.B

.

R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
E

S

@
 2

4
" 

O
.C

 B
Y

O
T

H
E

R
S

3 ST.3 ST.

2
-J

K

1
-K

2
-2

X
1
0

2 CRIPPLES

5
'-
2

1 4
"

6X6 TREATED POST

W/ AB66Z POST BASE
TYP

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-

S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
E

S

@
 2

4
" 

O
.C

 B
Y

O
T

H
E

R
S

R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
E

S

@
 2

4
" 

O
.C

 B
Y

O
T

H
E

R
S

(2) 2X6 PORCH

BEAMS, TYP

(2) 2X6 PORCH

BEAMS, TYP

(2) 2X6 PORCH

BEAMS, TYP

(2) 2X6 PORCH

BEAMS, TYP

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2 ST.

N
.B

.

G
IR

D
E

R
 F

.T
. 

B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

GIRDER F.T.

BY OTHERS

5
'-
2

1 4
"

3 ST.3 ST.3 ST.3 ST.3 ST. 3 ST.

5
'-
2

1 4
"

5
'-
2

1 4
"

2
-J

K

1
-K

2
-2

X
1
0

G
IR

D
E

R
 F

.T
. 

B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

GIRDER F.T.

BY OTHERS

2 ST.

2 ST.

N
.B

.

2 ST.

N
.B

.

G
IR

D
E

R
 F

.T
. 

B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

GIRDER F.T.

BY OTHERS

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10

2-JK

1-K

2-2X10
2-JK
1-K

2-2X10

2-JK
1-K

2-2X10
2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

2-JK

1-K

2-2X12

R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
E

S

@
 2

4
" 

O
.C

 B
Y

O
T

H
E

R
S

FIRST FLOOR BRACING PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

S.07

See notes on cover sheet

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Architectural framing plans are schematic
diagrams.  Refer to shop drawings provided by
truss manufacturer/designer, in the field.

2. FRAMING:
2.1. First Floor Studs: 2x4s @ 16" O.C.
2.2. Second Floor Studs:  2x4s @ 16" O.C.
2.3. All joists, beams, and headers to be #1 or

better grade Southern Pine per NCRC
2018 Table R602.7(1).

2.4. All exposed framing shall be pressure
treated lumber.

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

Headers to be #1 or better grade Southern Pine per
NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2) 2X10 *UNLESS NOTED

(2) 2X6 *UNLESS NOTED

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

*Per NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2)

(1)

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

WASHDRYER

H.W.

WASHDRYER

H.W.

WASH DRYER

H.W.

DRYER

H.W.

WASH

(2) 2X10 HEADER

W/  (2) JACK

STUDS, E.S.

(2) 2X10 HEADER

W/  (2) JACK

STUDS, E.S.

(2) 2X10 HEADER

W/  (2) JACK

STUDS, E.S.

(2) 2X10 HEADER

W/  (2) JACK

STUDS, E.S.

2-JK.

2-JK. 2-JK.2-JK.

2-JK. 2-JK.2-JK.

2-JK.

FLOOR FRAMING PLAN (SCHEMATIC)
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

S.08

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. All bearing headers are #1 or better grade
2x10 Southern Pine per NCRC 2018
R602.7(1), unless otherwise noted.

2. Abbreviations:
•• JK - Jack Stud
•• K - King Stud
•• ST - Stud
•• ES - Each Side
•• NB - Non-bearing

3. Bracing Method at exterior walls has been
designed to meet the intent of NCRC 2018
R602.10.3; CS-WSP:

3.1. Cover all exterior wall with continuous
OSB sheathing fastened to studs with 8d
nails @ 6" O.C. at panel edges and 12"
O.C. in the field.

3.2. Block all seams.
4. Apply fire blocking around all girders at fire

separation wall.

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

Headers to be #1 or better grade Southern Pine per
NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2) 2X10 *UNLESS NOTED

(2) 2X6 *UNLESS NOTED

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

*Per NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2)

(1)

PRE-FAB WOOD TRUSS

GIRDER TRUSS

2X WOOD TRUSS

DIMENSIONAL LUMBER
(STICK FRAMING) SIZED
& SPACED AS NOTED

PORCH BEAM

CONTINUOUSLY
SHEATHED EXTERIOR
WALL

WB & WBC MODELS

LENGTH 14'-3"

SECTION 11
4"

ANGLE & WALL SIZE 8' @ 51°

PLATES 2 - 16d

STUDS 1 - 8d

*NOTE: 2-"X" BRACE
SECTIONS REQ'D. ON 2ND
FLOOR EA. SIDE OF
TENANT PARTITION (FIRE)
WALL.

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN DOWN

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWNDOWN

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

SIMPSON "WB" "X"

BRACING CONT. 3-"X"

BRACES REQUIRED EA.

SIDE OF TENANT

PARTITION (TYP.)

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1
4

" 
O

P
E

N
 W

E
B

 F
L

O
O

R
 T

R
U

S
S

E
S

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

-S
E

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1
-J

K

1
-K

 E
.S

.

2
-2

X
6

1
-J

K

1
-K

 E
.S

.

2
-2

X
6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6
1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6
1-JK

1-K E.S.

2-2X6

1
-J

K

1
-K

 E
.S

.

2
-2

X
6

1
-J

K

1
-K

 E
.S

.

2
-2

X
6

3-ST.

GIRDER TRUSS BY OTHERS

3-ST. 3-ST.

GIRDER TRUSS BY OTHERS

3-ST. 3-ST.

GIRDER TRUSS BY OTHERS

3-ST. 3-ST.

GIRDER TRUSS BY OTHERS

3-ST.

EXTEND WALL PLATES

BACK 4'-0" MIN FROM

FRONT WALL

INTERSECTIONEXTEND WALL PLATES

BACK 4'-0" MIN FROM

FRONT WALL

INTERSECTION

EXTEND WALL PLATES

BACK 4'-0" MIN FROM

FRONT WALL

INTERSECTION

SECOND FLOOR BRACING PLAN
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

S.09

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

1. Architectural framing plans are schematic
diagrams.  Refer to shop drawings provided by
truss manufacturer/designer, in the field.

2. FRAMING:
2.1. First Floor Studs: 2x4s @ 16" O.C.
2.2. Second Floor Studs:  2x4s @ 16" O.C.
2.3. All joists, beams, and headers to be #1 or

better grade Southern Pine per NCRC
2018 Table R602.7(1).

2.4. All exposed framing shall be pressure
treated lumber.

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

Headers to be #1 or better grade Southern Pine per
NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2) 2X10 *UNLESS NOTED

(2) 2X6 *UNLESS NOTED

FIRST STORY

SECOND STORY

*Per NCRC 2018 Table R602.7(1)

(2)

(1)

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWN DOWN

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

DOWNDOWN

PORCH ROOF

PORCH ROOF

NO OPENINGS
4'-0" E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION

UNDERSIDE
W/IN FIRE

SEPARATION
DISTANCE

NO OPENINGS
4'-0" E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION

UNDERSIDE
W/IN FIRE

SEPARATION
DISTANCE

NO OPENINGS
4'-0" E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION

UNDERSIDE
W/IN FIRE

SEPARATION
DISTANCE

NO OPENINGS
4'-0" E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION

UNDERSIDE
W/IN FIRE

SEPARATION

DISTANCE

NO OPENINGS

4'-0" E.S. OF
PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED

CONSTRUCTION
UNDERSIDE

W/IN FIRE
SEPARATION

DISTANCE

NO OPENINGS
4'-0" E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE

1 HR FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION

UNDERSIDE
W/IN FIRE

SEPARATION

DISTANCE

300 LB.
POINT LOAD

(2) STUDS

300 LB.
POINT LOAD
(2) STUDS

600 LB.
POINT LOAD
(3) STUDS E.S.

2
S.11

4
S.11

1
S.11

1
S.12

ROOF FRAMING PLAN (SCHEMATIC)
1

SCALE: 18"=1'-0"

S.10

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

GABLE TRUSS: DOES
NOT CROSS
PROPERTY LINE

BUILT OVERHANG

ENGINEERED VALLEY
RAFTERS; SEE
ENGINEERED TRUSS
DRAWINGS

C
O

M
M

O
N

 R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
 B

E
L
O

W

2-2X6

DESIGN & BUILD
IN THE FIELD

TENANT PARTITION

2-HR. RATING
CONTINUED TO
BOTTOM OF ROOF
SHEATHING

GIRDER TRUSS

3-ST 3-ST

GABLE TRUSS

GIRDER TRUSS:
DOES NOT CROSS
PROPERTY LINE

ENGINEERED VALLEY
RAFTERS-TRUSSES DO NOT
CROSS PROPERTY LINE; SEE
ENGINEERED TRUSS
DRAWINGS

TENANT PARTITION

2-HR. RATING CONTINUED TO
BOTTOM OF ROOF SHEATHING

FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD
ROOFING 4'-0" EACH SIDE OF
TENANT SEPARATION

SEE DETAIL THIS
SHEET

TENANT PARTITION
FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD

FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD (4'
E.S. OF TENANT SEPARATION)
TIES TWO SECTIONS
TOGETHER (RUN FIRE WALL TO
UNDERSIDE)

2X4 VERTICAL BLOCKING
2'-0" O.C. (TYP)

2X4 EAVE EXTENSION, 2' O.C.
IN LINE WITH TRUSSES

ALUMINUM DRIP EDGE

2X6 SUB FASCIA,
WRAPPED IN ALUMINUM
FASCIA

NON COMBUSTIBLE SOFFITS
TO COMPLY WITH NCRC
2018>>>>
• NO OPENINGS 4' E.S. OF

PROPERTY LINE
• 1 HR CONSTRUCTION ON

UNDERSIDE WITHIN THE
FIRE SEPARATION
DISTANCE

TENANT PARTITION

GABLE FRAMING-@ END UNITS
1

SCALE: 38"=1'-0"

SECTION-@ BUILDING CENTER
2

SCALE: 38"=1'-0"

GABLE END DETAIL-@ END UNITS
3

SCALE: 38"=1'-0"

EAVE DETAIL
4 SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

S.11

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



3815 LATROBE DRIVE
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211

TELEPHONE: 704-376-2054
FAX: 704-342-1797

DWN. BY: CARRIE MASTO
cmasto@habitatcharlotte.org

�������
���	�
�����
���������

�

DATE:

ENGINEER:
Gavel and Dorn Engineering

6730 Freedom Drive
Charlotte, NC 28214

(704)-919-1900

SHEET #:

NOVEMBER 4, 2019

H
A

B
IT

A
T

 F
O

R
 H

U
M

A
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E
S

 A
T

 C
IT

IS
ID

E

9
2

5
, 

9
2

9
, 

9
3

3
, 

9
3

7
 P

L
A

Z
A

 W
A

L
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
H

A
R

L
O

T
T

E
, 
N

C
 2

8
2
1
5

DESIGN & BUILD
IN THE FIELD

TENANT PARTITION-2 HR.RATING CONTINUED TO
BOTTOM OF ROOF SHEATHING

600 LB. POINT
LOAD-2 ST. E.S.

ENGINEERED VALLEY RAFTERS;
SEE ENGINEERED TRUSS
DRAWINGS

2-2X6

3-ST

C
O

M
M

O
N

 R
O

O
F

 T
R

U
S

S
 B

E
L
O

W

BUILT OVERHANG

GIRDER TRUSS

GABLE TRUSS

BUILT OVERHANG

GABLE TRUSS

GIRDER TRUSS

3-ST

GIRDER TRUSS:
DOES NOT CROSS
PROPERTY LINE

3-ST

EXTEND WALL PLATES BACK 4'-0" MIN. FROM
FRONT WALL INTERSECTION

GABLE FRAMING-@ MIDDLE UNITS
1

SCALE: 38"=1'-0"

S.12

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
CODE ENFORCEMENT

Residential Plan Review Disclaimer:
A limited plan review for compliance 
with the NC State Residential Code 

was performed on these plans.
It is the Responsibility Of The 

Contractor to construct this project 
using good engineering practice and 

in full compliance with the North 
Carolina Residential Code, local 

ordinances, and State regulations.

12.D.m

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_P
le

x_
T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



12.D.n

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3-

16
1 

p
la

t 
si

g
n

ed
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



12.D.o

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

er
m

 la
n

d
 p

la
n

 w
it

h
 t

re
es

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.p

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

er
m

 la
n

d
 p

la
n

-M
o

d
el

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



LEGEND

A Community Trail
B Single-Family Housing
C  Town Homes
D Pond
E Preserved Wetland

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Cantyre St
Cantyre St

C
ol

er
ai

ne
 D

r
C

ol
er

ai
ne

 D
r

A

A

B

B

BC

C

D
E

PORT WENTWORTH, GA
OCTOBER 16, 2023 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

This map illustrates a general plan of the development which is 
for discussion purposes only, does not limit or bind the owner/
developer, and is subject to change and revision without 
prior written notice to the holder. Dimensions, boundaries, 
and position locations are for illustrative purposes only and 
are subject to an accurate survey and property description. 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

W
:\M

ik
ey

\C
EH

FH
\P

or
t W

en
tw

or
th

\L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e\

Ill
us

tr
at

iv
e\

in
dd

\B
D

EV
.H

ab
ita

t f
or

 H
um

an
ity

 -
 L

A 
Ex

hi
bi

t

30 60-60 120 2400

SCALE:     1”  = 60’-0” 

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

12.D.q

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 E
X

H
IB

IT
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)

hughes.m
Text Box
PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Callout
POSSIBLE 20-FT DRAINAGE EASEMENT(TYPICAL)

hughes.m
PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
POSSIBLE 20-FT DRAINAGE EASEMENT
(TYPICAL)

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m



LEGEND
 
A Community Trail
B Single-Family Housing
C   Town Homes
D   Pond
E   Preserved Wetland

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Cantyre St
Cantyre St

C
ol

er
ai

ne
 D

r
C

ol
er

ai
ne

 D
r

A

A

B

B

BC

C

D
E

PORT WENTWORTH, GA
OCTOBER 16, 2023 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

This map illustrates a general plan of the development which is 
for discussion purposes only, does not limit or bind the owner/
developer, and is subject to change and revision without 
prior written notice to the holder. Dimensions, boundaries, 
and position locations are for illustrative purposes only and 
are subject to an accurate survey and property description. 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

W
:\M

ik
ey

\C
EH

FH
\P

or
t W

en
tw

or
th

\L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e\

Ill
us

tr
at

iv
e\

in
dd

\B
D

EV
.H

ab
ita

t f
or

 H
um

an
ity

 -
 L

A 
Ex

hi
bi

t

30 60-60 120 2400

SCALE:     1”  = 60’-0” 

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

12.D.r

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 U
ti

lit
y 

L
ay

o
u

t 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)

hughes.m
Rectangle

hughes.m
Callout
Abandon Exisiting Pump Station #5

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Callout
Existing Drainage Outfall

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Callout
Proposed Water Main

hughes.m
Callout
Existing Water Main

hughes.m
Callout
Proposed Sewer Main

hughes.m
Callout
Proposed Drainage Pipes

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Callout
Existing Drainage Ditch

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Callout
Proposed Water Main

hughes.m
Text Box
UTILITIES

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Rectangle

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Polygon

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Ellipse

hughes.m
Callout
POSSIBLE PUD LIMIT

hughes.m
PolyLine

hughes.m
Callout
PROPOSED PUMP STATION

hughes.m
Callout
LIMIT OF PURCHASE BY COUNT (12 ACRES)

hughes.m
Callout
WETLAND IMPACT

hughes.m
Callout
POSSIBLE WETLAND IMPACT

hughes.m
Length Measurement
20 ft

hughes.m
Length Measurement
50 ft

hughes.m
Length Measurement
50 ft

hughes.m
Text Box
DECEMBER 2023

hughes.m
Length Measurement
115 ft

hughes.m
Length Measurement
115 ft

hughes.m
Length Measurement
115 ft

hughes.m
Callout
EXISTING SEWER MANHOLE TOO SHALLOW

hughes.m
Text Box
WETLAND

hughes.m
Line

hughes.m
Length Measurement
70'-11"

hughes.m
Proposed Water Main

hughes.m
LIMIT OF PURCHASE BY COUNT (12 ACRES)

hughes.m
Existing Drainage Outfall

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
Abandon Exisiting Pump Station #5

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
Proposed Water Main

hughes.m

hughes.m
Proposed Sewer Main

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
Existing Drainage Ditch

hughes.m
Proposed Drainage Pipes

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
Existing Water Main

hughes.m
UTILITIES

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
WETLAND IMPACT

hughes.m
115 ft

hughes.m

hughes.m
70'-11"

hughes.m

hughes.m
PROPOSED PUMP STATION

hughes.m
EXISTING SEWER MANHOLE TOO SHALLOW

hughes.m
DECEMBER 2023

hughes.m
50 ft

hughes.m
115 ft

hughes.m
WETLAND

hughes.m
POSSIBLE PUD LIMIT

hughes.m
115 ft

hughes.m

hughes.m
50 ft

hughes.m

hughes.m

hughes.m
20 ft

hughes.m
POSSIBLE WETLAND IMPACT



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Existing Utilities
02/15/2024

 Parcels

 Detention Ponds

 Stormwater Points

 MS4 Outfall

 Stormwater Lines

 Force Mains

 Force Main Valves

 Manholes

 Pump Stations

 Sewer Lines

  Water Lines

 Fire Hydrants

 Reuse Line

 Reuse Valves

 Valve Manholes

 Valves

 Wells

12.D.s

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

xi
st

in
g

-U
ti

lit
ie

s 
 (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



 

12.D.t

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.t

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.t

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.t

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.t

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.t

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
lie

n
t 

V
er

 L
et

te
r 

- 
H

ab
it

at
 f

o
r 

H
u

m
an

it
y.

P
P

D
F

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

General Location
Map

02/15/2024

 Parcels

12.D.u

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

en
er

al
-L

o
ca

ti
o

n
-M

ap
  (

29
73

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 H

ab
it

at
 P

U
D

)



LEGEND
 
A Community Trail
B Single-Family Housing
C   Town Homes
D   Pond
E   Preserved Wetland

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 R
d

Cantyre St
Cantyre St

C
ol

er
ai

ne
 D

r
C

ol
er

ai
ne

 D
r

A

A

B

B

BC

C

D
E

PORT WENTWORTH, GA
OCTOBER 16, 2023 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

This map illustrates a general plan of the development which is 
for discussion purposes only, does not limit or bind the owner/
developer, and is subject to change and revision without 
prior written notice to the holder. Dimensions, boundaries, 
and position locations are for illustrative purposes only and 
are subject to an accurate survey and property description. 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

W
:\M

ik
ey

\C
EH

FH
\P

or
t W

en
tw

or
th

\L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e\

Ill
us

tr
at

iv
e\

in
dd

\B
D

EV
.H

ab
ita

t f
or

 H
um

an
ity

 -
 L

A 
Ex

hi
bi

t

30 60-60 120 2400

SCALE:     1”  = 60’-0” 

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

PORT WENTWORTH
SOCCER FIELDS

12.D.v

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 o

p
en

 s
p

ac
e 

(2
) 

 (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Area Measurement
98,838 sf

hughes.m
Area Measurement
346,843 sf

hughes.m
Text Box
OPEN SPACE EXHIBIT

hughes.m
Text Box
APPROXIMATELY 9 ACRES OPEN SPACE PROPOSED INCLUDING WETLANDS, PASSIVE OPEN SPACE, ACTIVE OPEN SPACE AND STORMWATER POND

hughes.m
Rectangle

hughes.m

hughes.m
APPROXIMATELY 9 ACRES OPEN SPACE PROPOSED INCLUDING WETLANDS, PASSIVE OPEN SPACE, ACTIVE OPEN SPACE AND STORMWATER POND

hughes.m
98,838 sf

hughes.m
346,843 sf

hughes.m
OPEN SPACE EXHIBIT



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Topographic Map
02/15/2024

 Parcels

12.D.w

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

-M
ap

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



12.D.x

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

Y
P

IC
A

L
 L

O
T

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)

hughes.m
Snapshot

hughes.m
Text Box

hughes.m
Text Box
TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS

hughes.m
TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS

hughes.m

hughes.m



12.D.y

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 z

o
n

in
g

 (
1)

  (
29

73
 :

 2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

 H
ab

it
at

 P
U

D
)



 City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2975) DOC ID: 2975  

Updated: 4/11/2024 9:26 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 1 

A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted 
by Philip R. McCorkle as Agent for SPH-21, LLC, requesting 
to rezone 24.952 of 45.2 acres from R-1 to R-5, to allow for 
multifamily residential development.  PIN # 7-0976-02-035, 

located in the 1st Council District, on Saussy Road and 
Georgia Highway 21. 

Issue/Item:  

A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted by Philip R. McCorkle as Agent 

for SPH-21, LLC, requesting to rezone 24.952 of 45.2 acres from R-1 to R-5, to allow for 

multifamily residential development.  PIN # 7-0976-02-035, located in the 1st Council 

District, on Saussy Road and Georgia Highway 21. 

 

Background:  

The applicant requests R-5 zoning for the future development of an apartment community. 

The complex is proposed to have approximately 308 units.    

 

The (+/-) 20 acres remaining R-1 include 2 acres, with frontage on both Saussy Road and 

Highway 21, which is the proposed site of a future fire station.  

 

The concept plan shows two access points:  

 - Saussy Road via easement through the planned fire station parcel  

 - Highway 21 as right in/right out access   

 

Facts and Findings:  

Adjacent properties to the north, south, and west are zoned R-1 and R-5, the parcel to the 

west contains a profusion of wetlands. The majority of the eastern property line abuts 

Highway 21.    

 

The 2021-2041 Comprehensive Plan identifies the character area for this parcel as Rural 

Neighborhood which is partially defined as “rural, undeveloped land with little development 

pressure for suburban growth”. This designation should be considered against:  

 - Frontage on Highway 21  

 - Close proximity of commercial and mixed residential uses across Highway 21   

 - Recent R-5 approval directly across Saussy Road    

 

Included in the Comprehensive Plan’s implementation strategies for development within the 

Rural Neighborhood character area includes identifying “areas appropriate for development 

and direct(ing) future growth to those areas, while preserving rural areas and 

communities”.  

 

Funding: 

N/A 

 

Recommendation: 

13.A

Packet Pg. 158



Agenda Item (ID # 2975)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/11/2024 9:26 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 2 

The proposed rezoning meets applicable zoning criteria, is appropriate to location and 

neighboring use, and addresses a need for an increase in available housing.  

 

At the April 8, 2024 meeting, the Planning Commissions recommended approval.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Application (PDF) 

• ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Legal Description (PDF) 

• ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-APO (PDF) 

• ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Plat (PDF) 

• ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Site Plan (PDF) 

13.A

Packet Pg. 159



APPLICATION TO AMENO THE ZONING MAP OF PORT WENTWORTH, GEORGIA

Applicant: Phillip R. McCorkle Phone s 912-232€000

Mailing Address: 3'19 Tattnall Street, Savannah, Georgia 3140'1

Property Owner SPH-21, LLC. a Georg a limited liabrlity company Phone fl 77 0-828-2222
Use b.ck rf mo.ethan on€owner

Owner Address: 5 Concourse Parkway, Suite 200, Atlanta, Geo rgia 30328

PIN S('s): Portion of 7-0976-02-035 H of Aues 24.952

Zoning Classif ication: Present R-1 Req uested R-5

Use of Property present Timber Harvesting Req uested Apartments

_ lf the requested change is to extend an existing adjacent zoning district to include this property, explain below
why the proposed change should be made.

X lf the requested change is not to extend an adjacent zoning district, explain below why this property should be

placed in a different zoning district than all ad.joining properties. (How does it differ from adjoining properties and why
should it be subject to different restrictions tha n those applying to adjoining properties?)

This tract is on Highway 2'1 . lt is across 21 frcm a multi-family project that is under construction.

Attdch the followinq documents:

1. Written le8al description of the propeny (e.9. copy of deed) - full metes and bounds description rather than plat reference.

2. Name, PIN fl, property address and mailing address of propertv owners withing 300 feet of this property.

3. Plat showing prop€rty lines with lengths and bearings, adjoining streets, locations of existing buildings, north arrow and scale.

Submit three (3) copies of in 11" x 17", one l copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive.

4. Site Plan of proposed use of property. submit three (3) copies in 11" x 17", one 1 copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive

5. Disclosure of Campaign Contributions and Gifts form.
6 Disclosu.e of Financial lnterests form
7. lf property owner and applicant are not the same, Authorization by Property Owner form or Authorizations of Attorney form.

8. Filing fee of 5500.00 + 550.00 per acre + 575.00 Administrative Fee, payable to the City of Port wentworth.

APPLICATION MUST BE FILED 20 BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PLANN ING COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY

ARE TO BE CONSIDERED.

I hereby authorize the staff of the City of Port Wentworth to inspect the premises of the above described property and

to post this property with the duly required notices. I hereby depose and say that all statements herein and attached

statements submitted are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Sworn to-1+n day of
and sub ribed before me this

2a-1...,,**

.t$::1.:

'd;':",,.

ii.'.:"
l\t,"rhx(lP,,,ut )
Notary P ,fi'rii - c-

R

EGEI
[,rAR 0 8updaled 8/2sl2023

9457 03

EXPIRES

"9lgn.trru of Applicant

202{

q\r.

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS
(Required by Title 36, Chapter 674, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

Application filed on 20 to rezone real propertv describedReference:

as follows:

1.t-t<2- {\c,e gortru'* of ?rx 1-o*l1L-oL-07\-

Within the two years preceding the above filing date, the applicant has made campaign contributions aggre8ating

S250.00 or more to each mem ber of the City Cou ncil of the City of Port Wentworth who will consider the application
and is listed below. List (1) the name and official position of the local government official and (2) the dollar amount,
description and date of each campaign contribution.

Nor.J 6

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and

be lief.

\Sworn to and

[-0th a'v
sulxcribed before me th is

"r(n^ierY) ,&! Signatu re of Applica nt

-{tjll-.';%
N otary Pu c

,' EXI'IRES

CEORGIA
05/13/2025

fl

EGETVEF
MAR O 8 2":

UpdaEd al2sl2A2Z

m_-.

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAT INTERESTS

(Required by Title 36, Chapter 67A, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

Reference: Application filed on ,2O
described as follows:

to rezone real property

The undersigned official of the City of Port Wentworth has a property interest (Note 1) in said property as follows:

The undersigned official of the City of Port Wentworth has financial interest (Note 2) in a business entity (Note 3) which
has property interest in said property, which financial interests as follows:

The u ndersigned official of the City of Port Wentworth has a member of the family (Note 4) having a property interest in
said property or a financial interest in a business entity which has a property interest in said property, which family
member and property interest or financial interest are as follows:

Note 1: Property lnterest - Direct ownership of real property, including any percentage of ownership less than total ownership

Note 2: Financial lnterest - All direct ownership interest of the total assets or capital stock of a business entity where such

ownership interest is 10 percent or more
Note 3: business entity - Corporation, partnership, limited partnership, firm, enterprise, franchise, association or trust
Note 4; Member of family - Spouse, mother, father, brother, sister, son, or daughter

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and

be lief .

Sworn to and subscribed before me this
of

Notary Pu blic

updarcda/2s/2023

- 

day 20_. Signature of Officia I

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



AUTHORIZATION OF PROP€RTY OWNER

Application for Rezoning or Variance

I swear that I am the owner of the property which is the subiect matter ot the attached application, as is shown in the
records of Port Wentworth, Georgaa.

I authorize the peBon named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of a variance or for the rezoning of this propeny

Name of App ticant Phillip R. McCorkle

466.grr. 319 Tattnall Street, Savannah, Georgia 31401

Telephone Number: 912-232-1416

SPH 21, LLC.
a Georgia limited liability company

A?€.-_.2__
Personally appeared before me

5ignature of Owner

Po,-:)G. lhnnn-mw
who swears that the information contained in this authorization is true and correct to the best of his or her knowled8e

and belief.

otary Pu c

Date

GEORCIA

E\PIRES

0i/ll/102i

..-o1.t"..:3-r
/H4p 6,u"...S

ffi; ,Y-T

13.A.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



BEGINNING AT A 3'' X 3'' CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND ON THE SOUTHWESTERN SIDE OF GEORGIA

HIGHWAY 21, BEARING THE HORIZONTAL COORDINATES OF NORTH: aO3,412.73', EAST: 955,045.02' (POB

2); THENCE 574'26'28" W A DISTANCE OF 2L0.97'TO A 3" x 3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; THENCE

s 18'31',40" E A DTSTANCE OF 108.97',TO A 5/8" rRON REBAR FOUND; THENCE S 17"s5',48" E A DTSTANCE

OF 66.75'TO A 3" X 3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; THENCE S 74"38'59" W A DISTANCE OF 1,135.21'

TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET; THENCE N 13"46'17" E A DISTANCE OF 1,215.85' TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR sEl
THENCE N 76"23'32" E A DISTANCE OF 400.38'TO A 3" x 3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; THENCE N

13'17'58" w A DTSTANCE OF 172.07'rO A 5/8" rRON REBAR SEI THENCE N 76"23',32" E A DTSTANCE OF

296.24'rO A 5/8" IRON REBAR SET; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC

LENGTH OF 378.77"WTN A RADIUS OF 2,290,O3" WITH A CHORD BEARING OF S 13"37'52,, E, WITH A

CHORD LENGTH OF 378.34', TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR FOUND; THENCE S 18"22'29" E A DISTANCE OF 79.76'

TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR FOUND; THENCE N 71'48'25" E A DISTANCE Ot 19.91'TO A 5/8" IRON REBAR

FOUND; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURN ING TO THE LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 21.05', WITH A

RADIUS OF 2,048.06', WITH A CHORD BEARING OF S 18"07'35" E, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 21.05', TO

A6" X 6" RIGHT OF WAY MONUMENT FoUND BROKEN; THENCE S 18'20'27" E A DISTANCE OF 5s9.s7' TO

A 3" X 3" CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND; WHICH IS THE POINT OF BEG INNING (POB 2), HAVING AN

AREA OF 1,086,928 SQUARE FEEI, OR 24.952 ACRES.

MULTI-FAMILY PARCEL
13.A.b

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

L
eg

al
 D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

  (
29

75
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 V
ar

n
ad

o
e 

R
ez

o
n

e)



SPH 21, LLC
PIN:70976 02036
Property Address: Saussy Road
Mailing Address: 6 Concourse Parkway,
Suite 200
Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Joseph N. Harris
PIN: 70976 02012A
Property Address: Saussy Road
Mailing Address: i920 Arcadian Street
Savannah, Georgia 3 1405

Willis H. Floyd
PIN: 70976 02012
Properly Address: 123 Saussy Road
Mailing Address: 123 Saussy Road
Savannah, Georgia 3 1407

Anthony Foster
Vanessa McBride
PIN: 70975 01010
Property Address: Saussy Road
MaiJing Address: Post Office Box 7531
Savannah, Georgia 3 141 8

Alexander Hicks III
PIN: 70976A01025
Property Address: 7 423 Highway 21

Mailing Address:7425 Highway 21

Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

Bostick Jackson
PIN: 70976A01020
Property Address: Augusta Road
Mailing Address: 362 Saussy Road
Savarurah, Georgia 3 1407

Edward Johnson
David Wilson
PIN: 70975 0201 I

Propeffy Address: 7500 Highway 21

Mailing Address: 2119 Biscayne Drive
Savannah, Georgia 3 1406

Edward Johnson
PIN: 70975 02012
Property Address: Highway 21

Mailing Address: 2127 Mason Drive
Savannah, Georgia 3 1404

Fieldstone Group LLC
PiNs: 70975 02015; 70975 02014l, 7097 5

02013
Property Address: Highway 21

Mailing Address: 204 Wiley Bottom Road
Savannah, Georgia 3141 1

Port Wentworth Apartment Residences, LLLP
PIN: 70907 01003
Property Address: 7450 Highway 21

Mailing Address: 1545 Peachtree Street NE,
Suite 245
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Alexander Hicks
PIN: 7097640i019
Properly Address: 7425 Highway 21,

Mailing Address : 7 425 Highway 2l
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

Glenn A. Steele
Anthony Steele
PIN: 70976401006
Property Address: Berrien Avenue
Mailing Address: 207 Stephanie Avenue
funcon, Georgia 3 1326Richard Bryant

PIN: 70976.401021
Property Address: August Road
Mailing Address: 40 Cottingham Way,
Pooler, Georgia 3 1322

Q:\DATA\WPDATA\9400\945?-03 Properry Omers within 300 Feei (Muhifamily) 01042024 do.x

Pronertv Owners Within 300 Feet

13.A.c

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
P

O
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



Viola Hicks, Et al.
PINs: 70976A01024

709761'01023
Property Address: Augusta Road
Mailing Address: c/o Dwight Douglas Hicks
8613 Gateshead Road
Alexandria, Y ir ginia 223 09

Priscilla Harden
Angela Reed
PN:70976401016
Property Address: 7413 Highway 2l
Mailing Address: 741 1 US Highvray 2l
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

Tonya Yevette Brown
Taneka Beasley
PIN: 70976,4.01009
Property Address: Berrien Ave
Mailing Address: 503 Belleview Circle N
Beaufort, South Carolina 29902

Edward Johrson
David Wilson
PIN: 70976A01022
Property Address: Augusta Road
Mailing Address: 2119 Biscayne Drive
Savannah, Georgia 3 1406

Georgia W. Benton
PIN: 70976 02013
Property Address: 135 Saussy Road
Mailing Address: 135 Saussy Road
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407

Q]\DATA\WPDATA\9400\9457 03 Propcrty Ose.s Wjtlir 300 Fec! (Multifmily) 03042024.docx

13.A.c

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

A
P

O
  (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



13.A.d

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

P
la

t 
 (

29
75

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 V

ar
n

ad
o

e 
R

ez
o

n
e)



13.A.e

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 S
au

ss
y 

R
d

 7
09

76
 0

20
35

 P
ar

ti
al

 V
ar

n
ed

o
e 

T
ra

ct
 2

02
4-

S
it

e 
P

la
n

  (
29

75
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 V
ar

n
ad

o
e 

R
ez

o
n

e)



 City Council Meeting: 04/18/24 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Katie Dunnigan 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Katie Dunnigan 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2976) DOC ID: 2976  

Updated: 4/11/2024 9:40 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 1 

A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted 
by Yash Development, LLC as Agent for William Grainger and 

Yash Desai Development, LLC, requesting to rezone 11.87 
acres from R-1 to C-1, to allow for multifamily development 
with retail.  PINs # 7-0976-01-004, 7-0976-01-005, located in 

the 1st Council District at 920 and 924 Highway 30. 

Issue/Item:  

A Zoning Map Amendment Application has been submitted by Yash Development, 

LLC as Agent for William Grainger and Yash Desai Development, LLC, requesting to 

rezone 11.87 acres from R-1 to C-1, to allow for multifamily development with 

retail.  PINs # 7-0976-01-004, 7-0976-01-005, located in the 1st Council District at 

920 and 924 Highway 30. 

 

Background:  

• The applicant requests C-1 zoning for a proposed development featuring 

approximately 264 apartments varying in size from 1-3-bedroom units. 

• The three buildings with frontage on Highway 30 will be multi-use, with a combined 

12,ooo sq. ft. of commercial space on the ground floor and apartment units above. 

• There are two proposed access points to Highway 30 on each side of the 

development. 

• There is a 100’ x 100’ cell tower located at the north of the property. This, plus a 30’ 

access on the eastern property boundary, are part of a 2014 Verizon lease 

agreement. There are no buildings proposed within the immediate vicinity of the 

tower. 

• Adjacent properties to the north, east, and west are within the R-1 zoning district. 

The southern boundary is adjacent to Highway 30, with R-4 zoning on the other side 

of the ROW (Lakeshore Subdivision).  

 

 

Facts and Findings:  

• The City of Port Wentworth Code of Ordinances describes the intent of the C-1 

zoning district as: “intended to encourage and accommodate a walkable downtown area 

with storefronts on the ground story and upper story residential, local market retail, personal 
services, restaurants, entertainment, offices, and professional services. Sites are located near 
the established commercial core of the Old Town area of the City of Port Wentworth. 

Characteristics of uses and land in C-1 include daytime and early evening operations, smaller-
scale and mixed-use buildings, sidewalk sales, and on-street parking.”  

o C-1 zoning is the lowest intensity commercial designation, which is preferable 

for proximity to existing residential. 

o The majority of the proposed use is residential, commercial use will be limited 

to the southern-most area of the property, which is adjacent to Highway 30.  
• The 2021-2041 Comprehensive Plan identifies the character area for this parcel as Suburban 

which is partially defined as “where typical types of suburban residential subdivision have 
occurred or will occur in the future.”  

o The Character Area Map identifies a majority of the western portion of Port Wentworth 

13.B

Packet Pg. 169



Agenda Item (ID # 2976)  Meeting of April 18, 2024 

Updated: 4/11/2024 9:40 AM by Katie Dunnigan  Page 2 

as “Suburban”.  
▪ Staff observation is that this amount of suburban development benefits from 

the support of accessible neighborhood service type commercial activity.  
• The Comprehensive Plan’s implementation strategies for development within the Suburban 

character area include: 
o The allowance for “neighborhood scale mixed uses”  
o Preservation of trees 
o Varying housing types and residential densities 

 

 

Funding: 

N/A 

 

Recommendation: 

The proposed rezoning meets applicable zoning criteria and is consistent with intended use 

as described in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-App(Incomplete) (PDF) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Limited Warranty Deed (PDF) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Warranty Deed (PDF) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-APO(CSV) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Sagis Map Views (PDF) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Plat (PDF) 

• ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Site Plan (PDF) 

13.B

Packet Pg. 170



EGIEIVE
R 0\ 202{ uAPPTICATION TO AMENO THE ZONING MAP OF PORT WENTWORTH, G

Applicant: Grainger Wlliam L & Yash Develo pment LLC Phone # 91

Mailing Address: 12 Shady Grove Court, Savannah GA 3'1419

I
a

Pro ert s,^,ns7, Grainger Wlliam & Yash Development LLC
Us. back ifmor. thanon! owner

owner Address: 12 Shady Grove Court, SAvannah GA 3'1419

Phone #

PIN f('s): 70976 01004 & 70976 01005 f of Acres 2.U + 9.23 = I 1.87 Acres

Zoning Classification: Present R-A Req uested c-1

Use of Property: Present

_ lf the requested change is to extend an existing adjacent zoning district to include this property, explain below
why the proposed change should be made.

_ lf the requested change is not to extend an adjacent zoning district, explain below why this property should be

placed in a different zoning district than all adjoining properties. (How does it differ from adjoining properties and why

should it be subject to different restrictions than those applying to adjoining properties?)

1. Written legal description of the property (e.9. copy of deed) - full metes and bounds description rather than plat reference.

2, Name, PIN g, property address and mailing address of property owners withinS 300 feet of this property.

3. Plat showing property lines with lengths and bearings, adioining streets, locations of existing buildings, north arrow and scale,

submit three (3) copies of in 11" x 17", one 1 copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive.

4. Site Plan of proposed use of property. Submit three (3) copies in 11" x 17", one 1 copy in 8.5" x 11", and a PDF on a flash drive.

5. Disclosure ofcampaign Contributions and Gifts form.

6. Disclosure of Financial lnterests form

7. lf property owner and applicant are not the same, Authorization by Property Owner form or Authorizations ofAttorney form.

8. Filing fee of S5m.OO + SsO.m per acre + S75.OO Administrative Fee, payable to the City of Port Wentworth.

I hereby authorize the staff of the City of Port wentworth to inspect the premises of the above described property and

to post this property with the duly required notices. I hereby depose and say that all statements herein and attached
statements submitted are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this
lS*- aay of

Notary Public

Updabd al2Sl2023

UulUl-(orrn 20LL

re of Applicant

Requested _

Attach the followina documents:

APPUCATION MUST BE FILED 20 BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PI.ANNING COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY

ARE TO BE CONSIDERED.

13.B.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
A

p
p

(I
n

co
m

p
le

te
) 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



OISCTOSURE OF FINANCIAT INTERESTS

(Required by Title 36, Chapter 674, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

Reference: Application filed on . 20

described as follows:
to rezone real property

N/A

The undersigned official of the city of Port Wentworth has a property interest (Note 1) in said property as follows:

N/A

N/A

The undersigned official of the City of Port Wentworth has a member of the family (Note 4) having a property interest in
said property or a financial interest in a business entity which has a property interest in said property, which family

member and property interest or financial interest are as follows:

Note 1; Property lnterest - Direct ownership of real property, including any percentage of ownership less than total ownership
Note 2: Financial lnterest - All direct ownership interest of the total assets or capital stock of a business entity where such

ownership interest is 10 percent or more

Note 3: business entity - Corporation, partnership, limited partnership, firm, enterprise, franchise, association or trust
Note 4: Member of family - spouse, mother, father, brother, sister, son, or daughter

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and

belief.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this
\$ a.y

Notary Public

updated 8/2s12o23

of lv\OfCf\ ,2024 official

The underslgned official of the City of Port Wentworth has financial interest (Note 2) in a business entity (Note 3) which

has property interest in said property, which financial interests as follows:

,rw

oT4

13.B.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
A

p
p

(I
n

co
m

p
le

te
) 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS
(Required by Title 36, Chapter 57A, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

Application filed on 20 to rezone real property describedReference:

as follows:

Within the two years preceding the above filing date, the applicant has made campaign contributions aggregatinB

5250.00 or more to each member of the City Council of the city of Port Wentworth who will consider the application

and is listed below. List (1) the name and official position ofthe local government official and (2)the dollar amount,

description and date of each campaign contribution.

N/A

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and

belief.

sworn to and subscribed before me this
Signatu re of Applicant

Notary Public

06l2a26
otl B

Ar C

updated 8/25/2023

dild/
\ t# day of-$40rQh-__- zoZ4.

6\r, rr V -r Oaa
1

5

13.B.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
A

p
p

(I
n

co
m

p
le

te
) 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



AUTHORIZATION OF PROPERTY OWNER

Application for Rezoning or Variance

I swear that I am the owner of the property which is the subject matter of the attached application, as is shown in the
records of Port Wentworth, Georgia.

I authorize the person named below to act as applicant in the pursuit of a variance or for the rezoning of th is property.

Name of Appl i."n1. Annette Hickney

Address: P. O. Box7267 Garden City GA 3'1418

Telephone Number: 912-272-5857

Signature of Owner

Personally appeared before me

who swears that the information contained in this authorization is true and correct to the best of his or her knowledge

and belief.

A\ \-,r !-r
Notary Public

trl6rC_rn 4.. >ot 4
Date

updated 8/25/2023

V'W /

13.B.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
A

p
p

(I
n

co
m

p
le

te
) 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



Pagc 1 ot ,t

Type: WD
KiNd: WARRANTY DEED
Recorded: 9r10/2021 1:37:00 PM
Fso Amt 3360.00 Pags 1 ol4
Transfer Tax: 8335.00
Chatham, G6. Clerk SupGrior Court
Tammie Mosl€y Clerk Supe.ior Courl

Participa nt lO(s): 62447O420O,
7067927936

8K2525 PG 173 - 176

AFTER RECOROING RETURN TO:
Hunter, Maclean, Exley & Dunn, P.C.
200 E. Sl. Julian Str€ot, P.O. Box 9848
Savannah, GA 31401
Attn: Joshua Yellin
File No.: 24178- 1

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF CHATHAM

LIMITED WARRANTY DEED

THIS INOENTURE, made this 1oth d6y ot September, 2021, betwsen Anhur E. Sheffield (hereinaftor
referred to as "Grantor"), and Yash Development, LLC, a Georgia limitBd liability company (hereinafler
roferred to as 'Grantoe"),

For and in consideration ot ths sum of Tsn and Noi100 Dollars ($10.00) and olher good and valuable
considsration delivsred to Grantor by Grantee at and before the execution, sealing and dalivery h€reof,
the rscsipl and sufficiancy of \,iihich are horeby acknowledged, Grantor has and hereby does grant,
bargein, seil, alien, convay and confirm unlo Granlee, and the heirs, legal representatives, succsssors,
successors-in-title and assigns of Grante6, all that tracl or parcel of land lyrng and being in Chatham
County, Georgia, as mora particularly described on Exhibit A attached hsreto and hereby made I part
hereof.

To have and to hoid said tract or parcel of land, togethar wilh any and all improv€monts located thereon,
and any and all of the rights, mernbers and appurtonancas thereof to the same being, belonging or in
ani/wise appsrtaining to the only proper uss, bensfit and behoof o{ Grantee and ths heirs, legal
ropresentatives, successors-in-titl€ and assigns of Granles, torever, in fee simpls.

Grantor shall \.!Bnant and ,orever detand the right and title to said kact or parcel of land unto Grantse and
th€ heirs, legal representatives, successors-in-title and assigns of Graniee, against the claims of all
persons whomsoever claiming by, through or under Grantor, oxcapting those matters listed as permitted
title exceptions as set forth on Exhibil B attached h€rsto and hereby made a parl hereof.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

WITNESSETH:

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
L

im
it

ed
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



P8g€ 2 ot ,{

GRANTOR'S SIGNATURE PAGE TO LIMITED WARRANW DEED

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed, seeled and delivered thjs deed the day and year tirst
above written.

Signsd, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

GRANTOR:

Arthu, E. Sheffisld;

(1,S,)

U Witness

/{
Notary Public
tvly Commission Expires:

'tl
(AFFIX NOTARIAL SEAL)

.do t^R

FJ(PIRES

CEORGIA i

0t/l/202:

i.

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
L

im
it

ed
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



Pag€ 3 ot 4

EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

All thoss certain lots, tracts or parcels of land situate, lying and being in the Bth G. M. District of chatham
county, Georgia, on the Northern side of the Monteilh-Pineora Road comprising fifteen (15) acres, more
or less, and known as all of Lot Number Two (2) and the wastern two hundred and thirty (230) feet of Lot
Number Three (3) of a subdivision of the Northern portion of the Lamar Keller Tract as shown upon that
cartain map mado by Robert D. Gignilliat dat6d August 13, 1934, and recorded in the office of the Clerk of
the Superior Court of Chatham County, Georgia, in Map Book 2, Folio 3O0, said lot and portion of lot being
contiguous and, as a Mlole, having a frontage of seven hundred and sixty-six (766) feet on the Norlhtsrn
side of said Monteith-Pineora Road and b€ing bounded Norlhwardly by lands ot Lafayette McLaws,
Eastwardly by the remaining portion of said lot Number Three (3), Southwardty by the Monleith-pineora
Road and Westwardly by Lot Number One (1) in said subdivision.

TOGEIHER WITH

A 3o-foot wide ingress-egress and utiiity easement lying and being in the 8th G. lvl. District of lhe City of
Port Wentworth, Chatham County, Georgia, being more particularly described as follows:

To find the point of beginning. commence at the centedine intersection of Springwater 0rive and Georgia
Strate Highway 30: thence leaving said lntersection and running along a tie line, North 53"52'30'West,
185.39 feet to a concretB monumeni found in the northerly right-of-way fins of Georgia State Highway 30;
thence along said northerly right-of-way line of Georgia State Highway 30, North 72"22'43'West, 30.00
leei to a point and the true POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence leaving said northerly right-of-way line of
Georgia State Highway 30 and runnrng, North 17'36'19' Easl, 574.99 feet lo a point: Thence, North
35'40'48' West, 149.70 feel to The ENDING at a point.

AND

The 2.64 acre tract conveyed to Milton Exley Rahn and Udell Wolls Rahn by Waranty Deed dated
Oecembsr 26, 1969, and recorded in lhe Office of the Clerk of Superior Court of Chatham County,
Gsorgla in Rocord Book 97 O, Folio 92.

As shown in a survey prepared for Verizon Wireless by Poinl to Point Land SurvByors, lnc., dated APril 17,

2013 and last revrsed May 7, 2013.

LESS AND EXCEPT

The Three (3) acre tract conveyed to Franklin Oouglas Ledbetter, Sr., by Warranty Deed dated December
'12, 1965, and recorded in the Office ol the Clerk of Superior Court of, Chatham County, Georgia in record
book 89 Z, Folio 392 .

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
L

im
it

ed
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



Pagr ,t of 'l

3.

EXHIBIT B
PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS

Matters as shown on that certain plat racorded in Map Book 2, Page 300, Chatham County,
Georgia records.

Terms and conditions o, that certarn lease by and between Arthur E. Sheffieh as lessor and
Verizon Wireless of the East LP as lessee as referenced in that certain Memorandum of Land
Lease Agreement datad Oclober 8, 2013 and rBcorded in Deed Book 417, Page 373, Chatham
County, Georgia records. NOTE: Lease contains a first right of refusal and an easement.

Underground easement to Goorgia Power Company dat6d November 5, 2014 and recorded in

Deed Book 405, Page 672, Chathem County, Georgia records.

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
L

im
it

ed
 W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



CIEnr Sd44
FUD fm Emo

?/10f,W 01r2,.

IAID: l;l.m

9.6fi !. lr{I]ss. Cler I
llr4riur llllr! ol 0Btln Corly
lhrhr fturtrr, rrl)t,l,t

Nsdl [st,]te lr,1l:i10r i,lr

P[r.rad by:
ROBERT W, GALOWAY t ASSOCIATES, P.C
Ba2 Wo.t Highrlay 80 . Po.t O,llce Bor 67t
Poolor. G€orgra 3l3Z2
RIIVG Filo: 02-117-n

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF CHA'HAM

WARRANW OEED

Th6 lnrlgnrur. l. ,n.do on Julo 13rh.2002, borwoon Jo. eobart W.ll., Ntdlna W.llr S|ma
lnd lrl.n. W.ral, .r Eraculor ol llrr E.ldr 6l J.6.a FlBt ltrlla, a! Padl.t gl lh€ Flll PEn,
hrralrrllar callrd G'e^torli end Wlllltn L. Oarlngar, sr Pany ol thg Second Pan. horctnaflsr cottad
Grentoo, (li€ wordr Granlo6 aM G,entoe lo lncluds !h6ir ro.plctrvo holrs, lrrccclsorr end a$En!
whero ln9 conl€rl roqufe! or porm l3).

wrtltEgsETH:

Granlori. lor and ln conal(btsllon ol lho ium ol T.fi and 
^o/100!h! 

Dolla/!, and ofior good and
velulbl€ conslogrgllons n hdncl plrd al and Dolore tie !€allng srd a,ollvery ol thols pr.tMla. !he rac.ipl
vrhoraol ,s heroby lckaowledg.d hrva gIanled. bargaiaed. aold, alEncd. corwsysd and conflrmcd, lnd
by lhoae pl63ontr.b orrnt b6/9ah, !€lr, 6l1en, coivsy BM conlim unlo lh6 Baid Grlnto€, lh.lollowin!
dgsc.ibod ptooo.ly, lo.rYll :

All that conain lot. tracl or p6rcBl 01 isrd srtusle, lyrng 8nd bsine r^ lho 8lh G.M.
Oislncl oi CHATNAM Courty, Georgia. locatod on tha Nonh€m eld€ of th€
Montoith-Pineora Road 6^d b€ino kno{n ss A 2.04 ACRE PORllOt{ OF THE
REIiAINING EASTERN PAFT OF LOT IVYO (2) OF TXE NONTHEfiN PAFT
OF fHE LAMAn XELLEfi InACT. ss recordsd in Map Eook 2, Folio 300, in lh.
Otlic€ ol lh€ Clerl ol Sup€rior Coun o, Chalham Counly. Georgi8; oll as shown
on thal codarn map or plal ol 8aid 2.54 Acro Ponion msds by Leigh Grgnillst,
Regislgr€d Survey. lor Milloo Exl€y tlahn gnd L,d6ll wglls nahn on Jsrujary 27,
1970, 6 copy ol which s rocordsd ln th€ Ottico ol lhs Clerk of Suporlor Coun ol
CHATHAM Counly, Goorgis in Plat Record Book T. Folio 257.

For a rnoro panicular doScription, rel€renc€ ia her€by mad€ to ihe alorgsaid map
or plat, wh ch is gp€cilically incorporst€d herain and mada E part h€rool. Thls
convsyancs 18 mado gubiscl lo 8ll zonlng ordinaacaa, sasomonls, roElrictigna
and r ghts'ol'way al r6cord sllecnng 6aid da8cribod proporty.

_:o
f\) .:.
a^ l?

N)
o-
-.-.J oo-o-

13.B.c

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



To Hava and To Hold the rrid tracl or 9!rc€l ol tand, wilh llt lnd atngular thc rt0hta, mombcr.
srl<, topurlenancea lhorcol, lo lho aaane bglng. balong,lng. or h anywlae app€rtiidhg to lhe only propor
uaa. bonoit lnd bahoo, ol the llld Graalat lorava. ln Faa Slnllla.

The Grtatori arp6tlly cov.nanl th6l !0ld Granlora sra toltad ol s6ld propcdy tn good loa
timplo lillo rnd lhll G.!nlo.a htva tha lgll nghl, pow!. tnd lrrthor[y to convay tho !!mat thal tha lald
p.opony and lho Granlor! lhereo{ tre koo a,ld cLar ol sny ll€no. claimr or sncumDalncot whltavoi
$,he/oby tha rrtle to ltid dolcribed propgny rnly ln anywiaa bo ch6r0od, chanood, imprlrod or dataatod
snd lh9 Grantors u.ill lorsve, Waraal snd Oalol1d lhe alld prcrh€oa against lha LtNlul clsrna ol lll
p€rton! wiomtoover

lN WIINESS WHEREOF, Lhs Gr!n(o6 hlvo h.r.unro !.1th.ir h.nd! .nd !9!r. 0.| lha d.y rnd
yaor lrll 6bovo rvrltlrn.

Sq^ed. S€ale6 e^d DgltvBrod

@aox

NJ(,
-J
-o

4- "or\) >
o-. ;;

Srgn.d. Serled rnd O.lverod
ol

_ r,olrA Plok ql.ll,.6c6Jir. O66dyyLoffi.ro,, E!9(.. s.rrmnr t ilor

m lh/proronc. ol - t1/)r'*,,i{ylul- 24."744 *O
-!6d}loborr Well!

*\k^"d*/L 4;d

/-U:.vr--tltil-
Olen. Wersl. a! Ex.cIfor ol haEa|!la ol
Jrmo! Fifl. \r'l.tlr

6rolaea: Nd.ry Pub.c, ci.ln.h corrllY, o.otlla' lry C@irrr, EtD..i s.Dors., , ?Q0

R

I

13.B.c

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
W

ar
ra

n
ty

 D
ee

d
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

. R
ez

o
n

e)



PIN Owner Mailing AddressCity State Zip

70976 01002WARREN H SCARBERRY 936 HIGHWAY 30PORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70976 01003CHRISTOPHER WIGLEY 349 SPANTON CRESCENTPOOLER GA 31322

70976 01004WILLIAM L GRAINGER P O BOX 7267GARDEN CITYGA 31418

70976 01005YASH DEVELOPMENT, LLC12 SHADY GROVE COURTSAVANNAHGA 31419

70976 01006ELIZABETH J FIELDS 721 LITTLE NECK ROADSAVANNAHGA 31419

70976 01007JANICE J FULCHER 243 MOCK RD # *SPRINGFIELDGA 31329

70976 01008PAULETTE J ZETTLER 920 RAHN STATION ROADRINCON GA 31326

70976 01009LYNWOOD HUNT C/O JANICE FULCHER 265 HORSEPEN RDGUYTON GA 31312

70976 01010YJAMES T & VALERIE W WILLIAMS PO BOX 328POOLER GA 31322

70976 01015COME-A-LONG GROUP LLC120 TALL PINES TRLGREENWOODSC 29646

70978B01001LAKE SHORE HOA2680 QUACCO RDPOOLER GA 31322

70978B01006JON L KILPATRICK 9 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01007DOMINIQUE NICOLA ORMSBY 11 SPRINGWATER DRIVEPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01008RONNIE WHITE  ETAL*1013 HEARN STSAVANNAHGA 31415

70978B01009JULIE A HENRY 15 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01010UYI H EGUASA 17 SPRINGWATER DRPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01011COREY & TAMIKA JENISE TOWNSEND 19 SPRINGWATER DRPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01012ANTHONY A & NICOLE R SPIVEY 21 SPRINGWATER DRIVEPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01013SHERI SALEEM SCOTT 23 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01014ELTON SCHLEY 25 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01015DEDRIC A & OMARI A JOHNSON 27 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01016ALEXANDER M DIAMOND HINTON 29 SPRINGWATER DRIVEPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01017LARRY W JR HINES 31 SPRINGWATER DRPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01018QUINCY PULLIN JR33 SPRINGWATER DRPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01019CHARLES E MAZE II35 SPRINGWATER DRPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01020AH4R PROPERTIES LLC23975 PARK SORRENTO SUITE 300CALABASASCA 91302

70978B01021STEPHAN D REDDIX 320 ARCHIBALD DRGOOSE CREEKSC 29445

70978B01022SHANNON L. JACOBS 41 SPRINGWATER DRIVEPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01023DANIELLE J LACEY 43 SPRINGWATER DRPT WENTWORTHGA 31407

70978B01024NISHIKA C. CLARK 126 MCINTYRE STREETSAVANNAHGA 31405

70978B04021LAKE SHORE HOA6 LAUREL LNPORT WENTWORTHGA 31407

13.B.d

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
A

P
O

  (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



SAGIS Map Viewer

1 91

120 1

7 o
b :H -."s,8

*,.,.S,,r3 4. 5
C

,..; 5l r.r-'l; / ', 9.1 AC
3AC 2.6

AC

, , -. 5,1; i .,. tt5
/75

':::.,6.' '
B

171.4
r2s

eV
1.3

AC

V','\. , :r 'l
$ r,t.r.

Ja 1 2
460

AC
; 1q

18
,i.li, ,; v

,,- a;l?t ib ' ., h ,, 1, 'rlt-j ,.

3U'! rr sH /.,1g14 t3 rt
12

11',8

31312024.10:40:16 PM 1:2,257
006mi

Local Roads Parkways

-- Ma;or Roads lnterstate 0 0 03 0'05 0.1 km

- 
Parkways [.] Libraries

* lnterstate ft CommunityCenters il.G:*il**[HLf*.f]Hffi.*,3Hl,"A,":.,H,f
Local Roads owner, PIN and Address Labels mlll$'.' r'c' MEr,l s ' uscs EPA NPs us c"Eu! Bursau

Malor Roads Property Boundaries (Parcels) 
sAcrs

0 o01 003

l---+--

,l

t15
I

F r{r

13.B.e

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
S

ag
is

 M
ap

 V
ie

w
s 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



70976 01

@ chrtham County, GA

overview

legend

! r".""ts

! water

Wethnds - t[wl
I .Hutt,

! Estuarine and
Marine D€epwater

Estuarin€ and
MarineWetland

& F.eshwate.
ErrErgent Wetland

! F.eshwatet
Forested/Shrub
Wetland

Fr6hwater Pond

3 rrr"
! niwrirr

Parccl lD 7097601@5 Altemrtc lD 3013818
S€c[wCRng 0- Class R4- ResidentialsmallTracts
Prop€rtyAddrrr! 92O HIGHWAY 30 A.re4! 9.L

PORT WENTWORTH
Dlstrlct (070) PORTWENTWORTH
BrlefTax Descrlptlon PT OF E PT OF LOT2 PT OF LOT 3 N PT oF KELLER TCT

{Note: Not to be used on leSeldocuments)

Dat cr..r.d:3/3/m24
Lan D.ta Uplo.dcd: 3/32024 3:0O:4OAM

Owner Address YASH DEVELOPM ENT, LLC

12 SHADY GROVE COURT
SAVANNAH. GA 31419

a

t

fr

@

EEfufoci.

I

E

t

T

{

T -l
,l

1

I

ttr

I

!l/

{

{
,

=-l li

\

) L

13.B.e

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
S

ag
is

 M
ap

 V
ie

w
s 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



76 01001B

70976 01

70976 01005

70976 01

@ Cf,att,am County, GA

Overview

I

LeSend

I earcels

lffi water

Wetlards- i.Iwl

I't'lrtt'
! Estuarinc and

Marine Deepwater

Estuarineard
MarineWetland

. Freshwater

EmergentWetland

I Freshwater
Forested/Shrub
Wetland

F.eshwater Pond

:r take

! niverine

ParcellD 7O976O|W4 Alternate lD 3013817
S€c[wp/Rn8 0- Class R3 - Residentiallots
P.opertyAddr6s 924 HIGHWAy 30 Acreage 2.6

PORT WENTWORTH
Dlstrlct (070) PORTWENTWORTH
grlef Tax Descriptl,on PORTION OF E PT OF LOT 2 OF N PI OF LAMAR KELLER T CT

(Noter No: to b€ used on legaldocuments)

Dar! cr.at€d: U3/2024
Last D3ta Uplo.ded: 3/3,4024 3:00:.lO AM

Owner Address GRAINGERwlLLIAM L

P O BOX7267
GARDEN CIry, GA 31418

\i
1S'

I

a

FilqrurBl

IrIt':r
I
I

a

I
I

l4

r
)tT

tr

Iffifiiil

ffi
I

.t

r.!

r-wd
ts-

13.B.e

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
S

ag
is

 M
ap

 V
ie

w
s 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



t,

:
d $f'IJJ ..,_

>=T

!J=0r
lu=E j \'

iA

i'e
lo
I .Y)

:

.I
.J'

I
.l

,l
1
\

-{
J\
{

i'
{
-t

{
{
{

J.
Il

i.f
:
I
s
{

,\

I

,,I :-.ti

e

rt\t't

(

:l
t

tt
I

It

t

it

'4tt,
t-;1::

,t

;
,
t

',"1

I

{
b'
\t\

\I
\
\

t-
"'if"

E;'

lr4,{

q

xt

Tt\\
t

T\t

t\

L

I

*,

1:r!F-

t4

,t

_i

I.i

1

)7:

1'

1.

-1

ij

t

$$$

sltis

.?a

I

I

I

13.B.f

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
P

la
t 

 (
29

76
 :

 1
st

 R
ea

d
in

g
 -

 Y
as

h
 D

ev
. R

ez
o

n
e)



,rg1;B.ff*"

aeeuneueHr (srudto), t.zs spACES PER UNIT

REQLTIREMENT (O\E EEDROOM): 1.5 SPACES PER UNIT . .-.-
REOUIREMFNT (TVVO BEDROOM): 1 75 SPACES PER UNIT

REOUIREMENI (THREE AEDRooM):2.m sPAcES PER UNlf

R€TAItT

REOUR€MEt{T

ToTAt UNITS PROvloEo: 264 UMTS

ToTAt BUILDINGS PROVIDED: l2 BUILDINGVMTH 3FLOORS PER BUILDING

TOIAL SPACES PROVIOEO:4aO INCLUDINC24 HANDICAP SPACES

STUDIO APARTMENT:51 UNITS X 1.25 SPACES ' 63.75 SPACES ' 6' SPACES

fiE BEOROo APARTMENT: 80 UNITS t 1 .5 SPACES PER Ut{T . 90 SPACES

TViO BEDROONI APARIUEITT: 7O U ITSx I,75SPAC€SP€R UTN.I33 SPACES

THREE EEDROOiI APARIXEI{T: 101 UNITS r 2 m sPAcEs PER UN|T.202 SPAC

IoTAL TRAF€|C VOIUME GENEMTED: 1.941VPD'---.-t

3
@,

3
G

OF OPEN SPACE:33,53%

i\-

7 --'/-

P

=-d9 o
;EU
Hf,IE".X6Ia'
22=

fit*
a
E

I
I
I

!
3

U

,,
E

E

t
:EI
I
s(,
to
L!o

o

Fz
gJ

=o-o

ul6
!

Ee

EXA

I hZ0Z t 0 Uvl,{

a,\race

t

13.B.g

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 9
24

 &
 9

20
 H

W
Y

 3
0 

70
97

6 
01

00
4 

&
 0

10
05

 2
02

4-
S

it
e 

P
la

n
  (

29
76

 :
 1

st
 R

ea
d

in
g

 -
 Y

as
h

 D
ev

.


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call Meeting To Order
	2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call - Clerk of Council
	Roll Call

	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Public Comments - Registered Speakers
	6. Recognition of Special Guests
	7. Elections & Appointments
	A. 2978 : Appointment to Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals
	Policy Paper: 2978 : Appointment to Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals


	8. Adoption of Minutes
	A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - March 21, 2024

	9. Communications & Petitions
	10. Committee Reports
	11. Consent Agenda
	A. 2977 : Resolution Supporting City Post  Office
	Policy Paper: 2977 : Resolution Supporting City Post  Office
	a. 24.04.18 - Res - PW Post Office


	12. Unfinished Business
	A. 2972 : 2nd Reading - Everest Rezoning
	Policy Paper: 2972 : 2nd Reading - Everest Rezoning
	a. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APPLICATION
	b. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Warranty Deed-Warren A Sweatt
	c. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APO
	d. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PROJ. NARRATIVE
	e. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Neighborhood Mtg Attendance
	f. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PLAT
	g. ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-CONCEPT PLAN

	B. 2971 : 2nd Reading - Royal Tract Rezoning
	Policy Paper: 2971 : 2nd Reading - Royal Tract Rezoning
	a. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APPLICATION
	b. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APO
	c. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-AUTH OF PROPERTY OWNER
	d. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-LEGAL DESCRIPTION
	e. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-PLAT
	f. ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-SITE PLAN
	g. DRI #4121 Final Report

	C. 2970 : 2nd Reading - Marion Village Rezoning
	Policy Paper: 2970 : 2nd Reading - Marion Village Rezoning
	a. ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Application
	b. ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Deed
	c. ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - APO
	d. #2
	e. ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Site Plan

	D. 2973 : 2nd Reading Habitat PUD
	Policy Paper: 2973 : 2nd Reading Habitat PUD
	a. Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Application
	b. Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-APO
	c. Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Deed
	d. Berm Easement Agreement 10.03.2019
	e. Administrative Adjustment
	f. Habitat Narrative
	g. Draft Declaration of Covenants
	h. Traffic Memo 2-1-2024
	i. Cost Estimate Hab4Hum - PWT  SS Estimate
	j. - Preliminary Schedule
	k. Article 5 Section 5.20
	l. thumbnail_ABC9A86C8EF24B0F8288DFAB60D37FDC
	m. 4_Plex_Townhomes
	n. 2023-161 plat signed
	o. berm land plan with trees
	p. berm land plan-Model
	q. DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT
	r. Draft Utility Layout
	s. Existing-Utilities
	t. Final Client Ver Letter - Habitat for Humanity.PPDF (1)
	u. General-Location-Map
	v. open space (2)
	w. Topographic-Map
	x. TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
	y. zoning (1)


	13. New Business
	A. 2975 : 1st Reading - Varnadoe Rezone
	Policy Paper: 2975 : 1st Reading - Varnadoe Rezone
	a. ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Application
	b. ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Legal Description
	c. ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-APO
	d. ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Plat
	e. ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Site Plan

	B. 2976 : 1st Reading - Yash Dev. Rezone
	Policy Paper: 2976 : 1st Reading - Yash Dev. Rezone
	a. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-App(Incomplete)
	b. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Limited Warranty Deed
	c. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Warranty Deed
	d. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-APO
	e. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Sagis Map Views
	f. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Plat
	g. ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Site Plan


	14. Resolutions/Ordinances/Proclamations
	15. Executive Session
	A. Litigation
	B. Personnel
	C. Real Estate

	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	7.A · 2978 : Appointment to Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals
	11.A · 2977 : Resolution Supporting City Post  Office
	11.A.a · 24.04.18 - Res - PW Post Office

	12.A · 2972 : 2nd Reading - Everest Rezoning
	12.A.a · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APPLICATION
	12.A.b · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Warranty Deed-Warren A Sweatt
	12.A.c · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-APO
	12.A.d · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PROJ. NARRATIVE
	12.A.e · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-Neighborhood Mtg Attendance
	12.A.f · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-PLAT
	12.A.g · ZMA 1005 HWY 30 7-1017-01-013 R-A TO C-1 2024-CONCEPT PLAN

	12.B · 2971 : 2nd Reading - Royal Tract Rezoning
	12.B.a · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APPLICATION
	12.B.b · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-APO
	12.B.c · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-AUTH OF PROPERTY OWNER
	12.B.d · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-LEGAL DESCRIPTION
	12.B.e · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-PLAT
	12.B.f · ZMA 6510 HWY 21 7-0975-01-024 2024-SITE PLAN
	12.B.g · DRI #4121 Final Report

	12.C · 2970 : 2nd Reading - Marion Village Rezoning
	12.C.a · ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Application
	12.C.b · ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Deed
	12.C.c · ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - APO
	12.C.d · #2
	12.C.e · ZMA MARION VILLAGE 2024 - Site Plan

	12.D · 2973 : 2nd Reading Habitat PUD
	12.D.a · Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Application
	12.D.b · Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-APO
	12.D.c · Habitat for Humanity Project 2024-Deed
	12.D.d · Berm Easement Agreement 10.03.2019
	12.D.e · Administrative Adjustment
	12.D.f · Habitat Narrative
	12.D.g · Draft Declaration of Covenants
	12.D.h · Traffic Memo 2-1-2024
	12.D.i · Cost Estimate Hab4Hum - PWT  SS Estimate
	12.D.j · - Preliminary Schedule
	12.D.k · Article 5 Section 5.20
	12.D.l · thumbnail_ABC9A86C8EF24B0F8288DFAB60D37FDC
	12.D.m · 4_Plex_Townhomes
	12.D.n · 2023-161 plat signed
	12.D.o · berm land plan with trees
	12.D.p · berm land plan-Model
	12.D.q · DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT
	12.D.r · Draft Utility Layout
	12.D.s · Existing-Utilities
	12.D.t · Final Client Ver Letter - Habitat for Humanity.PPDF (1)
	12.D.u · General-Location-Map
	12.D.v · open space (2)
	12.D.w · Topographic-Map
	12.D.x · TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
	12.D.y · zoning (1)

	13.A · 2975 : 1st Reading - Varnadoe Rezone
	13.A.a · ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Application
	13.A.b · ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Legal Description
	13.A.c · ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-APO
	13.A.d · ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Plat
	13.A.e · ZMA Saussy Rd 70976 02035 Partial Varnedoe Tract 2024-Site Plan

	13.B · 2976 : 1st Reading - Yash Dev. Rezone
	13.B.a · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-App(Incomplete)
	13.B.b · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Limited Warranty Deed
	13.B.c · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Warranty Deed
	13.B.d · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-APO
	13.B.e · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Sagis Map Views
	13.B.f · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Plat
	13.B.g · ZMA 924 & 920 HWY 30 70976 01004 & 01005 2024-Site Plan



